

 


 


 


PINOLE CITY COUNCIL 
1,2AMENDED MEETING 


AGENDA 


CITY COUNCIL 


Norma Martínez-Rubin, Mayor  
Vincent Salimi, Mayor Pro Tem 
Devin Murphy, Council Member 
Anthony Tave, Council Member 
Maureen Toms, Council Member 


TUESDAY 
OCTOBER 19, 2021 


VIA ZOOM TELECONFERENCE 


6:00 P.M. 


DUE TO THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA’S DECLARATION OF EMERGENCY – THIS MEETING IS BEING HELD PURSUANT TO 
AUTHORIZATION FROM GOVERNOR NEWSOM’S EXECUTIVE ORDERS – CITY COUNCIL AND COMMISSION MEETINGS 


ARE NO LONGER OPEN TO IN-PERSON ATTENDANCE.  


How to Submit Public Comments: 
Written Comments: All comments received before 3:00 pm the day of the meeting will be 
posted on the City’s website on the agenda page (Agenda Page Link) and provided to the City 
Council prior to the meeting.  Written comments will not be read aloud during the meeting. 


Email comments to comment@ci.pinole.ca.us 
Please indicate which item on the agenda you are commenting on in the subject line of your email. 


To Participate in Public Comment During the Meeting: 
Members of the public may submit a live remote public comment via Zoom video conferencing. Download 
the Zoom mobile app from the Apple Appstore or Google Play. If you are using a desktop computer, you 
can test your connection to Zoom by clicking here. Zoom also allows you to join the meeting by phone. 


From a PC, Mac, iPad, iPhone or Android: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89335000272 


Webinar ID: 893 3500 0272 
By phone:   +1 (669) 900-6833  or  +1 (253) 215-8782  or  +1 (346) 248-7799   


• Speakers will be asked to provide their name and city of residence, although providing this
is not required for participation.


• Each speaker will be afforded up to 3 minutes to speak.
• Speakers will be muted until their opportunity to provide public comment.


When the Mayor opens the comment period for the item you wish to speak on, please use the 
“raise hand” feature (or press *9 if connecting via telephone) which will alert staff that you have 
a comment to provide. 


CORONAVIRUS ADVISORY 
INFORMATION: 


CLICK HERE for City Updates 


CLICK HERE for County Updates 


1 of 182


 1Added Agenda Titles for Items 7B1 and 7B2 


  2Removed Closed Session Item 



https://www.ci.pinole.ca.us/city_government/city_council/agendas_and_minutes

mailto:comment@ci.pinole.ca.us

https://www.zoom.us/join

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89335000272

http://pinoleca.hosted.civiclive.com/city_government/coronavirus

https://www.coronavirus.cchealth.org/





City Council 
Agenda – October 19, 2021 
Page 2 


WAYS TO WATCH THE MEETING 
LIVE ON CHANNEL 26.  They are retelecast the following Thursday at 6:00 p.m.  The Community TV Channel 26 
schedule is published on the city’s website at www.ci.pinole.ca.us.   


VIDEO-STREAMED LIVE ON THE CITY’S WEBSITE, www.ci.pinole.ca.us.  and remain archived on the site for five 
(5) years. 


If none of these options are available to you, or you need assistance with public comment, please 
contact the City Clerk, Heather Iopu at (510) 724-8928 or hiopu@ci.pinole.ca.us . 


Americans With Disabilities Act:  In compliance with the Americans With Disabilities Act of 1990, if you need 
special assistance to participate in a City Meeting or you need a copy of the agenda, or the agenda packet in an 
appropriate alternative format, please contact the City Clerk’s Office at (510) 724-8928.  Notification at least 48 hours 
prior to the meeting or time when services are needed will assist the City staff in assuring that reasonable 
arrangements can be made to provide accessibility to the meeting or service. 


Note:  Staff reports are available for inspection on the City Website at www.ci.pinole.ca.us.  You may also contact the 
City Clerk via e-mail at hiopu@ci.pinole.ca.us . 


Ralph M. Brown Act.  Gov. Code § 54950.  In enacting this chapter, the Legislature finds and 
declares that the public commissions, boards and councils and the other public agencies in this 
State exist to aid in the conduct of the people's business.  It is the intent of the law that their 
actions be taken openly and that their deliberations be conducted openly.  The people of this State 
do not yield their sovereignty to the agencies, which serve them.  The people, in delegating 
authority, do not give their public servants the right to decide what is good for the people to know 
and what is not good for them to know.  The people insist on remaining informed so that they may 
retain control over the instruments they have created. 


2 of 182



http://www.ci.pinole.ca.us/

http://www.ci.pinole.ca.us/

mailto:hiopu@ci.pinole.ca.us

http://www.ci.pinole.ca.us/

mailto:hiopu@ci.pinole.ca.us





Pinole City Council  
Agenda –October 19, 2021 
Page 3 


1. CALL TO ORDER & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE IN HONOR OF THE US MILITARY
TROOPS


2. LAND ACKNOWLEDGMENT
Before we begin, we would like to acknowledge the Ohlone people, who are the traditional custodians of 
this land. We pay our respects to the Ohlone elders, past, present, and future, who call this place, Ohlone 
Land, the land that Pinole sits upon, their home. We are proud to continue their tradition of coming 
together and growing as a community. We thank the Ohlone community for their stewardship and 
support, and we look forward to strengthening our ties as we continue our relationship of mutual respect 
and understanding. 


3. ROLL CALL, CITY CLERK’S REPORT & STATEMENT OF CONFLICT
An official who has a conflict must, prior to consideration of the decision: (1) publicly identify in detail the 
financial interest that causes the conflict; (2) recuse himself /herself from discussing and voting on the 
matter; and (3) leave the room until after the decision has been made, Cal. Gov't Code § 87105. 


4. CONVENE TO A CLOSED SESSION
Citizens may address the Council regarding a Closed Session item prior to the Council adjourning 
into the Closed Session, by first providing a speaker card to the City Clerk.   


NONE


5. RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION TO ANNOUNCE RESULTS OF CLOSED SESSION


6. CITIZENS TO BE HEARD (Public Comments)
Citizens may speak under any item not listed on the Agenda.  The time limit is 3 minutes and is subject to 
modification by the Mayor. Individuals may not share or offer time to another speaker.  Pursuant to 
provisions of the Brown Act, no action may be taken on a matter unless it is listed on the agenda, or 
unless certain emergency or special circumstances exist.  The City Council may direct staff to investigate 
and/or schedule certain matters for consideration at a future Council meeting.  PLEASE SEE THE 
COVERSHEET OF THE AGENDA FOR INSTRUCTIONS ON HOW TO SUBMIT PUBLIC COMMENTS 


7. RECOGNITIONS / PRESENTATIONS / COMMUNITY EVENTS


A. Proclamations 
1. Fire Prevention Week – “Look, Listen, Learn”
2. Indigenous Peoples Day – October 11, 2021


B. Presentations / Recognitions 
1. Update on Police Department Activities by Chief Neil Gang


8. CONSENT CALENDAR
All matters under the Consent Calendar are considered to be routine and noncontroversial.  These items 
will be enacted by one motion and without discussion.  If, however, any interested party or Council 
member(s) wishes to comment on an item, they may do so before action is taken on the Consent 
Calendar. Following comments, if a Council member wishes to discuss an item, it will be removed from 
the Consent Calendar and taken up in order after adoption of the Consent Calendar. 


3 of 182


2. Presentation by Friends of the Pinole Creek Watershed on Community
Science Project







City Council 
Agenda – October 19, 2021 
Page 4 


A. Approve the Minutes of the Meetings of August 17, September 7, and September 
21, 2021  


B. Receive the September 18, 2021 – October 15, 2021 List of Warrants in the 
Amount of $983,596.67, the October 1, 2021 Payroll in the Amount of 
$451,609.58, the October 12, 2021 Retroactive Payroll in the Amount of 
$92,348.42 and the October 15, 2021 Payroll in the Amount of $467,964.00 


C. Resolution Confirming Continued Existence of Local Emergency [Action:  Adopt 
Resolution per Staff Recommendation (Casher)] 


D. Resolution Authorizing Remote Teleconference Meetings Pursuant to AB 361 
[Action:  Adopt Resolution per Staff Recommendation (Casher)] 


E. Fixing the Employer’s Contributions at an Equal Amount for Employees and 
Annuitants Under the Public Employees’ Medical and Hospital Care Act with 
Respect to Management, Unrepresented/Confidential Employees, Elected 
Officials, AFSCME, PEU Local 1 and IAFF [Action:  Adopt Resolutions per Staff 
Recommendation (De La Rosa)] 


F. Amendment to the City of Pinole Conflict of Interest Code [Action:  Adopt 
Resolution per Staff Recommendation (Iopu)] 


9. PUBLIC HEARINGS
Citizens wishing to speak regarding a Public Hearing item should fill out a speaker card prior to the 
completion of the presentation, by first providing a speaker card to the City Clerk. An official who engaged in 
an ex parte communication that is the subject of a Public Hearing must disclose the communication on the record 
prior to the start of the Public Hearing. 


A. Ordinance Adding Chapter 8.10, Organics Reductions and Recycling Ordinance, 
to the Pinole Municipal Code [Action:  Introduce, Waive First Reading of 
Ordinance and Conduct Public Hearing (Casher)] 


10. OLD BUSINESS


A. Resolution Declaring a Climate Emergency and Directing Staff to Take Certain 
Actions [Action: Adopt Resolution and Provide Direction per Staff 
Recommendation (Murray)] 


11. NEW BUSINESS
A. Possible Duties, Powers, and Membership of a City Technology and 


Communication Subcommittee [Action:  Discuss and Provide Direction (Murray)] 


12. REPORTS & COMMUNICATIONS


A. Mayor Report
1. Announcements


B. Mayoral & Council Appointments 


C.  City Council Committee Reports & Communications 


4 of 182







City Council 
Agenda – October 19, 2021 
Page 5 


D. Council Requests for Future Agenda Items 


E. City Manager Report / Department Staff 


F. City Attorney Report 


13. ADJOURNMENT to the Regular City Council Meeting of November 2, 2021 in
Remembrance of Amber Swartz.


I hereby certify under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing Agenda was 
posted on the bulletin board at the main entrance of Pinole City Hall, 2131 Pear Street 
Pinole, CA, on the City’s website, not less than 72 hours prior to the meeting date set forth 
on this agenda.  


POSTED:  October 14, 2021 at 4:00 P.M. 


_________________________________ 
Heather Iopu, CMC 
City Clerk 


5 of 182







8A 


CITY COUNCIL MEETING
MINUTES 


AUGUST 17, 2021 


1. CALL TO ORDER & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE IN HONOR OF THE US MILITARY
TROOPS


The City Council Meeting was held via Zoom videoconference and broadcast from the Pinole 
Council Chambers, 2131 Pear Street, Pinole, California.  Mayor Martínez-Rubin called the 
Regular Meeting of the City Council to order at 6:02 p.m. and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 


2. ROLL CALL, CITY CLERK’S REPORT & STATEMENT OF CONFLICT


A. COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT 


Norma Martínez-Rubin, Mayor  
Vincent Salimi, Mayor Pro Tem 
Devin Murphy, Council Member  
Anthony Tave, Council Member 
Maureen Toms, Council Member 


B. STAFF PRESENT 


Andrew Murray, City Manager 
Eric Casher, City Attorney  
Hector De La Rosa, Assistant City Manager/Deputy City Clerk  
Markisha Guillory, Finance Director  
Misha Kaur, Senior Project Manager  
David Hanham, Planning Manager 
Roxanne Stone, Management Analyst  
Chris Wynkoop, Fire Chief  
Neil Gang, Police Chief  
Michael Laughlin, Contract Community Development Manager 


Assistant City Manager/Deputy City Clerk Hector De La Rosa announced the agenda had been 
posted on Thursday, August 12, 2021, at 5:00 p.m.  All legally required notice was provided. The 
City Council had been provided revisions to Item 7A which had been posted on the City website 
after the posting of the meeting agenda.   


Following an inquiry to the Council, the Council reported there were no conflicts with any items 
on the agenda.   


3. CONVENE TO A CLOSED SESSION
Citizens may address the Council regarding a Closed Session item prior to the Council adjourning into 
the Closed Session, by first providing a speaker card to the City Clerk.   


NO CLOSED SESSION 


4. RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION TO ANNOUNCE RESULTS OF CLOSED SESSION
NONE 


6 of 182







 
Pinole City Council  
Minutes – August 17, 2021 
Page 2 
 


 
5. CITIZENS TO BE HEARD (Public Comments) 
Citizens may speak under any item not listed on the Agenda.  The time limit is 3 minutes and is subject to 
modification by the Mayor. Individuals may not share or offer time to another speaker.  Pursuant to 
provisions of the Brown Act, no action may be taken on a matter unless it is listed on the agenda, or unless 
certain emergency or special circumstances exist.  The City Council may direct staff to investigate and/or 
schedule certain matters for consideration at a future Council meeting. 
 
Rafael Menis, Pinole, thanked the Pinole Police Department, specifically Officer Jason Dean, for 
the transparency related to a recent Officer involved shooting and the fact the Police Department 
had posted a video on Facebook demonstrating the way the Officer had handled the situation with 
limited force.  He otherwise encouraged everyone to vote in the upcoming Governor’s Recall 
Election.   
 
Debbie Long, Pinole, expressed her sadness for all of the families in Afghanistan still in the throes 
of evacuation and read into the record a statement from an individual whose comments echoed 
her own sentiments on the situation.  She also directed the comments to Council member Murphy, 
explaining that was the reason people stood for the Pledge of Allegiance, to give thanks for the 
military and their families who continued to fight for those at home and abroad.  She offered her 
respectful thanks to those who had kept everyone safe without regards to politics.  
 
Alexander Jason, Pinole, referenced the fact Mayor Pro Tem Salimi had changed his vote at a 
prior City Council meeting regarding his support for the funding of improvements to the Faria 
House, which the Mayor Pro Tem had described as a common-law conflict of interest.  He stated 
that common-law conflict of interest did not exist but had been fabricated as a political payoff to 
people who had threatened to withdraw support for Mayor Pro Tem Salimi’s reelection.  He read 
into the record a lengthy quote Mayor Pro Tem Salimi had made in November 2019 and asked 
that the comments not be forgotten.  He suggested Mayor Pro Tem Salimi had betrayed the 
citizens and founding members of the City of Pinole, in particular the Faria sisters, who had been 
promised their childhood home would become a history museum to honor their past and other 
founders of the City of Pinole.  The City had also agreed to move the home to its original location 
for this purpose.  
 
Cordell Hindler noted that he was disappointed the budget process had taken much longer than 
anticipated since the City Council had held discussions into the early morning hours during City 
Council meetings.  He hoped the City Council would prioritize items when staff was more 
refreshed.  He also referenced a report from Management Partners, which included a presentation 
on budget priorities for 2021, and suggested the consultant firm of Koff & Associates be chosen 
as the firm to prepare a class and comp study given the priorities for this fiscal year which he 
hoped would be considered as a future agenda item.  He looked forward to in-person meetings 
in the future.   
 
 6. RECOGNITIONS / PRESENTATIONS / COMMUNITY EVENTS 
 


A. Proclamations  
 


1. Friends of the Pinole Creek Watershed 20th Anniversary  
 
City Council members read into the record the proclamation recognizing Friends of Pinole Creek 
Watershed on its 20th Anniversary.   


7 of 182







 
Pinole City Council  
Minutes – August 17, 2021 
Page 3 
 


 
PUBLIC COMMENTS OPENED  
 
Carol Arnold, Co-Founder, Friends of Pinole Creek Watershed, thanked the City Council for the 
proclamation, the former Pinole City Council 20 years ago which had provided assistance to the 
non-profit to become recognized, and the hardworking volunteers and Board members who had 
served for 20 years.  Friends of Pinole Creek Watershed served as the community partner working 
with many agencies implementing restoration projects, particularly the Pinole Creek 
Demonstration Project.   
 
Melissa Lawton, echoed the comments made by Ms. Arnold and stated it had been a pleasure 
working with the City of Pinole.  
 
Mayor Martinez-Rubin thanked the members of the Pinole Creek Watershed, particularly Ms. 
Arnold for her stewardship.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS CLOSED  


 


B. Presentations / Recognitions  
 
1. West Contra Costa Unified School District Presentation on Fall Reopening 


by Superintendent Dr. Hurst and School Board Trustee Jamela Smith-
Folds  
 


West Contra Costa Unified School District (WCCUSD) Board Trustee Jamela Smith-Folds 
introduced Superintendent Dr. Kenneth “Chris” Hurst, Chief Academic Officer LaResha Martin 
and Maintenance Operations Chief Luis Freese.   
 
An extensive PowerPoint presentation of the WCCUSD Fall Reopening was provided which 
highlighted the West County Mandarin School providing International Baccalaureate (IB) 
education with a global focus and dual language immersion program, Pinole Valley High School’s 
IB Program and the enrollment data and ethnicity breakdown for the program, and an overview 
of the final phase to complete improvements to Pinole Valley High School.  The scope of 
improvements included a new field house, resurfacing existing stadium field turf and track surface, 
new home bleachers and pressbox, a new baseball/softball complex, and new tennis/basketball 
courts with construction anticipated to be completed in the fall of 2022.  More information was 
available via a monthly WCCUSD newsletter and the same information could be provided to 
Pinole TV that could be streamed.  Additional facilities improvements were highlighted for 
Shannon and Collins Elementary Schools. 
 
An overview of the process for getting WCCUSD facilities ready for the fall reopening was also 
highlighted including modifications to address COVID-19 social distancing and masking 
requirements pursuant to Contra Costa County Health Department recommendation.  An 
overview of the safety guidelines was also provided with masking required in and outdoors on all 
WCCUSD facilities subject to specific exceptions and COVID-19 testing requirements for 
WCCUSD staff.  In addition, the WCCUSD was committed to building and nurturing relationships 
of mutual support and high expectations among students, families and educators via home visits 
(check-in on families as needed), phone calls/texts and family nights.  Further, the WCCUSD had 
identified the unique social, emotional, mental health, language and academic needs of every 


8 of 182







 
Pinole City Council  
Minutes – August 17, 2021 
Page 4 
 


student through the development of plans to address those needs; strengthening staffing and 
partnerships; and reimagining and rebuilding the systems, with all programs detailed at length.   
 
Responding to the Council, WCCUSD staff again clarified the IB Program and curriculum 
requirements/courses for a student to be qualified to attend a University of California (UC) 
campus; staff was working on the policy for the Citizens Bond Oversight Committee with more 
changes anticipated; reiterated the social distancing requirements pursuant to current County 
Health Department guidelines for WCCUSD campuses, with a separation of three-feet required 
where possible; policy for COVID-19 contact tracing when there was a known case, and COVID-
19 testing within the schools; and Wi-Fi hot spots provided to all students to ensure connectivity 
even during the distance learning period.  More data information could be provided from the 
WCCUSD Chief Technology Officer who was not present but who could provide a written 
response, particularly related to a request for specific data information.   
 
As to how the City Council could work with WCCUSD on its racial equity efforts and the possibility 
of a Youth Council, there was a concern for racial equity throughout the system and how to ensure 
schools were equitable in education.  The school year had been divided into four stages including 
restoring through social and emotional learning and checking in with students and adults.  The 
next phases would be assessing and determining the gaps and visioning.  Between the October 
and January 2022 timeframe, conversations would be held with the students on what they needed 
to know to be able to graduate via a graduate profile, vision around equity, justice and instruction 
and conversations on core values and mission.  After the assessment phase, a Gaps Analysis 
would be presented to the WCCUSD Board and the community and in the January timeframe 
everyone including the City Council may join in the conversation about equity issues, core values 
and how to define the vision.  A Youth Council and anything involving youth would be supported 
by the WCCUSD.   
 
The City Council encouraged any information from the WCCUSD to be provided to Pinole TV to 
ensure more investment in the community and thanked WCCUSD staff for the presentation. 
 
Mayor Martinez-Rubin specifically acknowledged Pinole Valley High School Principal Kibby 
Kleiman, who had been extremely supportive.  She was encouraged by the new programs as 
identified in the PowerPoint presentation and looked forward to future information on possible 
college pipelines for students throughout their academic years.   
 
The City Council also looked forward to future presentations from the WCCUSD and expressed 
appreciation for all efforts to keep students and teachers safe.   
 
WCCUSD Trustee Smith-Folds expressed the willingness to forward the additional information 
the City Council had requested on COVID-19 protocols and other information requested by the 
Chief Technology Officer, including any information that could be posted on Pinole TV.   
 
7. CONSENT CALENDAR 
All matters under the Consent Calendar are considered to be routine and noncontroversial.  These items 
will be enacted by one motion and without discussion.  If, however, any interested party or Council 
member(s) wishes to comment on an item, they may do so before action is taken on the Consent Calendar. 
Following comments, if a Council member wishes to discuss an item, it will be removed from the Consent 
Calendar and taken up in order after adoption of the Consent Calendar. 
PUBLIC COMMENTS OPENED  
 


9 of 182







 
Pinole City Council  
Minutes – August 17, 2021 
Page 5 
 


Rafael Menis, Pinole, referenced Item 7F, which had identified $200,000 spent in FY 2021 for the 
Hazel Street Renovation Project although it did not appear that any visible work had been done 
on the property.  He asked whether the funds had been reallocated or whether the work done was 
not visible to the public.  As to Item 7K, he had reviewed the responses to proposals and asked 
the City Manager to elaborate on the qualities that made the firm recommended for approval to 
be the best candidate.  For Item 7L, he personally supported the item and the Pinole Progressive 
Alliance, and emphasized the importance of recognizing the Ohlone people as the traditional 
custodians and occupants of this land and the need to strengthen ties with that community and 
continue the traditions brought forward.   
 
Again speaking to Item 7L, Mr. Menis referenced the resolution contained in Attachment B, (page 
408 of the agenda packet) and asked whether the regulation shown in subsection 2 was a new 
City Council policy or one that had not been implemented.     
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS CLOSED  
 
Mayor Martinez-Rubin clarified that several public comments had been received prior to the 
meeting deadline, would be part of the agenda packet, and had been posted on the City website.   
 
Assistant City Manager/Deputy City Clerk De La Rosa added that the June 1, 2021, City Council 
Meeting minutes would have to be amended with the references to the Pinole Historical Museum 
as shown on Page 3 to be corrected to read Pinole Historical Society.  On Page 4, the reference 
to Superintendent Murphy would be corrected to read Superintendent Duffy.  And with respect to 
Item 7A for the minutes of June 15, 2021, Page 15, under Item A1, Mayor’s Report the first 
sentence should be revised to read: 
 


Mayor Martinez-Rubin announced her attendance at the Mayors’ Conference with Contra 
Costa County Supervisor Diane Burgis having proposed an amendment to the County 
Ordinance related to fireworks; and participated in the Revenue Taxation Policy 
Committee sponsored by the League of California Cities with agreement on a study of the 
effects of temporary population shifts and how they may affect the dollar amount allocated 
by the State for road and street-related projects. 


 
City Attorney Eric Casher advised that Senate Bill 1436 required an oral report any time there 
was a compensation adjustment for an executive to a public agency.  For Item 7J, he reported 
the City Manager’s compensation change would be a five percent increase to the base salary of 
$225,000.   
 
Responding to Mr. Menis’ comments, Senior Project Manager Misha Kaur clarified that in January 
2020 the City had contracted with a consultant to prepare the preliminary design for storm 
drainage improvements on Hazel Street, which included the plan, profile, and pipe specifications.  
 
City Manager Andrew Murray added that the staff report for Item 7K provided some of the 
explanation and rationale for the staff recommendation to approve a contract with Cerrell to create 
a Communication and Engagement Plan. While all the firms that had submitted bids were well 
qualified, Cerrell had the experience and scope the City desired for communications engagement, 
plan and branding for an organization, spent the most time investigating Pinole, offered ideas the 
City may implement immediately and had offered approaches that would be easy to adopt and 
implement.   


10 of 182







 
Pinole City Council  
Minutes – August 17, 2021 
Page 6 
 


 
Speaking to Item 7L, City Attorney Casher explained that existing Council procedures included a 
7:00 p.m. end time for Closed Session items.   Attachment B to Item 7L provided all of the changes 
that had been recommended to the Council meeting procedures and the item was really just the 
addition of the land acknowledgement.  While some Closed Session items had gone beyond the 
7:00 p.m. deadline, staff endeavored to complete Closed Session items prior to the deadline and 
oftentimes Council meetings started earlier than normal.     
 
Council member Tave asked that Item 7I be pulled from the Consent Calendar.  He asked whether 
or not the East Bay Regional Park District (EBRPD) had been part of the discussion for the East 
Bay Wildfire Prevention and Vegetation Management Joint Powers Agency (JPA) since the 
EBRPD had the lion’s share of the square footage for a JPA.  He asked how the JPA would affect 
Measure X, Station No. 74 and many other concerns.  He also asked the City Manager and Fire 
Chief to provide clarification why the item had been placed on the Consent Calendar.   
 
Council member Murphy expressed appreciation to City Manager Murray for the work he had 
done to push the Strategic Plan forward, particularly given the comments from the public.  He also 
thanked the City Attorney for his tremendous work around the indigenous land acknowledgement 
and work with other cities around this issue.   
 


A. Approve the Minutes of the Meeting of June 1, 2021 and June 15, 2021  
 


B. Receive the July 17, 2021 – August 13, 2021 List of Warrants in the Amount of 
$2,476,134.46, the July 23, 2021 Payroll in the Amount of $492,572.13 and the 
August 6, 2021 Payroll in the Amount of $434,091.50 
 


C. Resolution Confirming Continued Existence of Local Emergency [Action:  Adopt 
Resolution per Staff Recommendation (Casher)] 


 
D. Receive the Quarterly Investment Report for the Fourth Quarter Ending June 30, 


2021 [Action:  Receive Report (Guillory)]  
 
E. Receive the Quarterly Report on Implementation of the Strategic Plan for Fiscal 


Year (FY) 2020-21 Fourth Quarter [Action:  Receive Report (Murray)]  
 
F. Fiscal Year (FY) 2021-22 Fourth Quarter Report on Implementation of Capital 


Improvement Plan (CIP) Projects [Action:  Receive Report (Kaur)] 
 
G. Adopt a Resolution Approving an Amendment to the On-Call Contract with 4Leaf, 


Inc. to Add a Task Order, Increase the Budget for Building and Permit Technician 
Services to $185,000 and Fire Prevention and Inspection Services to $240,000, 
and Appropriate Funding [Action:  Adopt Resolution per Staff 
Recommendation (Laughlin/Wynkoop)] 


 
H. Adopt a Resolution Declaring Six Police Vehicles and Two Pieces of Office 


Equipment as Surplus [Action:  Adopt Resolution per Staff Recommendation 
(Gang)] 


 


11 of 182







 
Pinole City Council  
Minutes – August 17, 2021 
Page 7 
 


I. Resolution to Participate in Discussions Regarding an East Bay Wildfire 
Prevention and Vegetation Management Joint Powers Agency [Action:  Adopt 
Resolution per Staff Recommendation (Wynkoop)] 


 
J. Resolution Approving an Amendment to the City Manager’s Employment Contract 


[Action:  Adopt Resolution per Staff Recommendation (Casher)] 
 
K. Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement with Cerrell to 


Create a Communication and Engagement Plan [Action:  Adopt Resolution per 
Staff Recommendation (Murray)] 


 
L. Resolution to Amend the City Council Meeting Procedures to Include an 


Indigenous Land Acknowledgement at the Beginning of City Council Meetings 
[Action:  Adopt Resolution per Staff Recommendation (Iopu)] 


 
M. Adopt a Resolution Approving a Revised Management Compensation and 


Benefits Plan for Management and Confidential Employees [Action:  Adopt 
Resolution per Staff Recommendation (De La Rosa)] 


 
ACTION:  Motion by Council members Tave/Murphy to Approve Consent Calendar Items A 
through M, with the exception of Item 7I and subject to modification to Item 7A.    
  
Vote:   Passed  5-0 


Ayes:   Martinez-Rubin, Salimi, Tave, Murphy, Toms 
Noes:   None  
Abstain:   None 
Absent:   None 


 
I. Resolution to Participate in Discussions Regarding an East Bay Wildfire 


Prevention and Vegetation Management Joint Powers Agency [Action:  Adopt 
Resolution per Staff Recommendation (Wynkoop)] 


 
City Manager Murray explained that the item was on the Consent Calendar since the City Council 
had requested as a future agenda item a presentation from the organization/formation committee 
for the East Bay Wildfire Prevention and Vegetation Management JPA.  A representative had 
made a presentation to the City Council at a prior meeting.  At the conclusion of the presentation, 
the City Council had requested as a follow-up item a resolution to commit the City to engage in 
dialogue about the formation of the JPA based on the template the formation committee had 
provided.  He suggested there was no natural or direct relationship between Measure X and the 
potential JPA since the JPA would serve both Contra Costa and Alameda Counties.  The scope 
and funding sources for the JPA had yet to be determined and he could not recall any mention of 
the use of Measure X funds to support the activities of the JPA, although that was not to say that 
some Measure X funds may ultimately be devoted to wildfire prevention activities.   
 
Fire Chief Chris Wynkoop added there would be no implications to Measure K, and while there 
were some wildfire mitigation proposals in the County Chiefs proposal for Measure X funds, that 
had to do with wildfire mitigation, and nothing to do with the JPA.  He emphasized the JPA did 
not currently exist, it was a formation committee proposing a JPA, and it was now up to the Council 
whether to consider the resolution.  Whether or not the resolution was approved, he would be 
happy to represent the City of Pinole in any discussions regarding the JPA.   


12 of 182







 
Pinole City Council  
Minutes – August 17, 2021 
Page 8 
 


 
Council member Tave was uncertain a resolution was needed, and City Manager Murray 
reiterated the resolution had been provided by the formation committee to engage in dialogue and 
was not a formal commitment to anything.  He and Fire Chief Wynkoop had discussed the fact 
that different levels of engagement by City staff would be required.   
 
Fire Chief Wynkoop further clarified that the EBRPD had also been extended an invitation to adopt 
a resolution with an invitation to engage that had been extended to all fire agencies.  He was 
unaware of the status of the EBRPD’s response to the request.   
 
Council member Murphy requested that the City Council formalize a process as to who would be 
representing the City of Pinole in this matter.  He offered a motion that a Council member be 
appointed to represent the City and that it be defined in the resolution.   
 
City Attorney Casher explained that the item before the City Council was the approval of the 
resolution and while there could be a friendly amendment to the resolution, the motion as 
proposed was to consider Council members to serve on sort of a subcommittee, which would 
require a discussion and could be a separate item at a subsequent City Council meeting.   
 
Council member Toms offered a motion, seconded by Council member Tave to move the item, 
and if the Council needed to consider a future agenda item to consider a Council representative 
that could be so identified.   
 
Mayor Martinez-Rubin asked for clarification from the City Attorney on the motion and City 
Attorney Casher read into the record the following clause as contained in Attachment A to the 
staff report for this item, as follows:   
 


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT, the City Council of the City of Pinole does 
hereby agree to make staff and/or officials available to participate in negotiations and 
meetings convened by a coalition of local stakeholders to consider formation of a regional 
East Bay Wildfire Protection Vegetation Management Joint Powers Agency to address fire 
safety in the East Bay Area. 


 
As a result, it was noted the resolution already anticipated and contemplated some level of 
participation by members of the City Council.  A more robust discussion about who would be 
appointed and the scope would be more appropriate for a future meeting.  
 
Council member Murphy interpreted the comments from the presenter who had made the initial 
presentation to the Council on the JPA that there would be a Steering Committee working to 
develop what would be the JPA.  He recommended that someone on the City Council in addition 
to a staff member, be considered in that it would be valuable for those parties to be identified to 
avoid chaos in terms of who was or was not representing the City of Pinole.  He would be happy 
to raise the issue as a request for a future agenda item but wanted the resolution to be more 
specific. 
 
Council member Toms suggested the Now, Therefore be it Resolved Clause, as shown on Page 
1, of Attachment A, be modified to read:   


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT, the City Council of the City of Pinole does 
hereby agree to make staff and an official available to participate in negotiations and 


13 of 182







 
Pinole City Council  
Minutes – August 17, 2021 
Page 9 
 


meetings convened by a coalition of local stakeholders to consider formation of a regional 
East Bay Wildfire Protection Vegetation Management Joint Powers Agency to address fire 
safety in the East Bay Area. 


 
Council member Toms amended her motion, seconded by Mayor Martinez-Rubin to approve Item 
7I, subject to the modification of the Now, Therefore be it Resolved Clause, as shown on Page 1, 
of Attachment A, as just read into the record.    
 
Mayor Martinez-Rubin clarified with the City Attorney that a Roll Call vote was not required and 
the motion carried with no abstentions or no votes.   
 
8. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
Citizens wishing to speak regarding a Public Hearing item should fill out a speaker card prior to the 
completion of the presentation, by first providing a speaker card to the City Clerk. An official who engaged in 
an ex parté communication that is the subject of a Public Hearing must disclose the communication on the record prior 
to the start of the Public Hearing. 
 


NONE  
 


9. OLD BUSINESS 
 


A. Rescind and Reconsider Resolution 2021-35 Condemning Donald Trump [Action:  
Consider Adoption of Resolution per Staff Recommendation (Murray)] 


 
City Manager Murray presented the staff report and asked the City Council to rescind and 
reconsider Resolution 2021-35 Condemning Donald Trump and adopt the new resolution 
contained in the staff report.   
 
City Attorney Casher advised that a two-thirds vote of the City Council was required to rescind a 
previously adopted resolution and the vote on the new resolution required a majority vote.   


 
Mayor Martinez-Rubin offered a motion, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Salimi to rescind and 
reconsider Resolution 2021-35 Condemning Donald Trump and approving the new resolution 
contained in the staff report.   
 
Council member Toms had previously abstained from the vote on the initial resolution and 
suggested the City Council did not have the purview nor was it within staff’s tasks to put partisan 
judgmental resolutions together.  While she had personally been disgusted by the actions of the 
former President leading up to and after January 6, 2021, it was not the place of the City Council 
to take this action.  She pointed out that neither the Contra Costa County Board of Supervisors 
nor any school boards or any other cities had adopted similar resolutions.  As a result, she would 
again abstain from the vote on this item.   


 
PUBLIC COMMENTS OPENED  
 
Rafael Menis, Pinole, thanked Mayor Pro Tem Salimi and Council member Toms who had spoken 
with him separately to offer their perspectives.  He disagreed with Council member Toms that the 
City Council did not have the power to consider such a resolution and could in fact praise a 
particular group or individuals for different reasons and may chose who to rebuke or condemn.  
The whereas clauses contained in the resolution led to the logical points and conclusions, he 


14 of 182







 
Pinole City Council  
Minutes – August 17, 2021 
Page 10 
 


found the whereas clauses to be factual, and that former President Trump had attacked the 
Constitution the City Council had sworn to uphold.  It was within the Council’s collective purview 
to respond to our system of government and support our system of government, and when people 
took actions to undermine those sources of authority it was within the purview of the City Council 
to condemn and rebuke it.   
  
Debbie Long questioned why staff time was being used to consider a resolution on Donald Trump 
since he had been out of office for over nine months.  She suggested this was a national political 
agenda, old news, and the City Council was wasting staff time and taxpayer money revisiting this 
issue.  She would rather hear how the City Council was doing on other issues such as working 
with State Assembly members and members of Congress to address drought conditions, explain 
how funds from 2014 Proposition 1 Water Bond had been spent, what steps were being taken to  
secure more money from the State, how Assembly members and Congress were addressing 
wildfires and how they were replacing fire volunteers from prisons, the steps being taken in 
deforestation and management of the forest, how new businesses were being attracted to the 
City of Pinole, and how the Disaster Preparedness Plan was developing, along with other 
important issues.  Council members had been elected to do the business of the City and not waste 
time on national politics, particularly when it was old news.   The City Council as stewards of the 
City should be spending staff time, and taxpayer money doing the business of Pinole and let the 
members of Congress and the Senate address national politics. 
   
PUBLIC COMMENTS CLOSED  
 
Council member Tave recognized there were other issues going on, but he appreciated that the 
resolution had been brought back for reconsideration.  He urged the City Council to bear true 
faith, uphold the Constitution and consider supporting the new resolution.  In his opinion, the 
resolution was a way for the City Council to bring the community together and illustrate the City 
Council was not in agreement with what had happened.  He urged the City Council to support the 
resolution.   
 
Mayor Martinez-Rubin found the initial resolution had not brought unity to the City and there were 
differing opinions.  She condemned the actions of the former President and she did not see this 
as a partisan issue but a condemnation of behavior that was unacceptable on any level, 
particularly since a lot of the trending regarding governance came from the federal level down to 
the local level.  She wanted the City Council to spend the time discussing local matters but they 
were in a time in history that this other matter had occurred.  She supported the resolution 
condemning Donald Trump.  


 
Mayor Martinez-Rubin restated her motion to Rescind and Reconsider Resolution 2021-35 
Condemning Donald Trump and adopting the New Resolution as submitted.   
 
City Attorney Casher asked the City Council to consider two motions; one to Rescind and 
Reconsider Resolution 2021-35 Condemning Donald Trump, and a second vote on the approval 
of the new resolution.   


 
ACTION:  Motion by Mayor Martinez-Rubin/Mayor Pro Tem Salimi to Rescind and 
Reconsider Resolution 2021-35 Condemning Donald Trump.     
Vote:   Failed   3-1-1 


Ayes:   Martinez-Rubin, Salimi, Tave  


15 of 182







 
Pinole City Council  
Minutes – August 17, 2021 
Page 11 
 


Noes:   Murphy 
Abstain:   Toms  
Absent:   None 


 
City Attorney Casher advised that with only three votes in favor of the motion the motion failed.  
As a result, the prior resolution was still in effect and would remain in effect.   
 
Council member Toms offered to change her vote to a yes vote to provide a majority vote, and 
City Attorney Casher confirmed four votes would be sufficient for the motion to pass.   


 
ACTION:  Motion by Mayor Martinez-Rubin/Mayor Pro Tem Salimi to Rescind and 
Reconsider Resolution 2021-35 Condemning Donald Trump.     
 
Vote:   Passed  4-1 


Ayes:   Martinez-Rubin, Salimi, Tave, Toms  
Noes:   Murphy 
Abstain:   None   
Absent:   None 


 
ACTION:  Motion by Mayor Martinez-Rubin/Mayor Pro Tem Salimi to adopt the New 
Resolution submitted to the City Council as shown in the agenda packet.    
 
Vote:   Passed  4-0-1 


Ayes:   Martinez-Rubin, Murphy, Salimi, Tave  
Noes:   None  
Abstain:   Toms  
Absent:   None 
 


B. Effectiveness of Current Code Enforcement Program [Action:  Receive Report 
(Laughlin)] 
 


Contract Community Development Manager Michael Laughlin presented the staff report and 
Code Enforcement Officer Justine Sidie highlighted cases from 2021 to illustrate the effectiveness 
of the Code Enforcement Program.   
 
Mayor Martinez-Rubin and the entire City Council welcomed Code Enforcement Officer Sidie, 
recognized that her work was not easy, and appreciated the information on due process and the 
time to address code enforcement complaints. 
 
Fire Chief Wynkoop also expressed his appreciation to Code Enforcement Officer Sidie whose 
efforts also provided assistance to the Fire Department.   
 
Responding to the Council, Code Enforcement Officer Sidie clarified the collaboration efforts 
between Code Enforcement and the Fire Department, particularly related to weed abatement and 
open spaces; the notification process of any code enforcement violations which sometimes 
involved a verbal warning or courtesy notice with a timeline identified for compliance and with 
extensions oftentimes available; the process to address repeat offenders; and when citations or 
when a Notice and Order to Abate were issued, with voluntary compliance encouraged.   
 


16 of 182







 
Pinole City Council  
Minutes – August 17, 2021 
Page 12 
 


City Manager Murray commented that the code enforcement function was complicated and 
challenging and there was a need to strike the right balance.  The intent was for residents to 
voluntarily reach compliance as it related to any code enforcement, with education a key factor. 
He was appreciative of the excellent staff and code enforcement program.   
 
Council member Toms reported she had received a comment from a neighbor on Pinon Avenue 
after the vegetation abatement had been completed who had been pleased with the situation that 
had been brought into compliance.  She also spoke to consistent code enforcement complaints 
she had received about people building fences aligned behind the sidewalk within the public utility 
easements and asked whether there was a way to educate the public on proper placement of a 
fence.  She referred to a resident complaint about a neighbor who worked on cars in the garage 
and who parked vehicles on the street and asked the best way for residents to assist code 
enforcement to have that type of situation brought under control.   
 
Officer Sidie explained that street parking was the responsibility of the Police Department, streets 
allowed for public parking, but inoperable vehicles or vehicles left on the street after a certain 
period of time could be tagged by the Police Department for removal.  In terms of vehicle repairs 
at a residence, residents were allowed 72 hours to conduct minor repairs (maintenance of the 
vehicles) with major maintenance required behind closed doors.  Education was important to 
educate the public on the proper placement of fences and that issue could be discussed internally.   
 
Mayor Pro Tem Salimi asked whether Code Enforcement was proactive or reactive.  He had 
received e-mails about code enforcement issues on the weekends and asked what was being 
done to address code enforcement during those times, to which Officer Sidie confirmed she was 
both proactive and reactive with code enforcement.  While code enforcement was not available 
on the weekends, an emergency after-hours telephone number was available for building 
violations with 4Leaf called out for emergency cases.  If a complaint was received for typical code 
enforcement items on weekends, they would be addressed the next business day.   
 
Council member Tave asked how unkempt rental properties would be addressed, and Officer 
Sidie described the City’s Rental Inspection Program, where all rental properties had to be listed, 
licensed, and subsequently inspected with any violations on the property identified.  Inspections 
were required for rentals every three years, and although due to COVID-19 inspections had been 
delayed they were being addressed.   Owners of rental properties were required to address any 
identified violations on a property with re-inspection to occur thereafter.  Notification of any 
violations were provided via mail to the property owner in addition to a mailed notice to the 
occupant, with a second notice (if needed) posted on the front door of the property.   
 
Mayor Martinez-Rubin asked for more detail on the relationship between Republic Services and 
the City’s Code Enforcement Program, and Caltrans as related to homeless encampments and 
rising complaints about donation boxes on private property. 
 
Officer Sidie explained that the Police Department had a contract with Republic Services for a 
free dumpster day for citizens and she had requested consideration of more dumpster days which 
would assist with illegal dumping, but illegal dumping would remain a problem regardless.  
Republic Services removed illegal dumping along City properties and public rights-of-way (ROW) 
although items on private property were the responsibility of private property owners.  Citations 
and abatement were the only tools to address those situations.  She did not work closely with 
Caltrans as related to homeless encampments along the freeways.  For homeless encampments 


17 of 182







 
Pinole City Council  
Minutes – August 17, 2021 
Page 13 
 


on City property, it was the City’s responsibility to remove trash and debris but there were certain 
regulations in place regarding the homeless and she would have to speak to the Police Chief 
further about the homeless community in Pinole.   
 
As to the periodic pop-up of donation boxes on private properties, multiple complaints had been 
received by code enforcement with most of the property owners claiming they have not provided 
permission for the donation boxes to be placed, and removing those donation boxes had been a 
challenge.  Donation boxes were permitted in Pinole on commercial properties subject to an 
approved Conditional Use Permit (CUP).  It was also clarified that illegal dumping was a criminal 
violation addressed by the Police Department.   
 
Police Chief Neil Gang commended the work of Code Enforcement Officer Sidie and confirmed 
the Police Department worked collaboratively with Code Enforcement and conducted 
investigations in the event of illegal dumping.  He also confirmed that citations had been issued 
for illegal dumping involving individuals who lived outside of the Pinole community but noted the 
Police Department had no control over the District Attorney’s Office prosecution of such criminal 
activities.  There was no process in place to charge or bill an individual for illegal dumping since 
it may be part of the criminal prosecution.   
 
City Manager Murray added there had been discussions between the Police Department and 
Code Enforcement on possibly hardening the illegal dumping hot spots but short of evidence to 
pursue a case, it was expensive to install surveillance in the more remote hot spots of the City.  
Additional security measures had been added to some of the access points to some of the hot 
spots and the City Council may want to consider in the future whether it was appropriate and 
affordable to invest in other hardening and video surveillance in the hot spot locations.  He further 
added that illegal dumping on a sidewalk, as an example, was not a code enforcement issue.  It 
was potentially criminal illegal dumping and adding resources to address some of those issues 
had been discussed.   
 
Officer Sidie clarified that the property owner was responsible for illegal dumping on the sidewalk 
up to the face of the curb.  Debris or trash had been removed by the Public Works Department 
on occasion for health and safety issues, or as a courtesy for a senior citizen, but was not 
something the City would typically do.  In such cases, she would make contact with the property 
owner and explain the process of removal.  Republic Services also offered pick-up for large bulky 
items, but it may take some time and the property owner would be responsible for clearing the 
public ROW either moving any items onto their property fully or removing it from view all together.    
 
Police Chief Gang clarified even if a license plate was identified for anyone caught illegally 
dumping in the City, clear and convincing evidence was required and the person must match the 
description.  A license plate alone would not equal prosecution or a criminal charge.   
 
Contract Community Development Manager Laughlin further added that code enforcement 
brought revenue into the City but not enough to cover the position of the Code Enforcement 
Officer. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS OPENED  


Rafael Menis, Pinole, thanked Officer Sidie for her work to rehabilitate the area of Pinon Avenue.  
He otherwise understood the property owner of the Pinon Avenue property was presumably able 


18 of 182







 
Pinole City Council  
Minutes – August 17, 2021 
Page 14 
 


to pay their property taxes and the County Assessor’s Office had accurate information to reach 
the property owner if taxes were not being paid by the property owner.    
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS CLOSED  
 
As to whether or not the City was able to access the County Assessor’s Office database to identity 
property owners and in response to the Mayor, City Attorney Casher understood that resource 
was available as long as the information was publicly available and it could be an option the City 
may pursue.   
 
Mr. Laughlin commented, however, that if they had a property owner that lived out of town or used 
management companies that information may not be publicly available and it was very difficult to 
identify the management company.  In the case of the Pinon Avenue property, it had been difficult 
to reach the property owner.   
 
10. NEW BUSINESS 
 


A. American Rescue Plan (ARPA) Funds and Additional Fiscal Year (FY) 2021-22 
Appropriations Process [Action:  Consider Approval of Staff Recommendation 
(Guillory)] 
 


Finance Director Markisha Guillory provided a PowerPoint presentation on the American Rescue 
Plan Act (ARPA) funds and additional Fiscal Year (FY) 2021-22 appropriations process as 
outlined in the staff report, and clarified the agenda item was a recommendation on the process 
and not on specific appropriations where a discussion would occur during upcoming budget 
workshops.   
 
As noted in the staff report, at its meeting on August 10, 2021, the Finance Subcommittee had 
met to discuss the appropriations process for the ARPA funds allocated to the City of Pinole, and 
for additional Fiscal Year (FY) 2021/22 appropriations.  The Finance Subcommittee’s 
recommendations were provided, as follows: 
 


Engage an outside consultant to facilitate two budget workshops.  The City had received 
a proposal from HdL Companies, the City’s sales and property tax consultant to assist in 
facilitating the workshops.   
 
In addition to electronic communication, send mailers to all households in Pinole to expand 
outreach and encourage participation.   
 
Host two budget workshops outside of the normal City Council meetings, preferably on 
Saturdays: The first workshop would involve brainstorming ideas on allocating ARPA 
funds and additional FY 2021/22 appropriations, then narrow down the top ideas for further 
consideration and analysis.  The second workshop would involve decision-making by the 
City Council on the top ideas identified during the first workshop; and  


 
Consider using interactive technologies (with functionalities, such as polling and voting) in 
advance of or during workshops to enhance community engagement. 


The recommendations had been presented to the City Council for its input and direction. 
 


19 of 182







 
Pinole City Council  
Minutes – August 17, 2021 
Page 15 
 


Responding to the Council, Finance Director Guillory advised the format of the budget workshops 
had yet to be determined whether they would be in the Zoom virtual format or in-person, and a 
hybrid format had been discussed.  At this time, she anticipated the meetings would be in a Zoom 
format.   
 
City Attorney Casher detailed the Governor’s Executive Order regarding public meetings, with 
meetings to be conducted virtually until September 30, 2021.  Unless the Executive Order 
changed, meetings after September 30 would be in-person or some sort of hybrid in-person/Zoom 
format.   
 
City Manager Murray explained that the City had adequate funds to bring a consultant on-board 
depending on the scope and if the City Council supported the process as staff had outlined, staff 
would find a consultant and communicate the consultant’s approach to the City Council.  Unless 
the process was radically different from the staff outline, it would not come back to the City Council 
for approval.  The City Council would be apprised of the consultant’s plan via a memorandum.   
He asked for time, at least a month, between the first and second workshops to allow staff the 
opportunity to research the costs of some of the different ideas under consideration.  He asked 
the City Council to provide direction to staff on the timeline when the first workshop should be 
considered.   
 
In terms of mailing mailers to all households in Pinole to expand outreach and encourage 
participation, Mayor Martinez-Rubin suggested notices be posted in different locations around the 
City with the framing of the workshop goals to be clearly described to ensure people did not have 
different expectations on the use of the ARPA funds.   
 
Council member Murphy suggested staff also reach out to local schools to provide 
announcements on the school’s electronic billboards.   
 
City Attorney Casher provided further clarification in the event that meetings were allowed to 
return to in-person format.  If a Council member was unable to attend an in-person meeting, he 
clarified they may still participate virtually but their meeting location would have to be identified 
consistent with Brown Act regulations.   
 
The City Council discussed potential dates for the two workshops and there was consensus for 
the first workshop to be held on Saturday, October 9, 2021, from 9:30 a.m. to around 1:00 p.m., 
with the second workshop scheduled for Saturday, November 6, 2021.     
 
City Manager Murray advised that once he had the specifics including the facilitator, he would 
share the information with the City Council.  He asked the City Council to formalize action via a 
motion approving the Finance Subcommittee’s recommendations and the dates for the two 
workshops.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS OPENED  
 
Ms. Stone reported there were no public comments for this item. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS CLOSED  
ACTION:  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Salimi/Council member Murphy to Approve the 
Finance Subcommittee’s Recommendations on the Appropriations Process and the dates 


20 of 182







 
Pinole City Council  
Minutes – August 17, 2021 
Page 16 
 


for the two workshops, with the first workshop to be held on Saturday, October 9, 2021 
and the second workshop scheduled for Saturday, November 6, 2021.        
 
Vote:   Passed  5-0 


Ayes:   Martinez-Rubin, Murphy, Salimi, Tave, Toms   
Noes:   None  
Abstain:   None  
Absent:   None 
 


B. Appoint a Council Member and Up to Two (2) Alternates to Serve as Voting 
Delegates at the League of California Cities Annual Conference [Action:  By 
Minute Order Appoint Delegate and Alternates and Provide Direction on 
League Resolutions (De Las Rosa)] 


 
Assistant City Manager/Deputy City Clerk De La Rosa presented the staff report and asked the 
City Council to appoint a Council member and up to two Alternates to serve as Voting Delegates 
at the League of California Cities Annual Conference.  He also provided an overview of the two 
resolutions to be considered at the Conference.     
 
Mayor Martinez-Rubin planned to attend the League of California Cities Annual Conference, and 
Mayor Pro Tem Salimi was available to attend but had not registered and was willing to give the 
opportunity to another Council member.  
 
Council members Tave and Murphy expressed the willingness to serve as Alternate delegates.   


 
ACTION:  Motion by Council member Toms/Mayor Pro Tem Salimi to Appoint Mayor 
Martinez-Rubin as the Delegate, Council member Tave as the first Alternate and Council 
member Murphy as the Second Alternate at the League of California Cities Annual 
Conference.   
 
Vote:   Passed  5-0 


Ayes:   Martinez-Rubin, Murphy, Salimi, Tave, Toms   
Noes:   None  
Abstain:   None  
Absent:   None 


 
PUBLIC COMMENTS OPENED  
 
Ms. Stone reported there were no public comments for this item. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS CLOSED    


 
ACTION:  Motion by Council members Toms/Tave for the Council Delegate and Alternates 
to the League of California Cities Annual Conference to Support Resolution #1, Fair and 
Equitable Distribution of the Bradley Burns 1% Local Sales Tax from In-State Online 
Purchases.   
 
Vote:   Passed  5-0 


Ayes:   Martinez-Rubin, Murphy, Salimi, Tave, Toms   


21 of 182







 
Pinole City Council  
Minutes – August 17, 2021 
Page 17 
 


Noes:   None  
Abstain:   None  
Absent:   None 
 


ACTION:  Motion by Council members Toms/Murphy for the Council Delegate and 
Alternates to the League of California Cities Annual Conference to Support Resolution #2, 
Seeks appropriation of funding to the California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC) to 
inspect Railroad lines and ensure cleanliness and public safety of communities abutting 
the Railroad Right of Way.    
 
Vote:   Passed  5-0 


Ayes:   Martinez-Rubin, Murphy, Salimi, Tave, Toms   
Noes:   None  
Abstain:   None  
Absent:   None 


 
11. REPORTS & COMMUNICATIONS  


 
A. Mayor Report 
 


1. Announcements 
 


Mayor Martinez-Rubin reported the Historic Preservation Committee had met on July 27 with a 
presentation from the retired Director of the National Park Service, John Jarvis, on historic 
preservation, and who reported that the Committee had concluded its discussion on the overlay 
map associated with the ordinance and had begun discussions of the Old Town Design 
Guidelines.  The next Historic Preservation Committee meeting had been scheduled for 
September 1, 2021 at 5:00 p.m., with members of the public encouraged to participate via Zoom.   
 
A WestCAT Board meeting had been held on July 29, 2021, when WestCAT had voted to approve 
free fares throughout the month of September and on October 6, 2021 as part of California Clean 
Air Days; the August 5 Mayors’ Conference included an update of the City Manager’s Association 
(CMA) for Contra Costa County efforts on collaboration with County Behavioral Health staff to 
create a model for the crisis intervention response; and at the beginning of this month the Miles 
Hall Community Crisis Hub Pilot would be underway and be staffed by a multi-disciplinary team.  
She reported on the discussions during the August 10 Finance Subcommittee meeting with a 
presentation and discussion of ARPA funds and additional appropriation for this fiscal year.    
 


B.   Mayoral & Council Appointments  
 
None  
  


C.   City Council Committee Reports & Communications 
 
Council member Tave reported the Household Hazardous Waste Drop-off had been scheduled 
for August 28, 2021 at 3301 Morningside Drive, El Sobrante; he was working with the 
RecycleMore Director to discuss ways to increase Dumpster Days and bins for free composting 
for the community; children had started school with information on the WCCUSD website; and he 
looked forward to the League of California Cities Conference.  


22 of 182







 
Pinole City Council  
Minutes – August 17, 2021 
Page 18 
 


 
Council member Murphy thanked the volunteers and members of the Recreation Department for 
the ongoing Food Bank Drive distribution held the second Monday of each month at 9:00 a.m.at 
the Senior Center.  He also reported that most Marin Clean Energy (MCE) Board meetings for 
the month of August had been canceled for summer recess, with all information on MCE Board 
meetings for the month of September available on the MCE website.  He encouraged business 
owners and residents to take advantage of the programs offered by MCE.  In addition, he would 
be hosting his coffee chat via Zoom on Sunday, August 22 at 9:00 a.m. and on September 15 
would participate in the Pinole for Fair Government Town Hall.   
 
Council member Toms reported that the Bay Area Rapid Transit (BART) system would have 
reduced fares the same period as WestCAT throughout the month of September and on October 
6, 2021 as part of California Clean Air Days.  She had been following all of the Measure X Advisory 
Committee discussions, some of which related to services in the City of Pinole, and encouraged 
interested residents to participate in the Measure X meetings held each Wednesday at 5:00 p.m. 
via Zoom when public comment was welcome.  Topics discussed by the committee included 
mental health issues, fire services, sustainability, library services and transportation for people 
with disabilities and seniors. 
 


D. Council Requests for Future Agenda Items 
 


Council member Tave requested a future agenda item for a presentation from the City Manager 
on the challenges the Permit Department was facing to explain to the public the process.  
Consensus given.   
 
Council member Toms requested a future agenda item for a Climate Emergency Resolution.   
 
City Manager Murray stated there had been a requested agenda item some time ago spurred by 
the adoption of Contra Costa County’s climate emergency declaration resolution.  An item had 
been tentatively scheduled for the next City Council meeting for a presentation on City activities 
to address climate change including in relation to the County’s climate emergency resolution and 
the City’s Sustainability Element, with the focus of the presentation not on the County’s resolution 
itself.  He suggested if the City Council desired a report on climate action and consideration of a 
resolution the same as the County’s climate emergency declaration that could be agendized and 
would not create additional staff work.   
 
Council member Toms amended her request for a future agenda item for staff to present a report 
on climate action and consideration of a resolution the same as the County’s climate emergency 
declaration.  Consensus given.   
 
Council member Toms requested a future agenda item for a Council member to be appointed as 
a delegate to join staff on the East Bay Wildfire Prevention and Vegetation Management JPA.  
Consensus given.   
 
After consensus was given, City Manager Murray commented the resolution was to have staff 
and a selected City official participate in discussions, different from participation in a formation 
committee which assumed a position regarding how they feel about the JPA.  The discussions 
were not well defined at this time.  Staff did not see its charge at this time as advocating for the 
JPA, which would come back to the City Council to obtain direction.   


23 of 182







 
Pinole City Council  
Minutes – August 17, 2021 
Page 19 
 


 
Council member Toms understood if they had a Council member involved in the early discussions 
they could report back, but if staff decided the City should not move forward with the JPA the 
Council would not be involved and the matter would be dropped. 
 
City Manager Murray clarified it was fine for both staff and a Council member to participate in 
discussions, and any decision required a majority vote of the Council. 


 
Mayor Martinez-Rubin requested a future agenda item to have a discussion about participating in 
the United Against Hate Week campaign to be held in November 2021 and asked that the Council 
consider Pinole specific activities in support of the campaign.  Consensus given.   
 
Council member Murphy requested a future agenda item to discuss how the City could support 
the Christmas Tree Lighting ceremony.    
 
City Manager Murray reported the Christmas Tree Lighting Ceremony had been included in the 
budget, would take place, additional Council authorization was not needed, and there would be 
an additional agenda item at the next Council meeting to discuss the downtown tree lighting.  
 
Council member Tave requested a future agenda item for a presentation on the Car Show.   
 
City Manager Murray reported the Car Show had been scheduled for September 26, 2021.  The 
City would be collaborating with the organizer to get the word out, information could be provided 
to the Council via regular communication channels, but a presentation could be made to the City 
Council as well.   
 
Mayor Martinez-Rubin requested an extended update on the Car Show at the next meeting of the 
City Council.   
 
Mayor Pro Tem Salimi requested a future agenda item to create a quarterly mailer to City 
residents providing an update on City matters.   
 
Mayor Martinez-Rubin suggested that would be one of the tasks that would be part of the 
Communications and Engagement Plan with the consultant firm to provide ideas to the City 
Council for consideration.   She suggested a separate agenda item was not needed.   
 


E. City Manager Report / Department Staff 
 


City Manager Murray reported that the Coastal Clean Up would be held on September 18, 2021, 
and the Pinole Car Show on September 26, with additional information on the City website.    
 


F. City Attorney Report 
 
None   
 
12. ADJOURNMENT to the Regular City Council Meeting of September 7, 2021, in 


Remembrance of Amber Swartz.  
 


24 of 182







 
Pinole City Council  
Minutes – August 17, 2021 
Page 20 
 


At 10:14 p.m. Mayor Martinez-Rubin adjourned the meeting to the Regular City Council Meeting 
of September 7, 2021, in Remembrance of Amber Swartz.   
 
Submitted by: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Heather Iopu, CMC 
City Clerk 
 
Approved by City Council:  
 
 


25 of 182







8A-1 
 


CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MINUTES 


September 7, 2021 
 


 
1. CALL TO ORDER & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE IN HONOR OF THE US MILITARY 


TROOPS 
 
The City Council Meeting was held via Zoom videoconference and broadcast from the Pinole 
Council Chambers, 2131 Pear Street, Pinole, California.  Mayor Martínez-Rubin called the 
Regular Meeting of the City Council to order at 6:01 p.m. and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
2. LAND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT  
Before we begin, we would like to acknowledge the Ohlone people, who are the traditional custodians of 
this land.  We pay our respects to the Ohlone elders, past, present and future, who call this place, Ohlone 
Land, the land that Pinole sits upon, their home.  We are proud to continue their tradition of coming together 
and growing as a community.  We thank the Ohlone community for their stewardship and support, and we 
look forward to strengthening our ties as we continue our relationship of mutual respect and understanding.  
 
3. ROLL CALL, CITY CLERK’S REPORT & STATEMENT OF CONFLICT 
 


A. COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT 
 
Norma Martínez-Rubin, Mayor  
Vincent Salimi, Mayor Pro Tem 
Devin Murphy, Council Member  
Anthony Tave, Council Member 
Maureen Toms, Council Member 
 
 B. STAFF PRESENT 
 
Andrew Murray, City Manager 
Heather Iopu, City Clerk 
Eric Casher, City Attorney   
Hector De La Rosa, Assistant City Manager  
David Hanham, Planning Manager  
Markisha Guillory, Finance Director 
Kathleen Gallagher, Sustainability Consultant, CSG 
 
City Clerk Iopu announced the agenda had been posted on Thursday, September 2, 2021, at 4:00 
p.m.  All legally required notice was provided with written comments received for Items 6 and 11A.  
Comments had been posted to the agenda page of the City website and distributed to the City 
Council in advance of the meeting.  
 
Following an inquiry, the Council reported there were no conflicts with any items on the agenda.   
 
 
4. CONVENE TO A CLOSED SESSION   
Citizens may address the Council regarding a Closed Session item prior to the Council adjourning into 
the Closed Session, by first providing a speaker card to the City Clerk.   
 


26 of 182







 
Pinole City Council  
Minutes – September 7, 2021 
Page 2 
 


A. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS  
Gov. Code § 54957.6 
Agency designated representatives:  City Manager Andrew Murray, Assistant City 
Manager Hector De La Rosa, City Attorney Eric Casher  
Employee organizations:  AFSCME, LOCAL 1, IAFF  
 


B. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS 
Gov. Code § 54957.6 
Agency designated representatives:  City Manager Andrew Murray, Assistant City 
Manager De La Rosa, Assistant City Attorney Alex Mog 
Employee organizations:  PPEA   


 
5. RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION TO ANNOUNCE RESULTS OF CLOSED SESSION 
 
At 7:31 p.m. Mayor Martinez-Rubin reconvened the meeting to open session and announced 
there was no reportable action from the Closed Session. 
 
6. CITIZENS TO BE HEARD (Public Comments) 
Citizens may speak under any item not listed on the Agenda.  The time limit is 3 minutes and is subject to 
modification by the Mayor. Individuals may not share or offer time to another speaker.  Pursuant to 
provisions of the Brown Act, no action may be taken on a matter unless it is listed on the agenda, or unless 
certain emergency or special circumstances exist.  The City Council may direct staff to investigate and/or 
schedule certain matters for consideration at a future Council meeting. 
 
Alexander Jason, Pinole, asked the City Attorney to opine if a City Council member had 
contributed financially to the non-profit 501 (C)(3) Pinole History Museum whether it would be a 
conflict of interest for that member to vote in favor of allocating improvements to the City-owned 
Faria House; if a City Council member had contributed financially to the same non-profit whether 
it would be a conflict of interest for that member to vote in favor of the City’s funding and/or support 
the establishment of a Pinole History Museum; and if a City Council member had a question about 
an official potential conflict of interest whether that member should consult the City Attorney or 
rely upon the opinion of a random citizen.  
 
David Ruport, Pinole, emphasized freedom of speech was the right of the general public, 
guaranteed by the Constitution through the First Amendment, and everyone had the right to 
express their thoughts without fear of government suppression and/or retaliation.  He suggested 
this inalienable right was not absolute with the Citizens to be Heard portion of the meeting agenda, 
a well-established forum where citizens may express his/her opinions to City government, but 
those opinions were not unbridled and subject to scrutiny when they were inaccurate and/or false.   
He found that a small number of people had opted to use this forum as a personal playground to 
spew bombastic diatribes at elected and non-elected officials.  While he was not suggesting such 
language should be prohibited, the veracity of these statements should be challenged when the 
truth indicated something to the contrary.   
 
 
Mr. Ruport stated over the past few months former elected officials and Council members Debbie 
Long and Roy Swearingen, and more recently Pinole citizen Alexander Jason, a member of the 
Pinole History Museum Board of Directors, had decided to question whether City Council member 
Murphy and Mayor Pro Tem Salimi had the capacity to perform the duties of their elected offices. 
These former City Council members disagreed with Council member Murphy’s constitutional and 


27 of 182







 
Pinole City Council  
Minutes – September 7, 2021 
Page 3 
 


protected right not to cite the Pledge of Allegiance.  Mr. Jason had challenged the concept of a 
common-law conflict of interest and had questioned Mayor Pro Tem Salimi’s use of the doctrine 
to recuse himself from further participation in the Faria House Museum project.    During prior City 
Council meetings, the City Attorney and Council member Murphy addressed the contentions, 
provided adequate and accurate information to dispute the comments, and invitations had been 
extended to those individuals to discuss the matter further but with no response.  During the 
August 17, 2021, City Council meeting, Mr. Jason stated during Citizens to be Heard that 
common-law conflicts did not exist.   He asked that Mr. Jason contact him directly since such 
conflicts did exist and there were cases that could be cited to the contrary.   
 
Rafael Menis, Pinole, commented on the amount of discussion during this meeting and prior City 
Council meetings regarding conflicts of interest.  He found a document the State of California had 
posted online regarding conflicts of interest and read into the record an extensive segment on the 
common-law doctrine.  Given that information, common-law interest did exist, had been called 
out by the State about the types of conflict that existed and may apply to public officials, and was 
more specific than information previously provided by the City Attorney.  On another matter, he 
asked whether there was a prohibition on accepting free or discounted transportation services 
such as the discounts being offered by WestCAT and BART for the month of September and 
whether that would apply to public officials.   
 
Jane Cole, Pinole, spoke to her personal experience working with the Tuolumne County History 
Museum located in the City of Sonora.  As a long-time resident of Pinole, the Faria House had 
been a wonderful landmark and she questioned why the City was delaying pursuit of the resource 
the Faria family had made available to the City.  She emphasized this was the time to maintain, 
and when possible, develop the property.  She found the infighting destressing and urged 
everyone to consider the common interest.   
 
Debbie Long, Pinole, read into the record the names of 14 members of the military who had 
recently lost their lives serving their country in Afghanistan.  She stated the deaths of those 14 
people were why Council member Murphy should be standing for the Pledge of Allegiance, and 
reported there were many other service men and women still in the hospital that deserved 
everyone’s prayers as well as many Americans who had been left behind in Afghanistan, not to 
mention the Afghani’s who had worked besides American military that had been left to face the 
unknown.  While it was clear that Council member Murphy would not stand for the Pledge of 
Allegiance or say why he would not stand, which she acknowledged was his right, she found his 
actions and response, or lack thereof had been shielded by the pandemic and at some time he 
would have to face the people and explain his actions.   
 
Eric Payne, a member of the California Pan-Ethnic Health Network, supported greater investment 
in public greening efforts and expansion of outdoor education and recreational opportunities to 
integrate public and cultural arts, provide greater investment in multi-modal transportation options 
to reduce Greenhouse Gas (GHG) emissions, and mitigate community beautification efforts as 
the City utilized its COVID-19 recovery dollars to build the public health infrastructure.   
In terms of standing for the American flag and what it represented, and as an African-American 
male in this country, Mr. Payne emphasized the level of work needed as a community to push 
back on the narratives of discrimination.  He urged Council member Murphy to continue to serve, 
lead with integrity, and stand on principle.   
 


28 of 182







 
Pinole City Council  
Minutes – September 7, 2021 
Page 4 
 


Jackie Garcia-Mann, the daughter of a Mexican-American immigrant and a Jewish Holocaust 
survivor understood why some people did not stand for the flag but asked that the matter rest.  
She urged the City to do more about climate change.  She emphasized there was a lot that could 
be done at the local level, what was done in California trickled up, California could be a leader for 
the entire country, and she urged consideration of declaring a climate emergency with tracking 
and measuring of the climate goals in the General Plan.  Some of the ideas to address climate 
change included increasing solar installations, requiring electrification in all new construction, and 
establishing an Environmental Justice Team.   
 
Irma Ruport, Pinole, thanked Council member Murphy and Mayor Pro Tem Salimi for voting their 
conscience and staying true to themselves.  In terms of the discussion surrounding the Faria 
House, she pointed out that prior Council members and staff had made commitments regarding 
the property which could not be fulfilled during the best of times.  She emphasized the City needed 
to address more urgent matters before expending funds on the Faria House, particularly absent 
community involvement.  She added the history of the decisions about funding for the Faria House 
had been documented in writing, the truth should be told, and possibly a vote of the people was 
necessary on this issue.   
 
City Attorney Eric Casher provided an overview of the conflict-of-interest rules, which consisted 
of three standards, two of which were statutory including the Political Reform Act and Government 
Code § 1090.  The final word on such conflicts was the Fair Political Practices Commission 
(FPPC).  He also walked through Item 3 on the meeting agenda which included the Statement of 
Conflict, whereby each Council member was asked to identify whether or not they had a conflict 
of interest with any items on the agenda.  Council members also had the opportunity to reach out 
to him after the distribution of the meeting agenda to discuss whether or not there was a potential 
conflict of interest on an item on the agenda.   
 
City Attorney Casher explained that oftentimes an advice letter was submitted to the FPPC on 
potential conflicts of interest and when the FPPC provided an advice letter it provided a Council 
member with immunity from enforcement action that related to the Political Reform Act and 
Government Code § 1090.  Common-law conflicts were not statutory but a function of the courts.  
There had been lawsuits filed against public officials alleging violations of the common-law 
doctrine, but the enforcement body was the courts and the FPPC did not provide advice letters 
on common-law doctrine.   
 
In response to the public comment as to whether or not there was a conflict of interest with 
contributions made to a 501(C) 3) non-profit such as the Pinole History Museum, City Attorney 
Casher stated if it was an allocation of funds or the establishment of a museum, he could not 
provide an analysis at this time since it would depend on the amount of the contribution and a 
number of other factors.  If the City Council so directed, he could provide an opinion on that issue 
and would be happy to do so but short of that he could not provide an answer at this time.  There 
could also be legal opinions already rendered for Council members, and there was an attorney 
client privilege protecting any advice given.  He would have to be authorized by those Council 
members to offer that information publicly.   
7. RECOGNITIONS / PRESENTATIONS / COMMUNITY EVENTS 
 


A. Proclamations  
 


None  


29 of 182







 
Pinole City Council  
Minutes – September 7, 2021 
Page 5 
 


B. Presentations / Recognitions  
 
None  
 
8. CONSENT CALENDAR 
All matters under the Consent Calendar are considered to be routine and noncontroversial.  These items 
will be enacted by one motion and without discussion.  If, however, any interested party or Council 
member(s) wishes to comment on an item, they may do so before action is taken on the Consent Calendar. 
Following comments, if a Council member wishes to discuss an item, it will be removed from the Consent 
Calendar and taken up in order after adoption of the Consent Calendar. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS OPENED  
 
Rafael Menis applauded the increased level of detail provided for Item 8A, particularly the July 6, 
2021, Meeting Minutes. He found it worthwhile to see the comments from the public.   
 
Irma Ruport referenced Item 8D and asked the City Manager to clarify whether American Rescue 
Plan Act (ARPA) funds would be placed in a separate account or be part of the General Fund 
since she understood the use of the funds involved restrictions.  To avoid any confusion or issues, 
she suggested the funds be placed in a separate account.  She also asked that citizens be 
provided air filters and purifiers as part of the allocation of ARPA funds.   As to Item 8E, she asked 
whether the Request for Proposal (RFP) had been issued to any consultants from Northern 
California or East Bay contractors given that the contractors shown in the staff report were all 
from Southern California with no knowledge of the City of Pinole.  She also asked that regardless 
of the contractor chosen, there be monitoring to ensure the contractor complied with the scope of 
work, with an update to the public. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS CLOSED  
   
City Manager Murray clarified the use of ARPA funds would have a separate tracking mechanism 
as required for the receipt of funds and governmental accounting standards, with a report on the 
receipt and expenditure of the funds to be provided.  As to item 8E, there would be a quarterly 
reporting process on the progress of the completion of the strategies in the Economic 
Development Strategy, and there would be many public engagement opportunities as part of the 
development of the Strategy.  He added the City had received a number of proposals from well-
qualified firms, the majority of which had a presence in Northern California, including the 
recommended firm.   
 
 


A. Approve the Minutes of the Meetings of June 29, 2021 and July 6, 2021  
 


B. Receive the August 14, 2021 – September 3, 2021 List of Warrants in the Amount 
of $890,175.86, the August 20, 2021 Payroll in the Amount of $459,780.15 and the 
September 3, 2021 Payroll in the Amount of $501,375.28  


 
C. Letter of Support for Assembly Bill (AB) 570 Regarding Dependent Parent Health 


Care Coverage [Action: Consider Approval of Letter per Staff 
Recommendation (Murray)]  


 


30 of 182







 
Pinole City Council  
Minutes – September 7, 2021 
Page 6 
 


D. Accept American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) Funds [Action:  Adopt Resolution 
per Staff Recommendation {Guillory)] 


 
E. Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement With The 


Natelson Dale Group (TNDG) to Create an Economic Development Strategy 
[Action:  Adopt Resolution per Staff Recommendation (Murray)]  


 
ACTION:  Motion by Council member Murphy/Mayor Pro Tem Salimi to Approve Consent 
Calendar Items A through E.  
  
Vote:   Passed  5-0 


Ayes:   Martinez-Rubin, Salimi, Tave, Murphy, Toms 
Noes:   None  
Abstain:   None 
Absent:   None 


 
9. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
Citizens wishing to speak regarding a Public Hearing item should fill out a speaker card prior to the 
completion of the presentation, by first providing a speaker card to the City Clerk. An official who engaged in 
an ex parté communication that is the subject of a Public Hearing must disclose the communication on the record prior 
to the start of the Public Hearing. 
 
None  
 
10. OLD BUSINESS 
 


A. Review Status of COVID-19 Local Emergency Declaration and Consider 
Resolution Confirming Continued Existence of Local Emergency [Action:  Review 
and Consider Adoption of Resolution per Staff Recommendation (Casher)] 


 
City Attorney Casher provided a PowerPoint presentation and asked the City Council to consider 
approving terminating, or adopt a resolution confirming, the continued existence of local 
emergency and welcomed any questions from the City Council.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS OPENED  
 
City Clerk Iopu reported there were no public comments for this item.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS CLOSED  
 
Responding to the Council, City Attorney Casher explained that if the Local Emergency 
Declaration was terminated Urgency Ordinances that had been adopted and which allowed 
temporary permits in short order, particularly for outdoor dining, would expire by function of time 
since 90 days was the time period when the temporary permits had initially been issued.  There 
was the opportunity for an extension beyond that time at the staff level.  If the Local Emergency 
Declaration were to be terminated, no streamlined permits could be issued and any outdoor dining 
operation, as an example, would have to go through the typical planning process.  For those 
businesses that had temporary permits for outdoor dining, staff would work with them on the 
application process in the event they wanted to continue with outdoor operations, with applications 
to be processed through the typical planning process.   


31 of 182







 
Pinole City Council  
Minutes – September 7, 2021 
Page 7 
 


City Attorney Casher also clarified that if the Local Emergency Declaration was allowed to 
terminate, it would have no practical impact on existing temporary permits that had been issued.  
Some of those permits had expired and staff would have to work with those local businesses to 
determine if they wanted to consider a permanent structure, and would then have to go through 
the typical planning application process.   
 
City Manager Murray added that staff had not encouraged businesses to dismantle the outdoor 
spaces given the increases in COVID-19 cases.  The permits for outdoor dining had been 
approved under temporary conditions to address a significant economic need in the community.   
He was uncertain the structures would meet the standards for permanent structures, and there 
was not a well-defined program for parklets.  Before communicating with a business, more 
information was needed on what was considered to be a permanent structure and a new scheme 
related to that, which was more oriented towards parklets, which the City currently did not have.   
That would have to be added to the work plan and given the surge in COVID-19 cases, it made 
sense to allow the temporary structures to continue and allow staff the opportunity to figure out a 
permanent solution.   
 
Council member Toms suggested the Local Emergency Declaration continue.   
 
Council member Murphy suggested the Planning Commission be tasked to consider guidelines 
for a parklet option for outdoor dining.  He also asked for clarification as to how the City’s eviction 
moratorium would fit into this discussion in terms of who was or was not protected.  He agreed 
the Local Emergency Declaration should continue and not be terminated.   
 
Planning Manager David Hanham explained that the Planning Commission could review what 
other cities had done in terms of allowing parklets for outdoor dining and they would also need to 
consider potential impacts on parking in the area.   
 
City Attorney Casher advised that direction to the Planning Commission would be staff generated 
initially and depending on what would be required, such as amendments to the Zoning Code, 
would require Planning Commission consideration prior to the City Council taking action.  The 
City Council may provide that level of direction if appropriate.   He was unaware of the intricacies 
of the County’s Eviction Moratorium and directed residents with concerns to visit the County 
website where information could be provided.  The County’s Eviction Moratorium applied to the 
City of Pinole and there were also State and federal actions related to moratoriums on evictions.  
Anyone who had concerns should start with the County website. The State and federal 
governments also had information for tenants and landlords.    
 
Mayor Martinez-Rubin suggested the City’s website could also be updated as it related to this 
topic with links to current information. 
 
City Manager Murray confirmed that staff could report out at a future City Council meeting, and 
acknowledged the City website was lean on affordable housing resources and the County’s 
website had more information.  Basic housing protections and resources could be provided at a 
future City Council meeting.  
 
In response to Council member Tave, City Manager Murray commented on the various changes 
to the City organization to ensure safety and in response to COVID-19.  He reiterated the main 
action the City and City Council had taken was permitting temporary outdoor dining.  Employee 


32 of 182







 
Pinole City Council  
Minutes – September 7, 2021 
Page 8 
 


telecommuting and improving the automation and access to online services were within the 
normal authority of City government.   If the Local Emergency Declaration was terminated, he 
could not see that anything needed to be changed or undone.   
 
Council member Tave suggested that until the State and the County terminated their emergency 
declarations due to COVID-19, the City’s Local Emergency Declaration must continue, which 
would also allow staff the opportunity to figure out any impacts if the emergency declaration were 
to be terminated.   
 
Mayor Martinez-Rubin supported the continuation of the City’s Local Emergency Declaration due 
to COVID-19 for all of the reasons stated.  She also wanted to continue support for local 
businesses and continue to permit outdoor dining.    
 
City Attorney Casher advised the published agenda included hyper-links to City updates on the 
Coronavirus advisory information and links to the County website.  Attachment A, included in the 
September 7, 2021 staff report, also included a resolution confirming the Continued Existence of 
Local Emergency which should be included in the motion.   
 
ACTION:  Motion by Mayor Martinez-Rubin/Council member Toms to Adopt a Resolution 
Confirming the Continued Existence of a Local Emergency Declaration Due to COVID-19.  
 
Vote:   Passed  5-0 


Ayes:   Martinez-Rubin, Salimi, Tave, Murphy, Toms 
Noes:   None  
Abstain:   None 
Absent:   None 


 
11. NEW BUSINESS 


A. Presentation on City Activities Related to Climate Change, and Discussion and 
Possible Direction on Additional City Action to Address Climate Change [Action:  
Receive Presentation (Laughlin/Gallagher)] 


 
City Manager Murray reported that in 2020 the Contra Costa County Board of Supervisors had 
approved a resolution declaring a climate emergency, committing the County to a number of 
specific actions, and called upon cities in the County to adopt their own resolutions declaring a 
climate emergency.  This agenda item had been requested as a future agenda item, and over 
time the City Council had discussed a number of ideas and issues related to climate change.  As 
a result, the future agenda item had grown to include a discussion of the Sustainability Element 
of the General Plan and other issues.  The responsibility for guiding the community and City 
operations to achieve climate goals rested primarily with the Public Works Department in its 
operations work and in the Community Development Department related to future land use 
planning.   
 
City Manager Murray recognized the City of Pinole had been a leader on climate issues and was 
the first city in Contra Costa County to voluntarily adopt a Sustainability Element of the General 
Plan in 2010, but the City had not done a good job tracking its accomplishments and reporting 
out.  This was an opportunity for the City Council and staff to reengage on this topic and discuss 
next steps to advance the City’s work on this effort.   
 


33 of 182







 
Pinole City Council  
Minutes – September 7, 2021 
Page 9 
 


City Manager Murray reported that due to the recent retirement of the former Development 
Services Director, the City had hired the consultant firm of CSG to provide expertise in bandwidth 
community development, with a presentation to update the City Council on City activities related 
to climate change, and with staff asking that the City Council provide direction on certain items 
such as a thorough update on the goals, objectives, and tasks outlined in the Sustainability 
Element.  He also asked that the Council direct staff to bring back a resolution to identify the City’s 
current status on GHG and a Climate Action Plan (CAP), and appropriate funding to create a 
GHG Inventory, a precursor to taking steps to reduce GHG emissions and create a targeted CAP.   
 
Kathleen Gallagher, Sustainability Manager, CSG, provided a PowerPoint presentation on the 
City of Pinole’s Actions and Addressing Climate Change, which included an overview of the 
climate change background, GHG emission reduction targets and State actions, jurisdictions 
taking action on GHG inventory and CAPs and Pinole’s 2010 Sustainability Element Goals.   
 
Recommendations for consideration included:   
 


• Complete analysis of Sustainability Element Programs/Policies that were implemented 
and provide report to Council at a future meeting.  
 


• Prepare a GHG Inventory. 
 


• Prepare a Focused CAP for High Impact GHG Reduction Program. 
 


• Direct staff to include in the mid-year adjustment (FY 21/22) Operating and Capital 
Budgets for funding contract to complete the GHG Inventory and CAP.  
 


• Review Climate Emergency Resolutions examples and provide direction to staff on 
resolution content for future Council meeting. 
 


PUBLIC COMMENTS OPENED  
 
Floyd Andrews was excited Pinole would be taking climate seriously; wildfires in the State had 
resulted in unbreathable air, there has been an increase in homelessness and the Wildfire 
Prevention and Vegetation Management Joint Powers Agency (JPA) opportunity would go hand-
in-hand with the climate emergency.  If higher institutions were unwilling to step forward local 
institutions must engage on this important topic and do what they could to address the climate 
emergency for current and future generations.  There was confidence the City Council would be 
able to identify what actions were appropriate for Pinole and the City Council was urged to take 
immediate action.   
 
Rafael Menis thanked Contra Costa County Climate Leaders (4CL) for the written 
correspondence that had been provided and which had been accessible on the City website.  He 
agreed with the six policy items that had been outlined in the correspondence and understood 
based on the information provided by 4CL that the State had created a GHG Inventory Plan.  
Pursuant to the language in the City’s Sustainability Element, pursuant to Action SE3.1.1, a GHG 
Inventory had already been done; however, the staff report stated a GHG Inventory had not been 
prepared and he asked staff to provide clarification. He also found that numerous worthwhile 
points had been identified under Action SE3, which had not been implemented.  He suggested 


34 of 182







 
Pinole City Council  
Minutes – September 7, 2021 
Page 10 
 


that many of those items could be completed without having to prepare a full GHG Inventory and 
before a full CAP had been created.   
   
Ms. Gallagher clarified that ,along with the former Contract Community Development Manager, 
they had discussed the GHG Inventory Plan and after research of the archives staff was only able 
to find a start of a GHG Inventory, which was around 30 percent complete and had only identified 
municipal operations.   
 
Fred Bialy, El Cerrito, pointed out that what happened in Pinole affected those around Pinole.  He 
reported in 2018, the United Nations Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change released a 
report, which made it clear it was imperative that global temperature rise be limited to no more 
than 1.5 degrees centigrade.  An IPCC Sixth Assessment Report released in August 2021 had 
shown it was now Code Red for the planet in achieving the 1.5 degree centigrade goal.  He 
supported the recommendations for the City to prepare an updated GHG Inventory and update 
its Sustainability Element to be more ambitious, enough to achieve the GHG emissions reduction 
targets to limit global warming to 1.5 degrees centigrade.  He supported a climate emergency 
resolution.  As to the goal of reducing GHG emissions by 40 percent by the year 2030, recent 
analysis had shown how to implement the goal of 1.5 degree centigrade and actually reduce GHG 
emissions by 50 percent.  He urged the City to be ambitious in whatever was implemented.   
 
Marti Roach, representing 350 Contra Costa, a countywide group focusing on advocating to and 
partnering with local governments in Contra Costa County to address the climate emergency, 
commended Pinole for having the foresight in 2010 to have a Sustainability Element, but it had 
fallen short on capacity and being able to implement the plans.  Given that the climate emergency 
continued at a pace that limited the window for action, she hoped the City would use this moment 
to step up.   She emphasized four elements which were key including leadership from the top; i.e. 
the City Council with regular reports on progress; a plan with equity at the center focused on GHG 
emissions and on goals, strategies and climate resilience; commitment to financing and capacity; 
and strong community engagement.  She thanked the City Council for prioritizing this issue and 
expressed the willingness to watch the City’s progress and provide support as possible.   
 
Lynda Deschambault, a retired Environmental Scientist from the U.S. Environmental Protection 
Agency (EPA), a former Mayor, and Director of 4CL, explained that the City Council had been 
provided a comment letter which included six policy items.  She reported the City of Pinole had 
been involved in 2007, along with all cities in Contra Costa County (with the exception of two) and 
had received a complete GHG Inventory both for municipal operations and for the County.  4CL 
had partnered with the San Francisco Foundation and ICLEI, Local Governments for 
Sustainability, received a grant and the information had been completed for the City of Pinole, but 
the report had been shelved and had never become policy. She emphasized the Code Red and 
asked the City Council to direct staff to move forward and not backward and declare a climate 
emergency, which would guide the process, and join the County and other cities that had passed 
climate emergency resolutions, create a GHG Inventory, and create a CAP that could be put in 
place.  She hoped to see the item on a future agenda and future discussions to fine tune a climate 
emergency resolution. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS CLOSED  
 
Responding to the Council, Ms. Gallagher provided clarification to some of the points in her 
PowerPoint presentation. 


35 of 182







 
Pinole City Council  
Minutes – September 7, 2021 
Page 11 
 


 
Council member Toms recognized that 4CL and 350 Contra Costa had attended many different 
workshops and she thanked them for their advocacy.  As to the resolutions declaring a climate 
emergency and the resolutions provided in Attachments C and D to the staff report from Contra 
Costa County and 4CL, she pointed out that Pinole did not have some of the industry that the 
unincorporated areas of Contra Costa County had and would not have to address issues of 
transition.  Also, Pinole did not meet the threshold of SB 1000, Land use; general plans: safety 
and environmental justice, but there were some parts of the City that were at risk more than 
others, and she was uncertain how that would be addressed.   
 
City Manager Murray explained that staff did not have a recommendation on which of the 
resolutions should be considered for Pinole.  Staff would like to research similar resolutions in 
peer communities and the City Council may direct staff to return with a resolution that included 
parts that were relevant to Pinole and which could be further modified. 
 
Council member Tave asked staff whether grants were available for this effort and asked how to 
leverage the funds the City had to ensure it was meeting greater goals.  He stated the City was 
fighting on multiple fronts with limited resources to address the climate emergency and suggested 
there was a larger discussion on what the CAP looked like outside of a resolution.   He asked how 
far away the City was from an actionable CAP.   
 
Ms. Gallagher advised that typically the completion of a GHG Inventory tended to open doors to 
grants and grant applications and signaled to the grantor the seriousness of addressing climate 
change.  Funding and grant opportunities had and would continue to be investigated.  She noted 
that a GHG Inventory typically required six to seven months to complete due to the need to obtain 
data from PG&E related to natural gas and Vehicles Miles Traveled (VMTs), and she described 
the methodology used to calculate the data.  A CAP would review the critical pieces and quantify 
what the individual program would actually result in GHG emissions reduction and estimated 
costs, with all elements reviewed to ensure a successful plan.   She anticipated a CAP would take 
eight to nine months to complete and if the City Council and the City Manager were agreeable a 
concurrent community outreach effort would be important given the resources and options for 
residents and businesses.   
 
Council member Murphy emphasized the importance of this issue and to start the sustainability 
conversation.  He asked for clarification of the term “super pollutant” which had been used in the 
PowerPoint presentation, and Ms. Gallagher explained that the super pollutants were hydro 
fluorocarbons, methane and refrigerants which had a much accelerated ability for global warming 
capacity, with methane one of the strategies the State was focusing on, particularly related to SB 
1383, which required the reduction of organic waste disposed in landfills, with the goal for organics 
and food waste to not be dumped in landfills but to composting and other facilities so avoid 
producing methane.  She recognized the City of Pinole had organics collection.   
 
Council member Murphy spoke to his experience as an environmental activist and his 
understanding Pinole had not been deemed as a disadvantaged community and unable to apply 
to that qualifier.  He referenced the 2019 NuStar Refinery Explosion where traffic and air in Pinole 
had been impacted, and impacts to air quality in 2020 due to wildfires in the State.  He asked how 
communities made CAPs and moved forward absent that qualifier.   
 


36 of 182







 
Pinole City Council  
Minutes – September 7, 2021 
Page 12 
 


Ms. Gallagher emphasized that environmental justice was big now with some of the focus on 
pushing funding, rebates, and electric vehicle (EV) infrastructure funding towards lower income 
opportunities.  She added that Marin Clean Energy (MCE) had been funding a lot of programs for 
lower incomes, and they just had to make the case to move the funding into Pinole.  
  
Council member Murphy commented that the PowerPoint presentation had not included any 
information on sea level rise, particularly since Pinole was a bay front community.  He asked for 
additional input on that issue, and Ms. Gallagher advised that resiliency and adaptation would be 
part of the CAP and would provide the necessary steps.  Various maps had shown the potential 
impacts from sea level rise in the next 10 and 20 years if remaining on the same trajectory.  She 
suggested that section of the CAP would be robust for Pinole given projections for intense rainfall 
in a short period of time and impacts on infrastructure.   
 
Council member Murphy found that besides the work force conversation, youth activists had not 
been included in the planning for the CAP and had not been identified in the PowerPoint 
presentation. 
 
Ms. Gallagher confirmed that youth would be a big part of the CAP and presenting and getting 
feedback from the youth population would be important.   She would have to work with City staff 
to understand the inroads on how to get that communication open as part of outreach and 
communication, which would likely be a robust section of the CAP to ensure solid communication 
to the youth population and future generations.  Shared information and shared best practices 
would be necessary, and more time would be needed to see what had worked.  She suggested 
there would be more to come on that topic.  
 
Mayor Martinez-Rubin appreciated all of the assessments that had been prepared thus far and 
recognized this was a matter of urgency.  Of the recommendations staff had asked the City 
Council to consider, while she would like to direct staff to proceed with all of the recommendations, 
she was concerned with another plan sitting on a shelf.  Concurrent with the high level of activity, 
she would also like to see goals that were reachable such as some of the activities identified in 
the Sustainability Element of the General Plan.   She would also like to see concurrently some of 
the tasks that may have been started and for which the City had the capacity to complete.   
 
Council member Tave agreed this was not a new conversation, some efforts had been underway 
but had stopped somewhere and he wanted assurance the process would move forward and not 
result in another report with no action.  He asked staff to provide clarification if they were starting 
from scratch and then pulling in the appropriate agencies.    
 
City Manager Murray referenced the many plans that the City Council had directed staff to prepare 
such as the CAP, Economic Development Strategy engagement, safety and the like, with projects 
and initiatives that could touch on many things.  To make the workload manageable, the planning 
had been broken down into issue areas.  He described the process to address the many initiatives 
that were underway or had been delayed prior to his arrival as the City Manager.  In this case, he 
suggested they would not be starting over or creating something new in that it had already been 
budgeted for and scheduled.  He noted the City did not have the bandwidth at this time to begin 
working on even a fraction of the things in the Sustainability Element and he was unaware of the 
reasons for delays after the adoption of the document in 2010.  He agreed with the need to move 
ahead with a GHG Inventory and then work on the CAP which must dovetail with the Sustainability 
Element.   In the meantime, they needed to look at what was done, ideas not done, and implement 


37 of 182







 
Pinole City Council  
Minutes – September 7, 2021 
Page 13 
 


the top ideas in the Sustainability Element.  A good CAP would prioritize the actions needed to 
be taken but involve a narrower scope of activities than the Sustainability Element, which would 
mean that other plans would not go away since they must be well integrated.   
 
Council member Tave asked how the City would fund the project to be in a good position to 
accelerate some of the ideas when opportunities presented themselves, and City Manager Murray 
suggested the analyses would identify the best opportunities and best return on the City’s limited 
resources.  Staff was excited to identify how to move forward, but they could not do so strategically 
without the necessary underlying analyses, some of which must be done concurrently.   
 
Council member Murphy commended the efforts of the City Manager and Finance Director 
Guillory for keeping things moving and for all of the updates that had been provided.  He identified 
the top topics of conversation with residents which included investment in green school yards 
including Collins Elementary as a priority; outdoor educational and recreational opportunities; 
finding ways to reduce plastic waste possibly via an ordinance banning plastic bags, Styrofoam 
and food ware; embracing indigenous land acknowledgment practices; using signage as an 
opportunity for citywide education and creating spaces for public art; city services used to support 
the creek and parks cleanup; potentially building a community garden at Pinole Valley High 
School and making community farming a priority; increased annual cleanups for green waste; and 
continuing to advocate for COVID-19 social safety measures with young people a critical part of 
the effort. 
 
Council member Murphy also referenced the Pinole Environment and Sustainability Task Force 
(PEST) and suggested this was an opportunity to bring in those people most affected by climate 
change within the City and how to engage the public in conversations around climate action.   He 
emphasized the importance to act on this issue and agreed with the recommendations offered by 
staff but would also like to see staff invest in people resources as well, with the budget to include 
the types of people needed in the City to build more sustainability and climate action.   
 
Council member Murphy wanted to empower the people, staff and the public, and moved to direct 
staff to include a mid-year budget adjustment and bring about a recommendation to complete a 
contract to prepare a GHG Inventory and CAP, which was seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Salimi   
 
Council member Toms agreed with the direction offered by Council member Murphy but also 
wanted to direct staff to explore getting a Climate Core Fellow (college students working on a 
Master’s Degree) who knew the trends about climate action, and to locate the GHG baseline 
inventory that had been done in 2007.   
 
Council member Murphy accepted the amendment to his motion.   
 
Mayor Martinez-Rubin commented that the Strategic Growth Council was a public agency which 
had in the past several years provided assistance to cities that had not met the criteria of defined 
vulnerability based on income, but since Pinole was a low resourced agency and since attention 
had been given to low resourced cities, the Strategic Growth Council had provided consultants in 
the past specifically to develop plans.  She asked staff to look into what the Strategic Growth 
Council could provide for cities like Pinole.   
 
ACTION:  Motion by Council member Murphy/Mayor Pro Tem Salimi to Direct staff to 
include in the Mid-Year Budget Adjustment a Recommendation to Complete a Contract to 


38 of 182







 
Pinole City Council  
Minutes – September 7, 2021 
Page 14 
 


Prepare a GHG Inventory and CAP; Explore Getting a Climate Core Fellow; and Locate the 
GHG Baseline Inventory Prepared in 2007. 
 
Vote:   Passed  5-0 


Ayes:   Martinez-Rubin, Salimi, Tave, Murphy, Toms 
Noes:   None  
Abstain:   None 
Absent:   None 


 
City Manager Murray asked for a motion to complete the analysis of the Sustainability Element 
Programs/Policies that had been implemented and provide a report to the City Council at a future 
meeting.  Based on the discussions, the City Council was interested in a Climate Emergency 
Resolution and he would work with staff on a draft that could be brought back to the City Council 
for discussion at a future meeting.    
 
Council member Toms offered a motion, seconded by Mayor Martinez-Rubin to direct staff to 
complete the analysis of the Sustainability Element Programs/Policies that had been implemented 
and provide a report to Council at a future meeting and with staff directed to prepare a draft 
Climate Emergency Resolution that could be brought back to the City Council for discussion at a 
future meeting.   
 
On the motion, Council member Murphy sought additional discussion on incentivizing solar 
installation and that it be embedded into the Sustainability Element conversation and ideas from 
staff that could be included in an ordinance.   
 
City Manager Murray advised that solar incentives for installation had been listed in the 
Sustainability Element.  Staff could return with a progress report on the status and while the State 
had rigid requirements for streamlining solar applications, which the City adhered to, the City did 
not offer any other incentives, although MCE may have more information.  Staff could return with 
more information at the time a progress report was made on the Sustainability Element.   
 
Mayor Martinez-Rubin added that during a recent Mayors’ Conference, it had been reported the 
County Permit related to the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) Municipal 
Stormwater Permit had expired in 2020.  She asked what areas of the permitting process may 
pose an economic hardship on residents of the City when discussing GHG emissions and other 
initiatives and asked staff to also return with additional information on the NPDES permit process.   
 
City Manager Murray understood the City Council would be required to take future action on the 
Municipal Regional Stormwater NPDES Permit (MRP3.0) or may provide a perspective and 
advocacy on that permitting process, which would be brought to the City Council at the appropriate 
time   
 
ACTION:  Motion by Council member Toms/Mayor Martinez-Rubin to Direct staff to 
Complete the Analysis of the Sustainability Element Programs/Policies that had been 
Implemented and Provide Report to Council at a Future Meeting and with Staff Directed to 
Prepare a Draft Climate Emergency Resolution that Could be Brought back to the City 
Council for Discussion at a Future Meeting.   
 
Vote:   Passed  5-0 


Ayes:   Martinez-Rubin, Salimi, Tave, Murphy, Toms 


39 of 182







 
Pinole City Council  
Minutes – September 7, 2021 
Page 15 
 


Noes:   None  
Abstain:   None 
Absent:   None 


 
 12. REPORTS & COMMUNICATIONS  


A. Mayor Report 
 


1. Announcements 
 


Mayor Martinez-Rubin announced her attendance at the Mayors’ Conference with a discussion 
of the NPDES MRP3.0 permit with more information to follow; and Mayors’ and Supervisors’ 
Association with an update on the current status of COVID-19 infections and vaccination rates in 
the County with Pinole having a high rate of completed vaccinations, and with vaccination and 
testing sites still available in Contra Costa County.  She encouraged everyone to continue to abide 
by the County Health Officer’s Orders regarding COVID-19 restrictions and social distancing 
requirements, particularly with upcoming public events in Pinole including the Coastal Clean-up 
scheduled for September 18, 2021 and the Classic Car Show on September 19, 2021.   
 


B.   Mayoral & Council Appointments  
 


1. Planning Commission [Action:  Consider Recommendation and 
Appoint by Minute Order (Iopu)] 


 
Ms. Iopu presented the staff report and asked the City Council to consider the Interview 
Subcommittee’s recommendation to appoint Rafael Menis to fill the vacancy on the Planning 
Commission.    
 
Council member Toms, a member of the Interview Committee, expressed her appreciation to all 
of the candidates and explained that Mr. Menis had stood out based on his knowledge of the 
General Plan and its policies.  The other two candidates were encouraged to reapply and consider 
vacancies on other City Commissions/Committees.   


 
ACTION:  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Salimi/Council member Toms to Appoint Rafael Menis 
to the City of Pinole Planning Commission.   
 
 
Vote:   Passed  5-0 


Ayes:   Martinez-Rubin, Salimi, Tave, Murphy, Toms 
Noes:   None  
Abstain:   None 
Absent:   None 
 
2. East Bay Wildfire and Vegetation Management JPA.  [Action:  Discuss 


and Appoint by Minute Order (Iopu)] 
 
Ms. Iopu presented the staff report and stated that during the August 17, 2021 City Council 
meeting there had been a discussion of a resolution proposed by the East Bay Wildfire Prevention 
and Vegetation Management Joint Powers Authority (JPA), committing City personnel to 
participate in discussions regarding the formation of the JPA.  The City Council discussed 


40 of 182







 
Pinole City Council  
Minutes – September 7, 2021 
Page 16 
 


identifying a single Council member to be the primary City official to participate in the discussions.  
At this time, the City Council was asked to nominate and appoint a Council member.  
 
Council member Murphy expressed interest in being appointed as the primary Council member 
to participate in the discussions of the JPA. 
 
Council member Toms also expressed interest and identified her involvement in multiple bodies 
in the County and her familiarity with different committees in the region.   
 
Mayor Martinez-Rubin was inclined to defer to Council member Toms as the Council’s primary 
representative regarding the formation of the JPA, given her experience and background.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS OPENED  
 
David Ruport, speaking to Item B1, concurred with the Interview Subcommittee’s 
recommendation for Rafael Menis’ appointment to the Planning Commission, acknowledged the 
other candidates as excellent choices, but stated Mr. Menis had proven himself as truly involved 
with the City Council and City politics and would be a great addition to the Planning Commission.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS CLOSED  
 
City Manager Murray explained for the subject item that a formation and exploratory committee 
had been formed.  He was uncertain whether the committee was asking for new members, and 
clarified that the item under consideration was a resolution which committed City staff and its 
officials to engage in dialogue to discuss the possibility of the formation of a JPA.  The City 
Council’s action was not the appointment of a Council member to a committee but the 
appointment of Council member(s) to be the lead participant on the Council’s behalf in different 
dialogues with different stakeholders in the organic process to consider the options for the JPA.   
There would be different staff members involved and there was no reason multiple Council 
members could not be involved but it was up to the City Council to decide.   
 
Council member Tave suggested both Council members Murphy and Toms be appointed.   
 
City Clerk Iopu pointed out that Committee Appointments were revisited annually each December 
and there was opportunity for rotation.   
 
ACTION:  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Salimi/Council member Tave to Appoint Council 
members Murphy and Toms as the Two Representatives from the City of Pinole to be the 
Lead Participants on the City Council’s Behalf in Different Dialogues with Different 
Stakeholders in the Organic Process to Consider the Options for the East Bay Wildfire and 
Vegetation Management Joint Powers (JPA) Agency and Report Back to the City Council.    
 
 
Vote:   Passed  5-0 


Ayes:   Martinez-Rubin, Salimi, Tave, Murphy, Toms 
Noes:   None  
Abstain:   None 
Absent:   None 


 
C.   City Council Committee Reports & Communications 


41 of 182







 
Pinole City Council  
Minutes – September 7, 2021 
Page 17 
 


 
Council member Murphy reported the next MCE Executive Board meeting had been scheduled 
for September 16; due to extreme heat and high electricity demands, the California Independent 
System Operator (Cal ISO) had issued a Statewide Flex Alert with energy conservation called on 
September 8, 2021 between 4:00 and 9:00 p.m., with additional information available on 
flexalert.org.; the MCE Board of Directors had recently approved a $2.5 million budget for the 
MCE Cares Credit Program that had been extended to March 2022.  Information on the program 
was available on the MCE website.  In addition, he invited everyone to attend his next coffee and 
conversation via Zoom scheduled for Sunday, September 19, 2021 at 9:00 a.m.  
 
Council member Toms reported she had a lengthy discussion with a Pinole resident who had 
concerns with Pinole Valley Park, Adobe Road and the dog park.  She asked whether the City 
Council would be provided an update on park issues on an upcoming agenda, or whether she 
should reach out to a member of the Public Works Department to address the items of concern, 
 
City Manager Murray stated there were no plans to make a presentation on park issues but he 
would be happy to learn of the resident’s concerns to foster a dialogue.  
 


D. Council Requests for Future Agenda Items 
 


Council member Murphy requested a future agenda item for staff direction on the options for 
parklets and outdoor dining.   
 
Ms. Iopu advised she had public comment at this time. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS OPENED  
 
Irma Ruport agreed with the appointment of Rafael Menis to the Planning Commission and stated 
he would be a great asset to the City and to the Planning Commission.  She encouraged 
consideration of new candidates to serve on City Commissions/Committees to provide new ideas.  
She also asked that former Planning Commissioner Sarah Flashman be sent a thank you letter 
for her service on the Planning Commission.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS CLOSED  
 
Council member Toms asked whether a future agenda item to consider rehabilitation of the Faria 
House had been requested recently and City Manager Murray recalled it was a Capital 
Improvement Plan (CIP) item but it could be made as a request for a future agenda item 
depending whether it had already been included in the CIP.  
 
Council member Toms requested a future agenda item strictly for the rehabilitation of the Faria 
House, not a lease with a particular entity or use, but what it would take to reuse the building and 
the options for reuse.  If nothing was to be done, she suggested the City’s continued ownership 
could be part of the discussion.   
 
Mayor Martinez-Rubin supported the request and consensus was given. 
 


42 of 182







 
Pinole City Council  
Minutes – September 7, 2021 
Page 18 
 


Council member Murphy supported the request as long as the discussion was more than 
construction of the building but included a discussion on possible uses and a workshop with public 
engagement on the uses of the Faria House  
 
City Manager Murray commented that the Faria House had been discussed a couple of ways as 
part of the budget process and the CIP, and it was left with the need for a more detailed 
assessment and identification of costs for potential use.  The City Council had not provided 
direction to proceed nor appropriate funding.  He suggested the Faria House could be agendized 
for discussion as to use and cost, and if staff had received prior direction regarding an assessment 
of the cost for different uses that would be mentioned in the staff report to support the discussion.  
 
After consensus was given for Council member Toms’ request, there was confusion on the 
request and staff and the Mayor attempted to provide clarification.  City Manager Murray 
recommended a roll call vote to consider the request as a future agenda item.   
 
On the question of Council member Toms’ request for a future agenda item and in the midst of 
the roll call vote, City Attorney Casher stated if this was a general discussion of the use given 
Mayor Pro Tem Salimi’s proximity to the Faria House, he recommended the Mayor Pro Tem 
abstain from the vote at this time.   
   
Vote:   Failed:    2-2-1 


Ayes:   Martinez-Rubin, Toms 
Noes:   Murphy, Tave 
Abstain:   Salimi  
Absent:   None 


 
Council member Toms commented that Council member Murphy had indicated support for the 
future agenda item if certain discussions occurred and she understood he was in agreement.  She 
requested clarification.  
 
Council member Murphy asked the City Attorney to explain, and City Attorney Casher 
acknowledged there was some confusion.  A vote had been taken on the proposed item and he 
explained it was okay with this level of discussion on what the future agenda item may be.   
 
Council member Murphy suggested a future workshop with public engagement on uses of the 
Faria House was appropriate.  He had understood Council member Toms’ request for a future 
agenda item involved construction and rehabilitation but the Council needed to discuss all 
possible uses and then construction. 
 
Council member Toms suggested moving forward to ensure that the Faria House would not 
become a dilapidated structure in Old Town Pinole.  She sought a workshop with discussion of 
future uses, and possibly the level of improvements required for different uses.   
 
Mayor Martinez-Rubin was open to a workshop format and supported a future discussion.  
 
Council member Murphy suggested bringing the item up at the next meeting.   
 


E. City Manager Report / Department Staff 
 


43 of 182







 
Pinole City Council  
Minutes – September 7, 2021 
Page 19 
 


City Manager Murray reported the City was experiencing a construction boom which had started 
during the onset of COVID-19 where there had been a 20 percent increase in the number of 
building permit applications.  The City Offices had remained open during the COVID-19 pandemic 
with the use of online tools for processing applications, and appointments for building and 
planning applications.   While the City had been short staffed, it was now fully staffed with two 
new Permit Technicians and additional temporary staff.  He acknowledged a backlog processing 
permits had been accumulated due to the staffing shortage, but staff was working through that 
and hoped to be caught up by November.  If members of the City Council or members of the 
public had any concerns with the processing of applications, they were encouraged to contact 
him.  He confirmed, when asked, that the City website included the latest information related to 
his report and he would ensure it provided as much information as possible.   
 
Council member Murphy suggested the same language to be posted on the City website be 
shared so that it could be posted on Facebook, and City Manager Murray confirmed he could 
provide that information in writing.   


 
F. City Attorney Report 


 
City Attorney Casher provided an overview of the requirements of the Brown Act and stated the 
City Council was currently operating under the Governor’s Executive Order N-29-20, which 
allowed the meeting to be held virtually due to COVID-19.  The Executive Order had been 
extended to allow the meetings to be held virtually, which extension would expire on September 
30, 2021.  As of October 1, 2021, the City would have to allow for publicly accessible meetings 
in-person.  Staff was preparing for that eventuality, and he was monitoring further extensions from 
the Governor’s Office.  He clarified that the meetings after October 1, 2021 may allow a hybrid 
format for remote participation but a quorum of the City Council must be present in-person.  The 
first regularly scheduled meeting for the month of October had been scheduled for October 19, 
2021, with a Special City Council Workshop scheduled for Saturday, October 9, 2021, to discuss 
the ARPA funds, both in hybrid format.   
 
City Clerk Iopu added that any information for connecting to the hybrid or Zoom formats would be 
detailed on the cover sheet of the meeting agendas.  She thanked the public for its patience and 
looked forward to in-person meetings.   
 
As to the contentious public comment that had been received during the past several City Council 
meetings, which included comments about members of the public, Council member Toms asked 
whether a time out could be considered when comments were determined to be inappropriate, to 
which City Attorney Casher stated that was something he could look into.  There were rules 
around decorum within City Council meetings and within the Brown Act, but there were challenges 
with enforcement.  He would review whether or not any regulations could be imposed at the staff 
level but it would have to be balanced against First Amendment Rights.  
 
13. ADJOURNMENT to a Regular City Council Meeting of September 21, 2021 in 


Remembrance of Amber Swartz.  
 
At 10:56 p.m. Mayor Martinez-Rubin adjourned the meeting to the Regular City Council Meeting 
of September 21, 2021 in Remembrance of Amber Swartz.   
 
Submitted by: 


44 of 182







 
Pinole City Council  
Minutes – September 7, 2021 
Page 20 
 


 
 
_________________________________ 
Heather Iopu, CMC 
City Clerk 
 
Approved by City Council:  
 


45 of 182







8A-2 


CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MINUTES 


September 21, 2021 
 


 
1. CALL TO ORDER & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE IN HONOR OF THE US MILITARY 


TROOPS 
 
The City Council Meeting was held via Zoom videoconference and broadcast from the Pinole 
Council Chambers, 2131 Pear Street, Pinole, California.  Mayor Martínez-Rubin called the 
Regular Meeting of the City Council to order at 5:01 p.m. and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
2. LAND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT  
Before we begin, we would like to acknowledge the Ohlone people, who are the traditional custodians of 
this land.  We pay our respects to the Ohlone elders, past, present and future, who call this place, Ohlone 
Land, the land that Pinole sits upon, their home.  We are proud to continue their tradition of coming together 
and growing as a community.  We thank the Ohlone community for their stewardship and support, and we 
look forward to strengthening our ties as we continue our relationship of mutual respect and understanding.  
 
3. ROLL CALL, CITY CLERK’S REPORT & STATEMENT OF CONFLICT 
An official who has a conflict must, prior to consideration of the decision; (1) publicly identify in detail the 
financial interest that causes the conflict; (2) recuse himself/herself from discussing and voting on the 
matter; and (3) leave the room until after the decision has been made, Cal. Gov. Code § 87105.   
 


A. COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT 
 
Norma Martínez-Rubin, Mayor  
Vincent Salimi, Mayor Pro Tem 
Devin Murphy, Council Member  
Anthony Tave, Council Member* 
Maureen Toms, Council Member 
 
*Arrived after Roll Call  
 
 B. STAFF PRESENT 
 
Andrew Murray, City Manager 
Heather Iopu, City Clerk 
Eric Casher, City Attorney   
Hector De La Rosa, Assistant City Manager  
David Hanham, Planning Manager  
Markisha Guillory, Finance Director 
Misha Kaur, Senior Project Manager  
Chris Wynkoop, Fire Chief  
Joseph Bingaman, Public Works Manager  
Maria Picazo, Recreation Manager  
Roxanne Stone, Management Analyst  
 
City Clerk Iopu announced the agenda had been posted on Thursday, September 16, 2021 at 
4:00 p.m.   
All legally required notice was provided with written comments received for Item 6, Citizens to be 
Heard, with the written comments received posted on the City’s website and distributed to the City 


46 of 182







 


 
Pinole City Council  
Minutes – September 21, 2021 
Page 2 
 


Council in advance of the meeting.   Also, a revised version of Item 8J had been published and 
distributed to the City Council after the publication of the meeting agenda.   
 
Following an inquiry, the Council reported there were no conflicts with any items on the agenda.   
 
4. CONVENE TO A CLOSED SESSION   
Citizens may address the Council regarding a Closed Session item prior to the Council adjourning into 
the Closed Session, by first providing a speaker card to the City Clerk.   
 


A. CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS  
Gov. Code § 54956.8 
Property: 401-162-001 (2301 San Pablo Avenue)  
Agency negotiators:  City Manager Murray, Assistant City Manager De La Rosa 
and City Attorney Casher  
Negotiating Parties: Alex Balakrishnan and Claude Zamanian  
Under negotiation:  Price and terms   
 


B. CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS 
Gov. Code § 54956.8 
Property: 401-162-002 (2337 San Pablo Avenue)  
Agency negotiators:  City Manager Murray, Assistant City Manager De La Rosa 
and City Attorney Casher  
Negotiating Parties: Raquel Contreras  
Under negotiation:  Price and terms   


 
C. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION  


Gov. Code § 54956.9(d)(1) 
Name of case:  In re PG&E and Pacific Gas & Electric Company v. Debtors  
 


PUBLIC COMMENTS OPENED  
 
Oliver Collins, a member of the Pinole Traffic and Pedestrian Safety Committee (TAPS) since 
2017, reported there had not been a TAPS Committee meeting since January 2021.  The only 
meeting prior to that date had been in August 2020.  There were five vacancies on the TAPS 
Committee, applications for the vacancies had been due by July 30, 2021, and there were three 
active TAPS Committee members eager to work.  He had spoken to the City Manager in May 
2021 regarding his concerns with the status of the TAPS Committee and he had been informed 
there would be some reorganization of City Departments.  Since that time, the Public Works 
Director had left the employ of the City and while he had asked the City Manager to attend the 
TAPS Committee meeting to see the challenges the Committee faced that had not happened 
since meetings had been routinely canceled.  He added there had been several Brown Act 
requirements that were not being followed for the TAPS Committee meetings including no posting 
of the meeting agenda, preparation of meeting minutes and discussions well off topic of posted 
agenda items. 
 
City Manager Murray confirmed he had a conversation with Mr. Collins regarding the status of the 
TAPS Committee.  He explained that the City was undergoing a reorganization of City 
Departments and a new Public Works Director would be employed soon. 
City Manager Murray advised the new Public Works Director would be tasked with reviewing the 
TAPS Committee activities and scope and provide recommendations on how to move forward.  


47 of 182







 


 
Pinole City Council  
Minutes – September 21, 2021 
Page 3 
 


He recognized the TAPS Committee meetings had been routinely canceled, meetings had not 
been held for some time, but he was unaware of any Brown Act violations.  He recommended the 
TAPS Committee meetings be suspended until such time as the new Public Works Director was 
on staff and could determine how to best engage the TAPS Committee and advise the City 
Council.   
 
City Clerk Iopu explained that recruitment for the TAPS Committee had been opened and 
reflected vacancies included incumbent members whose terms had expired.  She also 
commented that there had been delays in meetings due to COVID-19 restrictions but once a new 
Public Works Director was on staff there would be a lot of work to reactivate the TAPS Committee 
and report to the City Council.   Any interested parties in available vacancies and the TAPS 
Committee practices were encouraged to contact her for more information.  Once the TAPS 
Committee had been reactivated there would be an opportunity to review the Committee 
procedures to ensure all meeting standards were being met.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS CLOSED  
 
Mayor Martinez-Rubin recognized the work of the TAPS Committee and the interest of current 
members in continuing to engage and serve the City.  She urged patience pending the retention 
of a new Public Works Director.   


 
5. RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION TO ANNOUNCE RESULTS OF CLOSED SESSION 
 
At 6:51 p.m. Mayor Martinez-Rubin reconvened the meeting to open session and announced 
there was no reportable action from the Closed Session. 
 
6. CITIZENS TO BE HEARD (Public Comments) 
Citizens may speak under any item not listed on the Agenda.  The time limit is 3 minutes and is subject to 
modification by the Mayor. Individuals may not share or offer time to another speaker.  Pursuant to 
provisions of the Brown Act, no action may be taken on a matter unless it is listed on the agenda, or unless 
certain emergency or special circumstances exist.  The City Council may direct staff to investigate and/or 
schedule certain matters for consideration at a future Council meeting. 
 
Jeff Rubin suggested the City Council’s decision to deny funding for the Faria House represented 
a setback for the supporters of the Pinole History Museum.  He suggested the City Council had 
tarnished its credibility and by extension the creditability of the City since the City of Pinole had 
declared its intent for the past two decades to create a museum in the Faria House and had given 
expectations this would happen, with millions of dollars having been raised since the community 
understood this would be a partnership between the City of Pinole and the Pinole History Museum.  
Four of the five current City Council members had attended a Pinole History Museum dinner in 
2019 with over 240 attendees present.  On June 15, 2021, the City Council received public 
comment from approximately 70 people supportive of a museum in the Faria House but still the 
City Council voted against it.  The City had paid an architect $100,000 for renovation plans and a 
cost estimate for the Faria House specifically for its use as a museum.  He objected to the use of 
taxpayer money for that purpose if the Faria House was not to be the site of a museum.   
 
Mr. Rubin added that in 2020, Council member Tave chaired an Ad Hoc Committee which 
negotiated a lease agreement with the Pinole History Museum Board, and a lease had been 
prepared by the City Attorney; however, Council member Tave had voted against an agreement 
he himself had negotiated.  He suggested Council member Tave had negotiated in bad faith on 


48 of 182







 


 
Pinole City Council  
Minutes – September 21, 2021 
Page 4 
 


behalf of the City and questioned whose interests he was representing with broken promises and 
bad faith, which was why people no longer trusted government.  He suggested the Faria House 
was no longer an asset to the City but a liability since it was deteriorating more every year.  He 
was aware of no community that had not benefitted by having a museum and suggested a 
museum in the Faria House would be a source of civic pride and encourage downtown 
development, although it was now just a disgraceful political issue.   
 
Rafael Menis thanked the City Council for his appointment to the Planning Commission and stated 
he would strive to implement the General Plan and make Pinole a better City for everyone within 
it.  He emphasized the importance of voting which was a core part of democracy, as evidenced 
by the recent recall election.  He also recognized that over 88 percent of the eligible population in 
Pinole had been vaccinated against COVID-19 and expressed his hope to reach the 90th 
percentile by December 2021.  He urged everyone to get vaccinated for their own health and the 
health of everyone around them.   
 
Igor Tregub, Senior Policy Advisor, California Solar & Storage Association and Clean Energy 
Leadership Institute Alum, reported that PG&E, Southern California Edison (SCE) and San Diego 
Electric were lobbying the California Public Utilities Commission (PUC) to make a profit grab to 
kill rooftop solar opportunities putting solar out of reach to the working class just when it had 
become accessible to all.  He asked the City Council to join a growing coalition to keep solar 
growing equitably so that the working class may access solar opportunities and solar powered 
batteries more affordably.  He asked the City Council to adopt a resolution putting the City of 
Pinole on record and joining nearly 400 other organizations, City Councils and elected officials, 
to keep solar storage growing at a time it was needed the most.   
 
Debbie Long reported it had been brought to her attention that no flag had been displayed on 9/11 
at the Veteran’s Memorial Fountain in Fernandez Park.  Since the Mayor had been contacted by 
several community members to ensure a flag was displayed at the site, a flag flying over a 
Veteran’s Memorial should have been expected.  Thanks to one community member a flag was 
now flying over the Veterans Memorial.  She understood the City Manager was not aware of the 
Veteran’s Memorial Fountain and while he was a busy man, she asked him to take the time to 
drive and walk through the City to ensure he was familiar with all of Pinole’s history.   She pointed 
out the Veteran’s Memorial Fountain was one instance why institutional knowledge was valuable 
and too often its importance was downplayed.  She also challenged Council members to go back 
ten years or more and read through the City Council meeting minutes to have a better idea why 
things were done and what may have been left undone to have a better understanding of the 
struggles experienced by previous City Councils to be able to understand that the current City 
Council goals were not new ideas, many projects had been discussed for years, and either the 
funding was not available or the technology had changed.  She suggested the current City Council 
was in an enviable position to move forward with many of those projects at this time.   
 
Ms. Long further commented that standing for the Pledge of Allegiance was her way of thanking 
the founders, the military, and Veterans for extending to everyone the freedoms that were part of 
daily life.  While Council member Murphy may express himself as he sees fit by not standing for 
the flag and while it was his right to do so, it was also her right to point it out to the community.   
 
Lisa Jackson, representing 350 Contra Costa, a climate advocacy group, also spoke to 
resolutions being put forward by different City Councils in support of solar, with 350 Contra Costa 
asking the City Council to approve a resolution to ensure that solar was an option for all families 


49 of 182







 


 
Pinole City Council  
Minutes – September 21, 2021 
Page 5 
 


in California moving forward into the future and in response to the possibility of the PUC potentially 
reducing the credits available on net metering, which would effectively disable rooftop solar for 
families and impact battery storage.   
 
7. RECOGNITIONS / PRESENTATIONS / COMMUNITY EVENTS 
 


A. Proclamations  
 


1. California Firefighter Memorial Day  
The City Council read into the record the proclamation for California Firefighter Memorial Day and 
recognized September 25, 2021 as the date for this year’s Annual California Firefighters Memorial 
Ceremony, with all citizens of Pinole encouraged to honor the courage and commitment of 
California firefighters as they continued to face the challenges of fighting ongoing wildfires.   
 
Fire Chief Chris Wynkoop thanked the City Council for the proclamation and noted that firefighters 
ranked amongst the highest in job satisfaction although that carried inherent risks.  He reported 
on the U.S. Bureau of Labor statistics which had shown that firefighters had a shorter life 
expectancy than the average population and were three times more likely to die on the job.  The 
Pinole Fire Department appreciated the California Fire Foundation for establishing California 
Firefighter Memorial Day and for building a Memorial Wall which currently carried the names of 
1,400 California firefighters, including the names of two members of the Pinole Fire Department, 
Captains Rich Voisey and Robert Ramos, who were all honored for their sacrifices.  On behalf of 
the Pinole Fire Department and the families of the fallen firefighters, the City Council was thanked 
for the proclamation.   


 


B. Presentations / Recognitions  
 
None  
 
8. CONSENT CALENDAR 
All matters under the Consent Calendar are considered to be routine and noncontroversial.  These items 
will be enacted by one motion and without discussion.  If, however, any interested party or Council 
member(s) wishes to comment on an item, they may do so before action is taken on the Consent Calendar. 
Following comments, if a Council member wishes to discuss an item, it will be removed from the Consent 
Calendar and taken up in order after adoption of the Consent Calendar. 
 
Rafael Menis referenced Page 84 of the agenda packet related to Item 8D that included an 
incorrect date for the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU), which should be corrected; Page 
103 of the agenda packet also related to Item 8D, had not listed Juneteenth as a City designated 
holiday, although it had been designated as a federal holiday in 2021; Page 108 of the agenda 
packet for the same item, the cost sharing agreement continued after the expiration of the MOU 
had been stricken from the agreement and should be clarified; and Page 112 of the agenda packet 
for the same item, the prohibitions of discrimination were broad, with political affiliation removed.   
 
As to all of the MOUs contained in the Consent Agenda (Items 8D through 8F), Mr. Menis noted 
that for all of the agreements, the Agency Shop clauses had been universally stricken from the 
agreements and he asked whether the City was shifting over to an Open Shop Agreement with 
all of the unions covered in the MOUs, whether the change was related to a change in State law, 
or whether it was reflective of an agreement with the unions.  As to Page 325 of the agenda packet 


50 of 182







 


 
Pinole City Council  
Minutes – September 21, 2021 
Page 6 
 


for Item 8H, the local hiring language in the resolution had been removed and he asked for 
clarification.  With respect to Item 8I, water, electricity and utility costs had been marked as 
significantly exceeding the revised budget and he asked staff for clarification; Page 524 of the 
agenda packet for the same item, the rate stabilization fund had been effectively established and 
he asked whether that meant there was no excess revenue from 2013 to 2020; Page 532 of the 
agenda packet for the same item, the revenue was significantly higher than originally anticipated 
with no revenue anticipated in the pension fund, original or revised budget, and he asked why no 
estimate had been made before this point.; and for the same item the recognized obligation 
retirement fund had a massive increase in revenues over the expected amount, and he asked of 
the cause.   
 
Finance Director Markisha Guillory stated she would have to do some research on some of the 
questions asked but reported that water and electricity had exceeded the budget across the 
Departments and analysis would be required to ensure it was captured in the mid-year budget.  
She also clarified the excess revenue and rate stabilization funds had been recently created and 
staff had conducted an analysis to ensure the excess funds from previous years had been carried 
over to the new stabilization fund. Also, Fund 700, Pension Fund, a fiduciary trust fund was not 
budgeted with the revenue for interest and investment income, with staff to review how that fund 
had been approached in terms of budgeting.   For the expected interest income, staff would have 
to take a further look at that and for Fund 750, Recognized Obligation Retirement Fund for the 
Successor Agency, staff had noted the accounting was a bit different than what had been done 
in the past and she described the differences, with the trend line to be corrected to make better 
sense.   
 
City Manager Murray provided further clarification in response to Mr. Menis’ questions, clarifying 
that holidays were a negotiated benefit, some of the MOUs included a clause which stipulated 
federally recognized holidays for City employees with some trading of holidays through the 
negotiation process, which was why some holidays may appear in some MOUs and not others.  
There had also been a change in State law regarding the collection of union dues and 
requirements related to Agency versus Open Shops where the MOUs had been modified to be 
consistent with current State law.  He explained that he would be happy to receive any detailed 
questions in advance and provide responses after the meeting.   
 
City Attorney Eric Casher also responded to the removal of the local hire provision as part of Item 
8H.  He explained that the San Pablo Avenue Rehabilitation Project had received federal funding, 
and while there were local hire preferences in the City’s procurement policy and standard 
specifications, federally funded projects did not allow for local hire requirements and that clause 
had been removed as a result.   
 
Assistant City Manager Hector De La Rosa provided additional clarification in response to the 
change in State law regarding the collection of union dues and requirements related to Agency 
versus Open Shops where the MOUs had been modified to be consistent with current State law. 
 
Council member Murphy referenced Item 8H, understood the City did not have the funding for the 
project promised to the City, and requested clarification from staff.   
 
Senior Project Manager Misha Kaur explained that the project had come to the City Council 
before, the plans were as previously presented, but before the project was bid to meet federal 
funding requirements the specifications had to be revised.   The City had received an allocation 


51 of 182







 


 
Pinole City Council  
Minutes – September 21, 2021 
Page 7 
 


of $586,000 from Caltrans for the project, with the rest of the money already programmed in the 
Capital Improvement Program (CIP), and simultaneously the City had responded to the 
Congressman solicitation for $742,000 in funds earmarked in the Infrastructure Bill, but the money 
was not guaranteed to the City of Pinole.  If the bill was signed, the City would receive that portion 
of the funding for the project.  If the bill was not signed, the City would move forward regardless 
since there were deadlines for the federal funding the City had received.  The remainder of the 
project would be funded from Fund 377, Arterial Rehab Fund and Measure S, although if the City 
received the funds as part of the Infrastructure Bill, funds from Fund 377 would not have to be 
used.  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Salimi advised he would abstain from Item 8A since he had been absent from the 
July 20, 2021 meeting.  
 
Assistant City Manager De La Rosa reported as related to Item 8G, in accordance with Senate 
Bill (SB) 1436 and Assembly Bill (AB) 1344, the City must present to the City Council and the 
public an oral report summarizing the adjustment to executive employees, in this case the City 
Manager and City Clerk.  He informed the City Council and the public that both the City Clerk and 
the City Manager were to receive a three percent Cost of Living (COLA) adjustment effective July 
5, 2021, as noted in the staff report.   
 


A. Approve the Minutes of the Meetings of July 20, 2021 
 


B. Receive the September 4, 2021 – September 17, 2021 List of Warrants in the 
Amount of $760,020.73 and the September 17, 2021 Payroll in the Amount of 
$433,953.20  


 
C. Resolution Confirming the Continued Existence of Local Emergency [Action:  


Adopt Resolution per Staff Recommendation (Casher)] 
 


D. Adopt a Resolution Approving a Memorandum of Understanding Between the City 
of Pinole and International Association of Fire Fighters (IAFF) for the Period of July 
1, 2021 – June 30, 2023. [Action:  Adopt Resolution per Staff 
Recommendation (De Las Rosa)]  


 
E. Adopt a Resolution Approving a Memorandum of Understanding Between the City 


of Pinole and American Federation of State, County, and Municipal Employees 
(AFSCME) Local 512 for the Period of July 1, 2021 – June 30, 2023.  [Action:  
Adopt Resolution per Staff Recommendation (De La Rosa)] 


 
F. Adopt a Resolution Approving a Memorandum of Understanding Between the City 


of Pinole and Public Employees Union (PEU) Local One for the Period of July 1, 
2021 – June 30, 2023 [Action:  Adopt Resolution per Staff Recommendation 
(De La Rosa)] 


 
G. Approve an Amendment to City Manager Andrew Murray’s and City Clerk Heather 


Iopu’s Employment Agreement to Reflect a 3% Cost of Living Adjustment (COLA) 
Effective July 5, 2021 [Action:  Adopt Resolution per Staff Recommendation 
(De La Rosa)] 


 


52 of 182







 


 
Pinole City Council  
Minutes – September 21, 2021 
Page 8 
 


H. Adopt Revised Plans and Specifications for the San Pablo Avenue Rehabilitation 
Project (CIP Project #RO1801) [Action:  Adopt Resolution per Staff 
Recommendation (Kaur)] 


 
I. Receive the Fiscal Year (FY 2020-21 Fourth Quarter Financial Report [Action:  


Receive Report and Adopt Resolution per Staff Recommendation (Guillory)] 
 
J. Approve the Fiscal Year 2021-22 Salary Schedule and Approve the Updated Fiscal 


Year 2017-18, Through Fiscal Year 2020-21 Salary Schedules for All Represented 
and Unrepresented Employee Classifications in Conformance with California Code 
of Regulations, Title 2, Section 570.5 and Rescinding All Prior Salary Schedules 
During the Same Period [Action:  Adopt Resolution per Staff Recommendation 
(De La Rosa)]  


 
ACTION:  Motion by Council members Toms/Murphy to Approve Consent Calendar Items 
8B through 8J.  
  
Vote:   Passed  5-0 


Ayes:   Martinez-Rubin, Salimi, Tave, Murphy, Toms 
Noes:   None  
Abstain:   None 
Absent:   None 


 
ACTION:  Motion by Council members Toms/Murphy to Approve Consent Calendar Item 
8A.  
  
Vote:   Passed  4-0-1 


Ayes:   Martinez-Rubin, Tave, Murphy, Toms 
Noes:   None  
Abstain:   Salimi 
Absent:   None 


 
9. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
Citizens wishing to speak regarding a Public Hearing item should fill out a speaker card prior to the 
completion of the presentation, by first providing a speaker card to the City Clerk. An official who engaged in 
an ex parté communication that is the subject of a Public Hearing must disclose the communication on the record prior 
to the start of the Public Hearing. 
 
None  
 
10. OLD BUSINESS 
 


A. Discuss and Provide Direction on Installation of Lights on Street Trees in Old Town 
During the Winter Holiday Season [Action:  Discuss and Provide Direction 
(Bingaman)] 
 


Public Works Manager Joseph Bingaman provided a PowerPoint presentation and recommended 
the City Council discuss and provide direction to staff on the following:   
 


• Whether to install lights in street trees in Old Town for the 2021 holiday season; 


53 of 182







 


 
Pinole City Council  
Minutes – September 21, 2021 
Page 9 
 


 
• In what area of Old Town should tree lights be installed; 
 
• During what calendar period should the lights be lit; 
 
• Where on the tree trunk and canopy should the lights be installed; and 
 
• What color or type of light should be installed. 


 
PUBLIC COMMENTS OPENED  
 
City Clerk Iopu reported there were no public comments for this item.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS CLOSED  
 
Responding to the Council, Public Works Manager Bingaman explained that if the City Council 
decided to move forward and the lights were required to be installed and removed each year, 
labor costs may be similar to the estimated costs identified in the staff report.   As the lights 
themselves, they were durable with a long life expectancy and could be replaced in segments 
reducing the cost of replacement. The City Council would have to decide whether the lights should 
be removed from the trees each year and reinstalled each season, or left in the trees with repairs 
done as needed.  As to what other cities had done for similar lighting in terms of costs, staff had 
not looked into what other cities had done for light installations but had researched the costs other 
cities had spent to install electrical utilities, which was where the cost of $100,000 to provide 
electrical underground service had come from as outlined in the staff report.    
 
Public Works Manager Bingaman expressed the willingness to see what neighboring cities had 
done to provide holiday lighting.  In terms of scale, the intent was to use commercial grade lights, 
expand the light strings both up and down the tree to provide a more robust lighting of the trees.  
With the commercial light strings, adapters and lights in segments would allow the Public Works 
Department to expand the lights on the trees, which was one of the components the City Council 
was asked to provide direction.  
 
Given the budget figures provided, the proposal was to go up into the higher portion of the tree 
canopy, not all the way to the crown given some issues, but farther into the canopies to provide 
a more detailed appearance on the trees rather than lights only on the trunks.  While vandalism 
had occurred in the past, it had not occurred on a regular basis. If there was damage to the 
commercial strand of lights, since they come in 8-foot sections the sections may be disconnected 
saving time to remove and reinstall the lights.  As to whether additional conduit could be worked 
into the scope of the San Pablo Avenue Rehabilitation Project, Public Works Manager Bingaman 
explained that would have to be researched further.    
 
Council member Tave supported leaving the lights on the trees year around but removing the 
trunk portion to reduce vandalism if at all possible.   
 
Further responding to the Council, City Manager Murray advised that the City had expended all 
of its Rule 20A credits for underground work on upper Pinole Valley Road.  While the program 
was being reconfigured, future funds were unknown.  Given that the site being considered for tree 


54 of 182







 


 
Pinole City Council  
Minutes – September 21, 2021 
Page 10 
 


lighting was far from the San Pablo Avenue Bridge, it was unlikely the project could be included 
in the scope of that work although staff could research that possibility.  
 
Council member Toms preferred clear lights rather than red or green lights which may conflict 
with traffic signals; supported leaving the lights on throughout the year but removing the lower 
trunk section; encouraged the lights to be set up the week of Thanksgiving; clarified with staff the 
project was not currently in the budget with money to be set aside for the project; supported 
allocating funds in the budget for the project from the General Fund or Measure S; and 
commented it may be possible to consider the use of American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) funds 
for the project since it was located in the commercial core, which could be discussed as part of 
the upcoming workshop on the allocation of ARPA funds.   
 
Mayor Martinez-Rubin supported an equal amount of lighting on the east end of San Pablo 
Avenue as the west side, and clarified with staff how the lights could be distributed equally via a 
more robust battery/solar type of light with enhancement only possible with more lights in the 
trees.  Staff noted the illumination of the directly wired power lights could not be matched absent 
the same, and there was acknowledgment that the lights on the west side of San Pablo Avenue 
were greater than on the east end of San Pablo Avenue.   
 
Mayor Martinez-Rubin also clarified with staff how vandalism could be addressed by leaving the 
lights on year-round but removing those on the lower trunk area and relocating the outlet 
approximately 8-feet up in the trees, minimizing actual and unintentional damage to the lights.   
 
As to each question staff had asked the City Council to opine there was additional discussion on 
each question with City Council consensus to: 
 


• Install lights in street trees in Old Town for the 2021 holiday season;  
 


• The areas identified on the map included in Attachment A (Phases 1 and 2) to the staff 
report were the areas of Old Town where tree lights should be installed;  
 


• The lights should be illuminated year-round;  
 


• The location on the tree trunk and canopy where the lights should be installed should be 
left to the discretion of Public Works Department staff; with the City Council desirous to 
have as many trees as possible illuminated equally.  
  


• The color or type of light to be installed to be a uniform color, basic white and non-blinking.  
 
Council member Murphy suggested a standardized process and program for lights in street trees 
in Old Town should be considered, particularly to educate the public.   
 
11. NEW BUSINESS 


A. Overview of Senate Bill (SB) 1383, Regarding Short-Lived Climate Pollutants 
[Action:  Receive Presentation (Kaur)] 


Senior Project Manager Kaur provided a PowerPoint presentation of SB 1383 regarding the 
production of short-lived climate pollutants, the most significant waste reduction mandate adopted 
in California in the last 30 years, with significant policy and legal implications for State and local 


55 of 182







 


 
Pinole City Council  
Minutes – September 21, 2021 
Page 11 
 


governments.  SB 1383, an unfunded mandate, would ultimately impact property owners, tenants, 
multifamily residences, commercial entities, and public entities within the City.  Budgetary 
planning would be necessary to address implementation of programmatic activities including 
enforcement, inspections, outreach and collection associated with implementation of SB 1383, 
and the associated activities may be managed and financed through the Solid Waste Fund; 
however due to uncertainties in the implementation of costs, it may be necessary to consider an 
SB 1383 implementation fee.  Failure by a local jurisdiction to enact and undertake all SB 1383 
responsibilities would result in non-compliance and fines of up to $10,000 per day.  
 
While the State had suggested that 2022 and 2023 would be non-adversarial years where the 
State would only provide guidance and technical assistance, the regulations did not preclude fines 
during the established grace period, with mandatory jurisdiction enforcement by 2024.   
 
Next steps for the implementation of SB 1383 regulations would include the adoption of an 
enforceable mechanism and staff recommended amendment of Chapter 8.08 of Pinole Municipal 
Code (PMC) for Solid Waste.  Staff planned to return to the City Council in October and November 
2021 for the first and second readings of proposed amendments related to the implementation of 
SB 1383, consideration of entering into an MOU with RecycleMore, amendment of the Franchise 
Agreement with Republic Services and/or an MOU, and update of the City’s procurement policy.  
Staff would also be required to internally document and provide ongoing verification of SB 1383 
compliance.  Over the next several months staff would work to meet the provisions within the 
prescribed deadlines and continue with the review of the draft ordinance, policy documents, with 
meetings with Republic Services and RecycleMore to refine the compliance responsibilities, 
establishment of enforcement procedures, and steps to meet the procurement period of the 
recovery of organic waste.   
 
Senior Project Manager Kaur also provided an overview of SB 619, which allowed local 
jurisdictions having a hard time and facing continuing violations of non-compliance with SB 1383 
during the 2022 calendar year, to request that CalRecycle waive penalties for the jurisdiction if 
that jurisdiction implemented a remedy plan.  SB 629 was now on the Governor’s desk for 
consideration.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS OPENED  
 
Rafael Menis questioned why the City Council was just now seeing this information in late 
September when the City would have to update multiple ordinances, which would take staff and 
City Council time with multiple meetings required.  He was curious why the item had been 
scheduled at this time rather than earlier when the RecycleMore report on SB 1383 Preparedness 
had been completed.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS CLOSED  
 
Responding to the Council, Senior Project Manager Kaur explained that behind the scenes of the 
completion of the RecycleMore SB 1383 Preparedness Report, there had been a draft ordinance 
that had also been prepared which had taken some time, and there were many elements that 
were involved with this issue which also took time.  Staff expected to have what was required in 
place to ensure the City of Pinole was in compliance by January 1, 2022.  She also clarified that 
the targets in SB 1383 were statewide.  The RecycleMore SB 1383 Preparedness Report had not 
focused on the Pinole-Hercules Wastewater Treatment Plant since the law was not jurisdiction 


56 of 182







 


 
Pinole City Council  
Minutes – September 21, 2021 
Page 12 
 


specific and every jurisdiction had the same requirements.  Tons for procurement had been based 
on a population target.    
 
As to whether the Wastewater Treatment Plant could be used to facilitate the process of 
pretreated organic waste, that possibility had not been discussed at this time but staff could return 
with more information.  There had been no discussions at this time on potential incentives but that 
could also be evaluated.  At this time the focus was on who would do what in terms of enforcement 
with no list compiled yet as to who may not be compliant.  There was uncertainty whether solar 
trash bins would satisfy any requirement of SB 1383, which would have to be verified in that the 
solar trash bins were a separate City project.  If the City elected to enter into a MOU with 
RecycleMore, RecycleMore already conducted some of the City’s compliance and reporting to 
CalRecycle, and if the City Council so directed that information could be shared with the Council.   
 
City Manager Murray commented that the level of staff time that would be required for this effort 
was uncertain, determinations were still required as to what could be negotiated between the City 
of Pinole, RecycleMore and Republic Services in terms of who would do what, with each entity 
having different funding mechanisms to take on some of the requirements and the details were 
not yet available.  He suggested the City of Pinole was in better shape than other jurisdictions 
that did not have an entity like RecycleMore and he agreed with the need for future discussions 
on how to expand existing programs.   
 
Mayor Martinez-Rubin requested that RecycleMore make available on a regional basis 
information that could be customized for Pinole, whether developed for business/commercial and 
the general public, to comply with SB 1383.  She had spoken with representatives from Republic 
Services on their support to provide the City of Pinole content to be used for broadcast on Pinole 
TV and had been informed they worked on a regional level.  She was pleased there were a 
number of different teams already in support of this effort but asked that Council member Tave, 
the City’s representative to RecycleMore, make available whatever regional materials were 
produced to be broadcast or distributed to the public on this topic that could be customized for 
Pinole.  
 
Council member Tave commented that SB 1383 had been a moving target for some time.  Pinole 
was a member of the RecycleMore JPA and the information started with the JPA and funneled 
down to the City Manager and City Engineer.  He would ensure that information was provided to 
the City Manager and disseminated to everyone more formally.   
 
Senior Project Manager Kaur understood that RecycleMore was in the process of recreating its 
website and developing materials and once the content had been developed, a section of Pinole’s 
website could also provide a link to RecycleMore materials.   
 


B. Discussion of the City’s Participation in United Against Hate Week (UAHW) in 2021 
and Possible Direction to Staff [Action:  Discuss and Provide Direction (De La 
Rosa)] 


 
Maria Picazo, Recreation Manager, presented the staff report and recommended the City Council 
discuss ways in which the City may participate in the United Against Hate Week (UAHW) and 
provide direction to staff.   
 


57 of 182







 


 
Pinole City Council  
Minutes – September 21, 2021 
Page 13 
 


Assistant City Manager De La Rosa reported that National Night Out would be celebrated on 
October 5, 2021, with posters to be distributed to the public on UAHW if the City Council approved 
the allocation of funds for the printing of the posters.   
 
Responding to the Council, Recreation Manager Picazo again detailed the background and 
purpose of UAHW, reiterated that National Night Out had been scheduled for October 5, and a 
station would be located at the event to allow posters on UAHW to be distributed.    
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS OPENED  
 
Rafael Menis, speaking on behalf of himself and Pinole Progressive Alliance, supported the City 
of Pinole’s participation in UAHW in all the ways discussed in the staff report, with bigotry and 
hatred to be opposed as individuals and collectively as the City.  He commented on the increase 
in hate crimes against Asian Americans and Pacific Islanders (AAPI) and wanted everyone to 
know that the City stood with everyone regardless of race, color and ethnicity with bigotry and 
hatred unacceptable, and the City should do everything in its power to make it abundantly clear 
the City was united against hate and hate crimes and attacks on individuals were not welcome in 
the City of Pinole.  
 
Cameron Sasai, supported the City’s participation in UAHW and the comments offered by Mr. 
Menis, and added that despite a City Council Proclamation from April 2021 in support of the AAPI 
communities, there had been a significant increase in hate crimes against the AAPI community 
and in anti-Black crimes in the country, many of which had taken place in the Bay Area.  He 
supported a more robust discussion about hate crime prevention and the implementation of 
concrete solutions to the ongoing hate epidemic, particularly against the AAPI and black 
communities and include a holistic view of Police Department practices to documenting hate 
crimes, more communication to the public about resources on reporting hate crimes, community 
outreach events for Asian and Black communities and possibly a task force or commission that 
could act as a non-police body to collect hate crime reports, act as a liaison to the Police 
Department, and recommend policy changes that may enhance the handling of such crimes.  For 
the benefit of the community and for the protection of the most vulnerable of the community, he 
urged the City Council to supplement its involvement in UAHW by taking concrete action against 
hate at the local level.    
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS CLOSED  
 
Mayor Martinez-Rubin encouraged the speakers to work with the City on UAHW, noted the City 
had taken concrete steps beyond a resolution, and the UAHW campaign made available for 
activities that could be considered.  Everyone was encouraged to help the City Council enhance 
safety and inclusivity in Pinole.    
 
Council member Murphy thanked the public for their comments   He liked the idea of requesting 
that the Pinole Library create a booklist of UAHW books and clarified with Recreation Manager 
Picazo that she had been in contact with the Pinole Library around the theme of UAHW.   
 
Council member Murphy referenced the U.S. Surgeon General’s Report on the rise of hate crime 
against the AAPI and Black communities, suggested the messaging should be more specific on 
the hate experienced in Pinole and Recreation Manager Picazo suggested that specific 
messaging should be discussed by the City Council.   


58 of 182







 


 
Pinole City Council  
Minutes – September 21, 2021 
Page 14 
 


 
Council member Murphy again supported a booklist at Pinole Library and a documentary/movie 
list about fighting hate, and urged the City Council to use UAHW to highlight one to three members 
of the youth community who were actively fighting AAPI, anti-Black and LGBTQ+ hate in support 
of a more diverse community. 
 
Council member Toms supported the discussion and the suggestions along with specific 
experiences such as those raised by leaders of the Black Lives Matter March in March 2020, who 
could be encouraged to provide a short video telling their story, to be directly submitted to the 
UAHW campaign, and include students from Pinole Valley High School.   
 
Recreation Manager Picazo advised that she could look into whether any groups would be 
interested in providing short videos.   There were some documentaries that could be included on 
the resource list that were being promoted through the UAHW website.  UAHW could also be 
asked to provide some criteria on the videos which could be distributed to the public.   
 
City Manager Murray clarified that one of the recommendations from UAHW was to encourage 
local leaders to submit a short video in support of UAHW to the campaign organizers at 
“unitedagainsthateweek.org” which could be posted on the UAHW website.   Rather than asking 
for standardized videos to be submitted to the City of Pinole, he recommended a website with 
links to the videos on the UAHW website. 
 
Mayor Martinez-Rubin suggested there was a way to expand UAHW in Pinole with the City 
Council to champion and encourage any groups outside of the City Council to participate in 
UAHW, and there was a benefit to having youth involved to extend what the City Council may do.   
She supported the activities that staff had identified as achievable this year and adding more 
activities in future years.  
 
Council member Murphy offered a motion, seconded by Council member Toms, to move forward 
with the seven recommendations as shown in the staff report, with a budget of $2,000.   
 
On the motion, Mayor Martinez-Rubin clarified with staff that all cities participating in UAHW had 
been provided a poster, the poster for Pinole would have the City of Pinole listed.   Staff was in 
the process of having copies of the poster made to be distributed during National Night Out, and 
staff had requested that the poster be comprised of high quality paper to ensure durability.   
 
Council member Toms requested a jpeg of the poster be provided to the City Council which could 
be included on their signature line, which City Manager Murray confirmed could be done. 
 
City Manager Murray otherwise urged caution in that the City Council may need to consider in the 
near future whether this would be precedent setting, and what the Council’s support should be for 
causes moving forward.  He would return to the City Council to obtain direction and discuss 
possible standards on the level of supporting, communicating and amplifying messages regarding 
different causes the City Council may recognize.   
  
ACTION:  Motion by Council members Murphy/Toms to Move Forward with the Seven 
Recommendations as Shown in the Staff Report, with a Budget of $2,000.   
 
Vote:   Passed  5-0 


Ayes:   Martinez-Rubin, Salimi, Tave, Murphy, Toms 


59 of 182







 


 
Pinole City Council  
Minutes – September 21, 2021 
Page 15 
 


Noes:   None  
Abstain:   None 
Absent:   None 


 
12. REPORTS & COMMUNICATIONS  
 


A. Mayor Report 
1. Announcements 
 


Mayor Martinez-Rubin reported she had attended a WestCAT Board meeting on September 9 
and WestCAT was providing free fares during the month of September on all routes; and she had 
served on a Special Committee facilitating the Revenue and Taxation Policy Committee of the 
League of California Cities, with a discussion of two resolutions which she highlighted at this time, 
to be discussed at the upcoming League of California Cities Annual Conference.  She continued 
to request that everyone abide by masking indoors/social distancing and to the extent possible, 
getting vaccinated.   
 


B.   Mayoral & Council Appointments  
 
None  


 
C.   City Council Committee Reports & Communications 


 
Mayor Pro Tem Salimi invited members of the community to reach out to him directly with specific 
issues they would like to see discussed in 2021-22, and reported that he was working with the 
City Manager and staff to organize agendas for the next year.   
 
Council member Tave reported he had attended a West Contra Costa Integrated Waste 
Management Authority (RecycleMore) meeting with a presentation on SB 1383, and with a 
sample MOU to be distributed to each city.  He looked forward to attending the upcoming League 
of California Cities Annual Conference.   
 
Council member Murphy thanked those who had participated in his recent coffee and 
conversation virtual meeting and invited interested persons to visit his website 
murphyforpinole.com to sign up for the next coffee and conversation scheduled for Sunday, 
October 3 at 9:00 a.m.  He thanked the volunteers, City staff and those at the Senior Center who 
had helped with the Food Bank at the Senior Center held the second Sunday of each month as 
well as all the volunteers who had participated in the recent Coastal Clean-Up.  He too 
encouraged everyone to get vaccinated and reported the next Marin Clean Energy (MCE) Board 
meeting had been scheduled for October 7, 2021, with public comment encouraged.   
 
Council member Toms reported she had attended a WestCAT meeting and through the month of 
September free rides would be available on WestCAT and BART, Clipper® Card use would be 
50 percent off, and free fares included the ferry system.   She too appreciated the volunteer efforts 
for the Coastal Clean-Up and reminded everyone that National Night out would be held on 
October 5, and that the regular City Council meeting of that date had been canceled to allow the 
City Council to participate in the event.   The next Dumpster Day had been scheduled for October 
9 and the City Council would hold a workshop on that same day to discuss the use of ARPA funds.   
 


60 of 182







 


 
Pinole City Council  
Minutes – September 21, 2021 
Page 16 
 


Mayor Martinez-Rubin thanked the local businesses that had donated food items during the 
Coastal Clean-Up and also recognized the Community Services Commission, City staff and the 
many community service organizations that had also participated.   
 


D. Council Requests for Future Agenda Items 
 


Mayor Pro Tem Salimi requested a future agenda item to discuss the City Council salary and 
consider a COLA adjustment with no policy set for City Council salaries.   
 
Council member Toms commented the last time there had been a discussion of City Council 
salaries there had been a recommendation that it be considered during the same cycle as the 
labor agreements, which the City Council had just approved via items on the Consent Calendar.   
 
Mayor Martinez-Rubin requested a presentation on the City Council salaries, origins of the 
salaries, and what it would entail to catch up with the reasonable expenses Council members 
expended in the execution of their duties. 
 
Council member Tave requested a future agenda item discussion of City Commission/Committee 
stipends.  Consensus given.   
 
Mayor Martinez-Rubin asked for more information on what other cities had done.   
 
Council member Murphy requested a future agenda item, both discussion and action, around 
what community events Pinole TV attended and the process in which a community organization 
may request the attendance of Pinole TV.   
 
Mayor Martinez-Rubin sought a full explanation about how Pinole TV operated and its revenue 
generation as part of any presentation; Council member Toms agreed that including costs and 
sponsorship information should also be provided. 
 
Council member Murphy sought a better understanding of the standardized process and policy 
around Pinole TV and creating a calendar for 2022 to better inform the public of what was 
expected.  
 
Mayor Martinez-Rubin suggested a presentation from staff on what Pinole TV did now, how it 
could be enhanced, and the costs involved.   
 
Consensus given.   
 
Council member Murphy requested a future agenda item on the holiday tree lighting celebration, 
a City sponsored event, including budget, planning, logistics and how the City Council may 
support that program.   
 
City Manager Murray did not recall the topic being discussed, or acted upon as a future agenda 
item, and sought direction from the City Council on the tree lighting events and related activities 
at the Senior Center.   
 
Council member Murphy reiterated that at the prior City Council meeting, he had made a request 
for a future agenda item for the City Council to have an update and report on the holiday tree 


61 of 182







 


 
Pinole City Council  
Minutes – September 21, 2021 
Page 17 
 


lighting celebration along with whether a budget needed to be allocated. He wanted the business 
owners who participated and supported the event to feel supported and would like it to be a future 
agenda item.   
 
Mayor Martinez-Rubin understood the request was really a report from the Recreation 
Department and how it conducted its activities, and Council member Murphy suggested a report 
would be a great start and reiterated his intent to learn about the processing for such events, 
whether any fees would be waived for permitting the event, and that such processes be identified 
to ensure there was no miscommunication around the execution of that event.   
 
Mayor Martinez-Rubin understood that the request may dovetail with working with non-profit 
organizations and businesses that worked with the City, either having collaborated in the past or 
potentially collaborating in the future.   
 
City Manager Murray saw the request for a future agenda item as a specific request related to the 
holiday tree lighting and not dissimilar to the discussion on the tree lighting in Old Town.  A future 
agenda request related to working with private organizations and sponsoring events was much 
broader, had not been brought back to the City Council for discussion since the organization was 
undergoing a transition and build out of that function of the City, and the newly established 
Community Services Department had been tasked with coordinating with private entities that 
wanted to sponsor events in the City.  The tree lighting ceremony was a City event, some 
sponsorships helped to support the tree lighting, and he saw the request as a discussion of the 
City’s plans for the tree lighting for this year and confirmation to ensure that the City Council and 
staff were on the same page, and allow the City Council to provide additional input.  If the City 
Council wanted to have that discussion he could have staff assemble that work.   
 
Consensus given on Council member Murphy’s request for a future agenda item related to the 
tree lighting ceremony, as discussed.   
 


E. City Manager Report / Department Staff 
 


City Manager Murray reported on the number of in-person community events that had been 
enjoyed including the Coastal Clean-Up; the upcoming Car Show scheduled for September 26; 
National Night Out on October 5; and the Special City Council Workshop on October 9 to discuss 
the ARPA fund parameters, with the meeting to be held virtually and with a second workshop 
scheduled for November 6.  An outside facilitator would be present to provide expertise and 
guidance.  A mailer would be sent to all residents of Pinole with a digital version to be forwarded 
to the City Council.   
 
City Manager Murray also provided information on federal, state and county level programs 
related to renter protections and energy cost relief with information on the Contra Costa County 
website related to COVID-19 assistance and a statewide website, housingiskey.com, which had 
informed on the state programs.   The City website also had an affordable housing page with links 
to the County’s affordable housing sites.   
 
In response to a request for a modeling tool to be used for the discussion of the ARPA funds, 
Finance Director Guillory reported on the plans to use an interactive tool which would be launched 
after the first workshop, with results to be reported at the second workshop; and City Manager 
Murray reported a potential business survey may also be deployed to businesses. 


62 of 182







 


 
Pinole City Council  
Minutes – September 21, 2021 
Page 18 
 


 
F. City Attorney Report 


 
City Attorney Casher reported that Governor Newsom had recently passed AB 361, which 
extended the time that cities may continue to operate remotely for virtual public meetings, and 
required the City Council to revisit that decision every 30 days, with an item to be presented to 
the City Council for discussion at a future meeting.  He added he would be attending the League 
of California Cities Annual Conference and would be making a presentation on legal issues 
related to advancing diversity, equity, and inclusion.   
 
13. ADJOURNMENT to a Special City Council Meeting of October 9, 2021 in Remembrance 


of Amber Swartz.  
 
At 9:59 p.m. Mayor Martinez-Rubin adjourned the meeting to the Special City Council Meeting of 
October 9, 2021 in Remembrance of Amber Swartz.   
 
Submitted by: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Heather Iopu, CMC 
City Clerk 
 
Approved by City Council:  
 


63 of 182







64 of 182







65 of 182







66 of 182







67 of 182







68 of 182







69 of 182







70 of 182







71 of 182







72 of 182







73 of 182







74 of 182







75 of 182







76 of 182







77 of 182







78 of 182







79 of 182







80 of 182







81 of 182







82 of 182







83 of 182







84 of 182







85 of 182







   


  CITY COUNCIL  
  REPORT 8C 


 
 
DATE: OCTOBER 19, 2021 
 
TO:  HONORABLE MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 
 
FROM: ERIC CASHER, CITY ATTORNEY 
 
SUBJECT: RESOLUTION CONFIRMING CONTINUED EXISTENCE OF LOCAL 


EMERGENCY 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a resolution confirming the continued 
existence of a local emergency.   
 
BACKGROUND 
 
On March 18, 2020, the City Manager, acting as Director of Emergency Services, 
proclaimed a local emergency pursuant to California Government Code Section 
8630 and Pinole Municipal Code Chapter 2.32. The emergency declaration was 
based on public health and safety concerns for persons and property within the City 
as a consequence of the global spread of novel coronavirus 2019 ("COVID-19"), 
including confirmed cases in Contra Costa County, as well as, the Contra Costa 
County Department of Health’s shelter in place order dated March 16, 2020. The 
City Council subsequently adopted a resolution affirming the City Manager’s 
emergency declaration.  
 
The California Emergency Services Act requires the City Council to review the need 
for continuing the local emergency at least once every sixty (60) days. Although the 
local emergency does not end until terminated by the City Council, the Pinole 
Municipal Code requires the City Council to review the need for continuing the local 
emergency every fourteen (14) days.  
 
The City Council has confirmed the continued existence of the local emergency 
repeatedly since the emergency was first declared, including most recently on 
September 21, 2021. This staff report discusses the current status of the COVID-19 
pandemic and the emergency declaration, and whether the local emergency 
declaration should continue.  
 
DISCUSSION  
 
Current Case & Vaccination Trends 
 


86 of 182







City Council Report  
October 19, 2021                                                                                                                                  2 


There have now been over 97,000 cases of COVID-19 within the County and 
approximately 967 deaths, which is an approximately 5% increase from two weeks 
ago. The case rate within the County for vaccinated individuals is approximately 2 
new case per day per 100,000 people. The case rate within the County for 
unvaccinated individuals is approximately 16 cases per day per 100,000, which is a 
decrease of approximately 50% over the last month. 
 
In Pinole, the rate of new cases over the last 14 days is approximately 67 new cases 
per 100,000 people. This is a decrease of almost 67% over the last month. This 
pattern is consistent with trends throughout Contra Costa County and California of  
case rates declining from extreme highs that occurred in late August.  
 
Administration of the COVID-19 vaccine has been very successful in Contra Costa 
County, but progress has mostly stopped. The County estimates that over 87.5% of 
residents over the age of 12 have now received the first dose of the vaccine, and 
around 82% are fully vaccinated. Over 1.71 million vaccinations have already been 
administered in the County. These numbers have only increased slightly over the 
last month.   
 
Everyone over the age of 12 is eligible to receive a COVID-19 vaccine in California. 
Appointments can be made through the County at cchealth.org/coronavirus or by 
calling 1-833-829-2626, as well as at https://myturn.ca.gov/. In addition, individuals 
can make appointments through their health care provider or certain local 
pharmacies, including Walgreens and CVS.  
 
Role of Emergency Declaration  
 
Under State law and the Pinole Municipal Code, the City may declare an emergency 
to respond to conditions of disaster or of extreme peril to the safety of persons and 
property within Pinole. There are three main reasons for a City to adopt an 
emergency declaration, each of which is addressed below. First, an emergency 
declaration gives the City the power to adopt emergency rules and waive certain 
otherwise applicable procedural requirements. For example, the City has used this 
power to allow businesses to obtain temporary use permits to operate outside 
without going through the normal process established by the Zoning Code. The City 
also used these powers to adopt an eviction moratorium, prior to the enactment of a 
similar moratorium by the County and State.  
 
Second, an emergency declaration is usually necessary for the City to access 
certain types of State and Federal emergency funding. This requirement is common 
for natural disasters and other types of localized emergencies. Because of the 
widespread nature of the COVID-19 pandemic, State and Federal financial 
assistance related to COVID-19 has been provided without a requirement that the 
City maintain a general emergency declaration.  
 
Third, an emergency declaration sends a message to the public that unusual 
conditions exists that actively threaten the public health, safety or welfare in the 


87 of 182



https://nam11.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fr20.rs6.net%2Ftn.jsp%3Ff%3D001frx3AMYy2SrByfXx8sFZ5PFcbDG-CkqDUv9-7dzlOiW20jPeTGu3fIOgezGJ7xFJGRdtPePROj4tXUMJtvhlSYEPe6R9CV_r741DphnxwCnwvGXN8xyT9xrVVI-Dkqv6LyD4PG4UPSCcY4WhX1z23grGA3lbS8BXPaXvDfEM0itJPLQjpbXiPHJcBifzWVhakWQUVhVmrX6g2eWgIj17Qak7Sh2GPTUDQ7SEw8z2gmjs-CwgOD0Jk9FSRQ9XSi9GBd2jK_S9C42UJMut5g_bnEnVmRYaJKvJt2s7fANLSuWs74LbiD9GVj_WvsDo4B701K_sf0qcZGL7W8gvoGaG5GnomoeGrQtNZgVRYNxQk4AOGT87Hbd22uX8_F0DQTsFzQy9jtrw71mNGhN6MpOwoe80f5TZyhBhgAQ_uo-pVxk2vx0cN-WBP-riWt1AbQaOtu1G8w82mYxJriEE4Ta51T56xdJRVQdYHNTqui06wAb9d1YrvSZUA_e-ORfrGrBaU4oNe2sr0jPd7leJjC5XwQPZLWt2FkNpKiWKZnpCYS3cUV9zewo5iVYjnQNFEKISPauE-YVubJwTvok40XHdDJDwJDIrQc5k897WYUyvjnFP3U5CT5_sLAEbBHO5xaqRgOktkeyAoKYCEaPcl9V16U0Ggm0PYWp6henYidZamAPb6Med0HuLQABVIVhNHnntruPWgwax4l8%3D%26c%3D7pF6y92uFRd_HyMK1iYfYLpZVXk1hGadxb3D-YRZ5w14Rh8qxn54Ig%3D%3D%26ch%3D_oDrDwdDGJF_OPpbWOcBBSJ78cmS8Tb9MMXh-KtV57RmhZT7V_wf_A%3D%3D&data=04%7C01%7CFRehman%40kron4.com%7Cdb1f44aa51a54e77b3d008d8f3a2138d%7C9e5488e2e83844f6886cc7608242767e%7C0%7C0%7C637527224756426274%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=x3QihDsDjEYIpurbtUO%2ByY6Pzq66MK1QS9jqGOiPqAk%3D&reserved=0

https://myturn.ca.gov/





City Council Report  
October 19, 2021                                                                                                                                  3 


community. Both the State and County’s emergency declarations remain in effect, 
and there have been no indication that either order will be terminated soon.  
Continuing to renew the emergency declaration helps communicate to the public that 
the COVID-19 emergency persists and that it remains necessary to continue to take 
safety precautions.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
There is no direct fiscal impact from the adoption of the resolution ratifying a local 
emergency.  
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
A. Resolution Confirming Continued Existence of Local Emergency  
 
 


3876311.1  


88 of 182







ATTACHMENT A 
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2021-XX 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PINOLE 
CONFIRMING THE CONTINUED EXISTENCE OF A  LOCAL EMERGENCY DUE 


TO COVID-19 


 
 WHEREAS,  Government Code Section 8630 and Pinole Municipal Code Section 
2.32.060 authorize the Director of Emergency Service to proclaim a local emergency when 
conditions of disaster or extreme peril to the safety of persons and property within the territorial 
limits of a city exist if the City Council is not in session and provides that the City Council shall 
ratify the proclamation within seven days thereafter; and  
 
 WHEREAS, in accordance with Government Code Section 8630 and Pinole Code 
Section 2.32.060, the Director of Emergency Services proclaimed the existence of a local 
emergency caused by the Novel Coronavirus (COVID-19), a respiratory disease first 
identified in China that may result in serious illness or death that is easily transmissible from 
person to person, on March 18, 2020; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on March 24, 2020, the City Council ratified and confirmed the 
proclamation of the existence of a local emergency issued by the Director of Emergency Services; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Government Code Section 8630 and Pinole Municipal Code 
Section 2.32.060, the City Council must periodically review the need for continuing the local 
emergency; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the conditions that prompted the original declaration of a local emergency 
continue to exist; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the recitals contained in Resolution No. 2020-13, adopted by the City 
Council on March 24, 2020, are incorporated into this Resolution as if stated herein; and 
 
 WHEREAS, there have now been over 97,000 cases of COVID-19 and approximately 
967 deaths within the County; and   
 
 WHEREAS, the case rate within the County for vaccinated individuals is approximately 
2 new case per day per 100,000 people and the case rate within the County for unvaccinated 
individuals is approximately 16 cases per day per 100,000; and 
   
 WHEREAS, case rates have been decreasing steadily but are still higher than they were 
a few months ago; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in order to maintain progress in containing the spread of COVID-19, the 
public must continue to practice appropriate safety measures; and 
 


89 of 182







2 
 


 WHEREAS, the public health and safety concerns for persons and property within the 
City as a consequence of the global spread of COVID-19 continue to exist; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the health, safety, and welfare of Pinole residents, businesses, visitors, and 
staff is of utmost importance to the City and additional future measures may be needed to protect 
the community; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City may require additional assistance in the future, and a formal 
declaration of emergency allows the City to access resources in a timely manner in a timely 
fashion; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council finds that conditions of extreme peril to the safety of persons 
and property within the territorial limits of the City related to COVID-19 pandemic continue in 
existence; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council finds that extraordinary measures are required to protect the 
public health, safety, and of persons and property within the City that are or are likely to be beyond 
the control or capability of the services, personnel, equipment, and facilities of the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council have continued existence of a local emergency periodically 
since it was first declared on March 18, 2020; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council desires to confirm the continued existence of a local 
emergency within Pinole due to COVID-19. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Council of the City of Pinole hereby 
declares as follows:  
 


1. The local emergency declared by Resolution No. 2020-13 due to the COVID-19 
Pandemic continues to exist within the City of Pinole.  


 
2. During the existence of the declared local emergency, the powers, functions, and 


duties of the City Manager, acting as Director of Emergency Services, and the 
emergency organization of this City shall be those prescribed by State law and by 
ordinances and resolutions of the City of Pinole.  


 
3.  The declaration of local  emergency shall remain in effect until such time that the 


Council determines that the emergency conditions have been abated. 
 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Pinole City Council held on the 
19th day of October, 2021, by the following vote:  


 
AYES:  COUNCILMEMBERS:  
  
NOES:  COUNCILMEMBERS:  


90 of 182







3 
 


  
ABSENT: COUNCILMEMBERS:  
  
ABSTAIN: COUNCILMEMBERS:  
 


I hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was introduced, passed, and adopted on the 19th day 
of October, 2021. 
 
____________________________ 
Heather Iopu, CMC 
City Clerk 
 
 
3876314.1  


91 of 182







   


  CITY COUNCIL  
  REPORT 8D 


 
 
DATE: OCTOBER 19, 2021 
 
TO:  HONORABLE MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 
 
FROM: ERIC CASHER, CITY ATTORNEY 
 
SUBJECT: RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING REMOTE TELECONFERENCE 


MEETINGS PURSUANT TO AB 361 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a resolution authorizing remote 
teleconference meetings pursuant to AB 361.   
 
BACKGROUND 
 
On March 4, 2020, Governor Newsom declared a State of Emergency to make 
additional resources available, formalize emergency actions already underway across 
multiple state agencies and departments, and help the State prepare for the 
anticipated broader spread of the novel coronavirus disease 2019 (“COVID-19”).  On 
March 18, 2020, the City Manager, acting as Director of Emergency Services, 
proclaimed a local emergency due to COVID-19 pursuant to California Government 
Code Section 8630 and Pinole Municipal Code Chapter 2.32.  Both the State and 
local emergency declaration remain in effect.  
 
All meetings of the City Council and the City’s other legislative bodies, such as the 
Planning Commission, are open and public, as required by the Ralph M. Brown Act 
(Government Code section 54950 et seq.).  Any member of the public may attend, 
participate, and watch the City’s legislative bodies conduct their business.  On March 
17, 2020, in response to the COVID-19 pandemic, Governor Newsom issued 
Executive Order N-29-20 suspending certain provisions of the Ralph M. Brown Act in 
order to allow local legislative bodies to conduct meetings telephonically or by other 
means in order to slow the spread of COVID-19.  As a result of Executive Order N-29-
20, staff set up virtual meetings for all City Council meetings and other City legislative 
bodies.  On June 11, 2021, Governor Newsom issued Executive Order N-08-21, 
which, effective September 30, 2021, repealed the provisions of Executive Order N-
29-20 that allowed local legislative bodies to conduct meetings telephonically or by 
other means. 
  
DISCUSSION  
 
On September 16, 2021, the Governor signed AB 361 (2021) which allows for local 
legislative bodies to continue to conduct meetings via teleconferencing under 


92 of 182







City Council Report  
October 19, 2021                                                                                                                                 2 


specified conditions and includes a requirement that the City Council make specified 
findings.  AB 361 (2021) took effect immediately.  Pursuant to AB 361, legislative 
bodies are allowed to continue to meet remotely during a declared state of 
emergency.  In addition, remote meetings are only allowed when state or local 
health officials have imposed or recommended measures to promote social 
distancing, or when the legislative body finds that meeting in person would present 
imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees. 
 
In order to continue to hold remote meetings, the City Council must declare every thirty 
(30) days that either (i) the State of Emergency continues to directly impact the ability 
of the members to meet safely in person, or (ii) State or local officials continue to 
impose or recommend measures to promote social distancing.  Since issuing 
Executive Order N-08-21, the highly contagious Delta variant of COVID-19 has 
emerged, causing an increase in COVID-19 cases throughout the State and Contra 
Costa County.  As a result, the State of Emergency as declared by the Governor and 
City Council continue in existence. The City Council will consider a resolution confirming 
the continued existence of the local emergency at the same meeting this resolution is 
considered.   
 
Health officials continue to recommend measures to slow the spread of COVID-19. 
Specifically, the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (“CDC”) continues to 
recommend physical distancing of at least 6 feet from others outside of the household.  
On August 2, 2021, in response to the Delta variant of COVID-19, the Contra Costa 
County Health Officer issued an order for nearly all individuals to wear masks when 
inside public spaces and on September 14, 2021, issued an order requiring operators 
of specified dining establishments, entertainment venues and fitness facilities to 
restrict entry based on COVID-19 vaccination status or testing. On September 20, 
2021, the Contra Costa County Health Officer issued Recommendations for Safely 
Holding Public Meetings. This document noted that online meetings (teleconferencing 
meetings) are strongly recommended as those meetings present the lowest risk of 
transmission of SARS-CoV-2, the virus that causes COVID-19. COVID-19 would 
present imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees, including the legislative 
bodies and staff, should the City’s legislative bodies hold in person meetings. 
 
The proposed resolution includes the necessary findings in order for the City 
Council, and all of the City’ s other legislative bodies, to continue to hold remote 
teleconference meetings pursuant to AB 361. Staff is not, at this point, 
recommending any specific timeframe for moving from teleconference meetings to 
hybrid in-person meetings, in which a majority of the City Council would participate 
in person and staff and members of the public could participate in person or 
remotely. The City has the technological capability to hold hybrid in-person meetings 
as soon as the City Council determines that it is prudent to transition to that format. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
There is no direct fiscal impact from the adoption of the resolution.  
 


93 of 182







City Council Report  
October 19, 2021                                                                                                                                 3 


ATTACHMENTS 
 
A. Resolution Authorizing Remote Teleconference Meetings Pursuant to AB 361  
3888343.1  


94 of 182







ATTACHMENT A 


1 
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2021-XX 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PINOLE 
AUTHORIZING REMOTE TELECONFERENCE MEETINGS PURSUANT TO AB 361 


 
WHEREAS, all City of Pinole (“City”) meetings are open and public, as required by the 


Ralph M. Brown Act (Cal. Gov. Code 54950 – 54963), so that any member of the public may 
attend, participate, and watch the City’s legislative bodies conduct their business; and 


 
WHEREAS, on March 4, 2020, Governor Newsom declared a State of Emergency to 


make additional resources available, formalize emergency actions already underway across 
multiple state agencies and departments, and help the State prepare for an anticipated broader 
spread of the novel coronavirus disease 2019 (“COVID-19”); and 


 
WHEREAS, on March 18, 2020, the City Manager, acting as Director of Emergency 


Services, proclaimed a local emergency due to COVID-19 pursuant to California Government 
Code Section 8630 and Pinole Municipal Code Chapter 2.32, and the City Council has continued 
to confirm the continued existence of the local emergency; and 


 
WHEREAS, On March 17, 2020, in response to the COVID-19 pandemic, Governor 


Newsom issued Executive Order N-29-20 suspending certain provisions of the Ralph M. Brown 
Act in order to allow local legislative bodies to conduct meetings telephonically or by other 
means; and  


 
WHEREAS, as a result of Executive Order N-29-20, staff set up virtual meetings for all 


City Council meetings and meetings of all City legislative bodies, such as the Planning 
Commission; and 


 
WHEREAS, on June 11, 2021, Governor Newsom issued Executive Order N-08-21, 


which, effective September 30, 2021, repealed the provisions of Executive Order N-29-20 that 
allowed local legislative bodies to conduct meetings telephonically or by other means; and 


 
WHEREAS, on September 16, 2021, Governor Newsom signed AB 361 (2021) which 


allows for local legislative bodies and advisory bodies to continue to conduct meetings via 
teleconferencing under specified conditions and includes a requirement that the City Council 
make specified findings.  AB 361 (2021) took effect immediately; and 


 
WHEREAS, in order for legislative bodies to continue to conduct meetings via 


teleconferencing pursuant to AB 361 (2021), a proclaimed State of Emergency must exist; and 
 
WHEREAS, AB 361 (2021) further requires that State or local officials have imposed or 


recommended measures to promote social distancing, or, requires that the legislative body 
determines that meeting in person would present imminent risks to the health and safety of 
attendees; and  


 


95 of 182







ATTACHMENT A 


2 
 


WHEREAS, such conditions now exist in the City of Pinole, specifically, Governor 
Newsom has declared a State of Emergency due to COVID-19 and the City Council has 
confirmed the continued existence of the local emergency due to COVID-19; and 


 
WHEREAS, since issuing Executive Order N-08-21, the highly contagious Delta variant 


of COVID-19 has emerged, causing an increase in COVID-19 cases throughout the State and 
Contra Costa County; and 


 
WHEREAS, on August 2, 2021, in response to the Delta variant of COVID-19, the 


Contra Costa County Health Officer issued an order for nearly all individuals to wear masks 
when inside public spaces and on September 14, 2021, issued an order requiring operators of 
specified dining establishments, entertainment venues and fitness facilities to restrict entry based 
on COVID-19 vaccination status or testing; and 


 
WHEREAS, the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (“CDC”) continues to 


recommend physical distancing of at least six (6) feet from others outside of the household; and  
 
WHEREAS, because of the rise in cases due to the Delta variant of COVID-19, the City 


Council is concerned about the health and safety of all individuals who intend to attend City 
Council meetings and meetings of the City’s other legislative bodies; and 


 
WHEREAS, the City Council desires to provide a way for the Council, staff, and 


members of the public to participate in meetings remotely, without having to attend meetings in 
person; and  


 
WHEREAS, the City Council hereby finds that the presence of COVID-19 and the 


increase of cases due to the Delta variant would present imminent risks to the health or safety of 
attendees, including the legislative bodies and staff, should the City’s legislative bodies hold in 
person meetings; and 


 
WHEREAS, the City shall ensure that it’s meetings comply with the provisions required 


by AB 361 (2021) for holding teleconferenced meetings.  
 


 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Council of the City of Pinole hereby 
declares as follows:  


 
1. The above recitals are true and correct, and incorporated into this Resolution. 
 
2. In compliance with AB 361 (2021), and in order to continue to conduct 


teleconference meetings without complying with the usual teleconference meeting requirements 
of the Brown Act, the City Council makes the following findings: 


 
a) The City Council has considered the circumstances of the State of Emergency; 


and 
 


96 of 182







ATTACHMENT A 


3 
 


b) The State of Emergency, as declared by the Governor and the City, continues 
to directly impact the ability of the City Council and the City’s legislative 
bodies, as well as staff and members of the public, from meeting safely in 
person; and 


 
c) The CDC continues to recommend physical distancing of at least six (6) feet 


due to COVID-19 and as a result of the presence of COVID-19 and the increase 
of cases due to the Delta variant, meeting in person would present imminent 
risks to the health or safety of attendees, the legislative bodies and staff. 


 
3. The City Council and all of the City’s other legislative bodies may continue to meet 


remotely in compliance with AB 361, in order to better ensure the health and safety of the public. 
 


 4. The City Council will revisit the need to conduct meetings remotely within thirty 
(30) days of the adoption of this resolution.  
 
  
 PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Pinole City Council held on the 
19th day of October, 2021, by the following vote:  


 
AYES:  COUNCILMEMBERS:  
  
NOES:  COUNCILMEMBERS:  
  
ABSENT: COUNCILMEMBERS:  
  
ABSTAIN: COUNCILMEMBERS:  
 


I hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was introduced, passed, and adopted on the 19th day 
of October, 2021. 
 
 
____________________________ 
Heather Iopu, CMC 
City Clerk 
 
 


97 of 182







CITY COUNCIL 
REPORT 8E 


DATE: OCTOBER 19, 2021 


TO: MAYOR AND COUNCILMEMBERS  


FROM: HECTOR DE LA ROSA, ASSISTANT CITY MANAGER 


SUBJECT: FIXING THE EMPLOYER’S CONTRIBUTION AT AN EQUAL 
AMOUNT FOR EMPLOYEES AND ANNUITANTS UNDER THE 
PUBLIC EMPLOYEES’ MEDICAL AND HOSPITAL CARE ACT WITH 
RESPECT TO MANAGEMENT, UNREPRESENTED/
CONFIDENTIAL EMPLOYEES, ELECTED OFFICIALS, AFSCME, 
PEU LOCAL 1, AND IAFF 


RECOMMENDATION 


Staff recommended that the City Council adopt resolutions: 


A. Fixing the Employer’s Contribution at an equal amount for Employees and 
Annuitants under the Public Employees’ Medical and Hospital Care Act with 
respect to Management Employees; and 


B. Fixing the Employer’s Contribution at an equal amount for Employees and 
Annuitants under the Public Employees’ Medical and Hospital Care Act with 
respect to Unrepresented /Confidential Employees; and 


C. Fixing the Employer’s Contribution at an equal amount for Employees and 
Annuitants under the Public Employees’ Medical and Hospital Care Act with 
respect to Elected Officials; and 


D. Fixing the Employer’s Contribution at an equal amount for Employees and 
Annuitants under the Public Employees’ Medical and Hospital Care Act with 
respect to AFSCME, Local 512 Employees; and 


E. Fixing the Employer’s Contribution at an equal amount for Employees and 
Annuitants under the Public Employees’ Medical and Hospital Care Act with 
respect to PEU Local 1 Employees; and 


F. Fixing the Employer’s Contribution at an equal amount for Employees and 
Annuitants under the Public Employees’ Medical and Hospital Care Act with 
respect to IAFF Employees. 


98 of 182







City Council Report  
October 19, 2021  2 


BACKGROUND 
 
Through an agreement with California Public Employees Retirement System 
(CalPERS), the City Council elected to cover employees under the Public Employees’ 
Medical and Hospital Care Act (PEMHCA). PEMHCA governs the CalPERS Health 
Program which enables contracting agencies, such as the City of Pinole, to provide a 
health benefit program to active and retired employees. Contracting agencies are 
required to provide an employer health contribution toward the cost of the monthly 
premium for all eligible employees and annuitants. Local agencies can contribute 
amounts in excess of the minimum contribution.  
 
Per the CalPERS agreement, the City designated seven groups, which would be eligible 
to participate in the CalPERS Health plans.  The groups are PEU Local 1, AFSCME, 
PPEA, IAFF, Management, Unrepresented/Confidential, and Elected.  
 
Through negotiated Memorandum of Understandings (MOUs) between the city and the 
represented groups, the City has agreed to pay for a portion of the monthly medical 
premiums for active and retired employees and dependents.  
 
REVIEW AND ANALYSIS 
 
The City has recently concluded negotiations of successor MOUs with AFSCME, Local 
1, and IAFF.  Per the negotiated MOU’s and the Management Compensation Plan, 
effective January 1, 2022, the City agreed to pay up to the 2021 Kaiser medical monthly 
premiums for active and retired members in, or who were previously in, the Local 1, 
AFSCME, IAFF, Management, and Unrepresented/Confidential groups, based on 
enrollment status. Historically, the Elected group (e.g., City Council), has received the 
same benefit as the Management group.  
 
The attached resolutions reflect the new contribution amount which the Council agreed 
to pay towards the active and retired employees’ medical payment.  A resolution is not 
included for the PPEA group as that group previously negotiated a separate contribution 
rate. 
 
Below are the 2021 CalPERS Kaiser medical premiums for each level of benefit. The 
rates reflect an 5.87% increase compared to the 2020 premiums.   
 


One Party Coverage:   $   813.64   
  Two Party Coverage:   $1,627.28     


 Family Coverage:   $2,115.46 
 
Per CalPERS regulations, any time an employer changes to the medical premiums paid 
by the City on behalf of an employee group, the amount to be paid must be reflected 
through a Resolution approved by the Council. Any contribution changes will take effect 
on January 1st of each year.   
 


99 of 182







City Council Report  
October 19, 2021  3 


All resolutions must be forwarded to the CalPERS office, no later than 60 days prior to 
implementation of the City’s contribution, for official notification and processing.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Effective January 1, 2022, the City’s monthly health care premium cost for current active 
employees total $140,877, which represents an increase of $7,870 from the 2021 
monthly health care premiums.  The City’s net monthly health care premium cost for 
current active employees effective January 1, 2022, is $129,946, which represents an 
increase of $5,878 from the City net monthly health care contribution in 2021 of 
$124,068.   
 
Active employees’ contribution towards health care coverage increased by $2,476 from 
last year. 
 
In FY 2021-22, the City budgeted a total of $2,021,301 for payment of medical 
premiums for active employees, which is sufficient to cover the City’s Health insurance 
obligation.  
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 


A Resolution for Management Employees  
B Resolution for Unrepresented/Confidential Employees 
C Resolution for Elected Officials 
D Resolution for AFSCME Employees 
E Resolution for Local 1 Employees  
F Resolution for IAFF Employees 
 
 


100 of 182







ATTACHMENT A 
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2021- 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PINOLE, COUNTY OF 
CONTRA COSTA, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, IN THE MATTER OF FIXING THE 
EMPLOYER’S CONTRIBUTION AT AN EQUAL AMOUNT FOR EMPLOYEES 


AND ANNUITANTS UNDER THE PUBLIC EMPLOYEES’ MEDICAL AND 
HOSPITAL CARE ACT WITH RESPECT TO A RECOGNIZED EMPLOYEE 


ORGANIZATION 
 


(Management Employees) 
 


WHEREAS, (1) the City of Pinole is a contracting agency under Government Code 
Section 22920 and subject to the Public Employees’ Medical and Hospital Care Act (the 
“Act”) for participation by members of Management Employees; and 
 


WHEREAS, (2) Government Code Section 22892(a) provides that a contracting 
agency subject to the Act shall fix the amount of employer contribution by resolution; and 
 


WHEREAS, (3) Government Code Section 22892(b) provides that the employer 
contribution shall be an equal amount for both employees and annuitants, but may not be 
less than the amount prescribed by Section 22892(b) of the Act.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED (a) that the employer’s contribution, effective 
January 1, 2022, for each employee or annuitant shall be the amount necessary to pay 
the full cost of his/her enrollment, including the enrollment of family members in a health 
benefits plan up to a maximum of $813.64 per month with respect to employee or 
annuitant enrolled for self alone, $1,627.28 per month for employee or annuitant enrolled 
for self and one family member, and $2,115.46 per month for employee or annuitant 
enrolled for self and two or more family members, plus administrative fees and 
Contingency Reserve Fund assessments; and be it further resolved 
 


Section 1.  that the City of Pinole has fully complied with any and all applicable 
provisions of Government Code 7507 in electing the benefits set forth above.  


 
Section 2.  that the participation of the employees and annuitants of the City of 


Pinole shall be subject to determination of its status as an “agency or instrumentality of 
the state or political subdivision of a State” that is eligible to participate in a governmental 
plan within the meaning of Section 414(d) of the Internal Revenue Code, upon 
publication of final Regulations pursuant to such Section.  If it is determined that the City 
of Pinole would not qualify as an agency or instrumentality of the state or political 
subdivision of a State under such final Regulations, CalPERS may be obligated, and 
reserves the right to terminate the health coverage of all participants of the employer. 


 
Section 3.  that the executive body appoint and direct, and it does hereby appoint 


and direct, the City Manager of the City of Pinole, to file with the Board a verified copy of this 
resolution, and to perform on behalf of the City Council all functions required of it under the 
Act. 


 
 


 
 101 of 182







ATTACHMENT A 
 


 
PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 


Pinole on this 19th day of October 2021 by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  COUNCILMEMBERS: 
NOES:  COUNCILMEMBERS:  
ABSENT:   COUNCILMEMBERS:  
ABSTAIN:       COUNCILMEMBERS: 


 
I hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was introduced, passed and adopted on adopted on 
this 19th day of October, 2021. 
 
 
___________________________ 
Heather Iopu, CMC 
City Clerk 
 
 
 


 


102 of 182







ATTACHMENT B 
 
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2021- 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PINOLE, COUNTY OF 
CONTRA COSTA, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, IN THE MATTER OF FIXING THE 
EMPLOYER’S CONTRIBUTION AT AN EQUAL AMOUNT FOR EMPLOYEES 


AND ANNUITANTS UNDER THE PUBLIC EMPLOYEES’ MEDICAL AND 
HOSPITAL CARE ACT WITH RESPECT TO A RECOGNIZED EMPLOYEE 


ORGANIZATION 
 


(Unrepresented/Confidential Employees) 
 


WHEREAS, (1) the City of Pinole is a contracting agency under Government Code 
Section 22920 and subject to the Public Employees’ Medical and Hospital Care Act (the 
“Act”) for participation by members of the Unrepresented/Confidential Employees; and 
 


WHEREAS, (2) Government Code Section 22892(a) provides that a contracting 
agency subject to the Act shall fix the amount of employer contribution by resolution; and 
 


WHEREAS, (3) Government Code Section 22892(b) provides that the employer 
contribution shall be an equal amount for both employees and annuitants, but may not be 
less than the amount prescribed by Section 22892(b) of the Act; and  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED (a) that the employer’s contribution, effective 
January 1, 2022, for each employee or annuitant shall be the amount necessary to pay 
the full cost of his/her enrollment, including the enrollment of family members in a health 
benefits plan up to a maximum of $813.64 per month with respect to employee or 
annuitant enrolled for self alone, $1,627.28 per month for employee or annuitant enrolled 
for self and one family member, and $2,115.46 per month for employee or annuitant 
enrolled for self and two or more family members, plus administrative fees and 
Contingency Reserve Fund assessments; and be it further resolved 
 


Section 1.  that the City of Pinole has fully complied with any and all applicable 
provisions of Government Code 7507 in electing the benefits set forth above.  


 
Section 2.  that the participation of the employees and annuitants of the City of 


Pinole shall be subject to determination of its status as an “agency or instrumentality of 
the state or political subdivision of a State” that is eligible to participate in a governmental 
plan within the meaning of Section 414(d) of the Internal Revenue Code, upon 
publication of final Regulations pursuant to such Section.  If it is determined that the City 
of Pinole would not qualify as an agency or instrumentality of the state or political 
subdivision of a State under such final Regulations, CalPERS may be obligated, and 
reserves the right to terminate the health coverage of all participants of the employer. 


 
Section 3.  that the executive body appoint and direct, and it does hereby appoint 


and direct, the City Manager of the City of Pinole, to file with the Board a verified copy of this 
resolution, and to perform on behalf of the City Council all functions required of it under the 
Act. 


 
 


 103 of 182







ATTACHMENT B 
 
 


 
 


PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 
Pinole on this 19th day of October 2021 by the following vote: 


 
AYES:  COUNCILMEMBERS: 
NOES:  COUNCILMEMBERS:  
ABSENT:   COUNCILMEMBERS:  
ABSTAIN:       COUNCILMEMBERS: 


 
I hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was introduced, passed and adopted on adopted on 
this 19th day of October, 2021. 
 
 
___________________________ 
Heather Iopu, CMC 
City Clerk 
 
 
 


 


104 of 182







ATTACHMENT C 
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2021- 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PINOLE, COUNTY OF 
CONTRA COSTA, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, IN THE MATTER OF FIXING THE 
EMPLOYER’S CONTRIBUTION AT AN EQUAL AMOUNT FOR EMPLOYEES 


AND ANNUITANTS UNDER THE PUBLIC EMPLOYEES’ MEDICAL AND 
HOSPITAL CARE ACT WITH RESPECT TO A RECOGNIZED EMPLOYEE 


ORGANIZATION 
 


(Elected Officials) 
 


WHEREAS, (1) the City of Pinole is a contracting agency under Government Code 
Section 22920 and subject to the Public Employees’ Medical and Hospital Care Act (the 
“Act”) for participation by Elected Official members; and 
 


WHEREAS, (2) Government Code Section 22892(a) provides that a contracting 
agency subject to the Act shall fix the amount of employer contribution by resolution; and 
 


WHEREAS, (3) Government Code Section 22892(b) provides that the employer 
contribution shall be an equal amount for both employees and annuitants, but may not be 
less than the amount prescribed by Section 22892(b) of the Act; and  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED (a) that the employer’s contribution, effective 
January 1, 2022, for each employee or annuitant shall be the amount necessary to pay 
the full cost of his/her enrollment, including the enrollment of family members in a health 
benefits plan up to a maximum of $813.64 per month with respect to employee or 
annuitant enrolled for self alone, $1,627.28 per month for employee or annuitant enrolled 
for self and one family member, and $2,115.46 per month for employee or annuitant 
enrolled for self and two or more family members, plus administrative fees and 
Contingency Reserve Fund assessments; and be it further resolved 
 


Section 1.  that the City of Pinole has fully complied with any and all applicable 
provisions of Government Code 7507 in electing the benefits set forth above.  


 
Section 2.  that the participation of the employees and annuitants of the City of 


Pinole shall be subject to determination of its status as an “agency or instrumentality of 
the state or political subdivision of a State” that is eligible to participate in a governmental 
plan within the meaning of Section 414(d) of the Internal Revenue Code, upon 
publication of final Regulations pursuant to such Section.  If it is determined that the City 
of Pinole would not qualify as an agency or instrumentality of the state or political 
subdivision of a State under such final Regulations, CalPERS may be obligated, and 
reserves the right to terminate the health coverage of all participants of the employer. 


 
Section 3.  that the executive body appoint and direct, and it does hereby appoint 


and direct, the City Manager of the City of Pinole, to file with the Board a verified copy of this 
resolution, and to perform on behalf of the City Council all functions required of it under the 
Act. 


 
 


 
 105 of 182







ATTACHMENT C 
 


 
PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 


Pinole on this 19th day of October 2021 by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  COUNCILMEMBERS: 
NOES:  COUNCILMEMBERS:  
ABSENT:   COUNCILMEMBERS:  
ABSTAIN:       COUNCILMEMBERS: 


 
I hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was introduced, passed and adopted on adopted on 
this 19th day of October, 2021. 
 
 
___________________________ 
Heather Iopu, CMC 
City Clerk 
 
 
 


 


106 of 182







ATTACHMENT D 
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2021- 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PINOLE, COUNTY OF 
CONTRA COSTA, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, IN THE MATTER OF FIXING THE 
EMPLOYER’S CONTRIBUTION AT AN EQUAL AMOUNT FOR EMPLOYEES 


AND ANNUITANTS UNDER THE PUBLIC EMPLOYEES’ MEDICAL AND 
HOSPITAL CARE ACT WITH RESPECT TO A RECOGNIZED EMPLOYEE 


ORGANIZATION 
 


(AFSCME, Local 512) 
 


WHEREAS, (1) the City of Pinole is a contracting agency under Government Code 
Section 22920 and subject to the Public Employees’ Medical and Hospital Care Act (the 
“Act”) for participation by members of the AFSCME, Local 512; and 
 


WHEREAS, (2) Government Code Section 22892(a) provides that a contracting 
agency subject to the Act shall fix the amount of employer contribution by resolution; and 
 


WHEREAS, (3) Government Code Section 22892(b) provides that the employer 
contribution shall be an equal amount for both employees and annuitants, but may not be 
less than the amount prescribed by Section 22892(b) of the Act; and  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED (a) that the employer’s contribution, effective 
January 1, 2022, for each employee or annuitant shall be the amount necessary to pay 
the full cost of his/her enrollment, including the enrollment of family members in a health 
benefits plan up to a maximum of $813.64 per month with respect to employee or 
annuitant enrolled for self alone, $1,627.28 per month for employee or annuitant enrolled 
for self and one family member, and $2,115.46 per month for employee or annuitant 
enrolled for self and two or more family members, plus administrative fees and 
Contingency Reserve Fund assessments; and be it further resolved 
 


Section 1.  that the City of Pinole has fully complied with any and all applicable 
provisions of Government Code 7507 in electing the benefits set forth above.  


 
Section 2.  that the participation of the employees and annuitants of the City of 


Pinole shall be subject to determination of its status as an “agency or instrumentality of 
the state or political subdivision of a State” that is eligible to participate in a governmental 
plan within the meaning of Section 414(d) of the Internal Revenue Code, upon 
publication of final Regulations pursuant to such Section.  If it is determined that the City 
of Pinole would not qualify as an agency or instrumentality of the state or political 
subdivision of a State under such final Regulations, CalPERS may be obligated, and 
reserves the right to terminate the health coverage of all participants of the employer. 


 
Section 3.  that the executive body appoint and direct, and it does hereby appoint 


and direct, the City Manager of the City of Pinole, to file with the Board a verified copy of this 
resolution, and to perform on behalf of the City Council all functions required of it under the 
Act. 


 
 


 
 107 of 182







ATTACHMENT D 
 


 
PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 


Pinole on this 19th day of October 2021 by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  COUNCILMEMBERS: 
NOES:  COUNCILMEMBERS:  
ABSENT:   COUNCILMEMBERS:  
ABSTAIN:       COUNCILMEMBERS: 


 
I hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was introduced, passed and adopted on adopted on 
this 19th day of October, 2021. 
 
 
___________________________ 
Heather Iopu, CMC 
City Clerk 
 
 
 


 


108 of 182







ATTACHMENT E 
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2021- 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PINOLE, COUNTY OF 
CONTRA COSTA, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, IN THE MATTER OF FIXING THE 
EMPLOYER’S CONTRIBUTION AT AN EQUAL AMOUNT FOR EMPLOYEES 


AND ANNUITANTS UNDER THE PUBLIC EMPLOYEES’ MEDICAL AND 
HOSPITAL CARE ACT WITH RESPECT TO A RECOGNIZED EMPLOYEE 


ORGANIZATION 
 


(PEU, Local 1) 
 


WHEREAS, (1) the City of Pinole is a contracting agency under Government Code 
Section 22920 and subject to the Public Employees’ Medical and Hospital Care Act (the 
“Act”) for participation by members of the PEU, Local 1; and 
 


WHEREAS, (2) Government Code Section 22892(a) provides that a contracting 
agency subject to the Act shall fix the amount of employer contribution by resolution; and 
 


WHEREAS, (3) Government Code Section 22892(b) provides that the employer 
contribution shall be an equal amount for both employees and annuitants, but may not be 
less than the amount prescribed by Section 22892(b) of the Act; and  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED (a) that the employer’s contribution, effective 
January 1, 2022, for each employee or annuitant shall be the amount necessary to pay 
the full cost of his/her enrollment, including the enrollment of family members in a health 
benefits plan up to a maximum of $813.64 per month with respect to employee or 
annuitant enrolled for self alone, $1,627.28 per month for employee or annuitant enrolled 
for self and one family member, and $2,115.46 per month for employee or annuitant 
enrolled for self and two or more family members, plus administrative fees and 
Contingency Reserve Fund assessments; and be it further resolved 
 


Section 1.  that the City of Pinole has fully complied with any and all applicable 
provisions of Government Code 7507 in electing the benefits set forth above.  


 
Section 2.  that the participation of the employees and annuitants of the City of 


Pinole shall be subject to determination of its status as an “agency or instrumentality of 
the state or political subdivision of a State” that is eligible to participate in a governmental 
plan within the meaning of Section 414(d) of the Internal Revenue Code, upon 
publication of final Regulations pursuant to such Section.  If it is determined that the City 
of Pinole would not qualify as an agency or instrumentality of the state or political 
subdivision of a State under such final Regulations, CalPERS may be obligated, and 
reserves the right to terminate the health coverage of all participants of the employer. 


 
Section 3.  that the executive body appoint and direct, and it does hereby appoint 


and direct, the City Manager of the City of Pinole, to file with the Board a verified copy of this 
resolution, and to perform on behalf of the City Council all functions required of it under the 
Act. 


 
 


 
 109 of 182







ATTACHMENT E 
 


 
PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 


Pinole on this 19th day of October 2021 by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  COUNCILMEMBERS: 
NOES:  COUNCILMEMBERS:  
ABSENT:   COUNCILMEMBERS:  
ABSTAIN:       COUNCILMEMBERS: 


 
I hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was introduced, passed and adopted on adopted on 
this 19th day of October, 2021. 
 
 
___________________________ 
Heather Iopu, CMC 
City Clerk 
 
 
 


 


110 of 182







ATTACHMENT F 
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2021- 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PINOLE, COUNTY OF 
CONTRA COSTA, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, IN THE MATTER OF FIXING THE 
EMPLOYER’S CONTRIBUTION AT AN EQUAL AMOUNT FOR EMPLOYEES 


AND ANNUITANTS UNDER THE PUBLIC EMPLOYEES’ MEDICAL AND 
HOSPITAL CARE ACT WITH RESPECT TO A RECOGNIZED EMPLOYEE 


ORGANIZATION 
 


(IAFF, Local 1230) 
 


WHEREAS, (1) the City of Pinole is a contracting agency under Government Code 
Section 22920 and subject to the Public Employees’ Medical and Hospital Care Act (the 
“Act”) for participation by members of the IAFF, Local 1230; and 
 


WHEREAS, (2) Government Code Section 22892(a) provides that a contracting 
agency subject to the Act shall fix the amount of employer contribution by resolution; and 
 


WHEREAS, (3) Government Code Section 22892(b) provides that the employer 
contribution shall be an equal amount for both employees and annuitants, but may not be 
less than the amount prescribed by Section 22892(b) of the Act; and  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED (a) that the employer’s contribution, effective 
January 1, 2022, for each employee or annuitant shall be the amount necessary to pay 
the full cost of his/her enrollment, including the enrollment of family members in a health 
benefits plan up to a maximum of $813.64 per month with respect to employee or 
annuitant enrolled for self alone, $1,627.28 per month for employee or annuitant enrolled 
for self and one family member, and $2,115.46 per month for employee or annuitant 
enrolled for self and two or more family members, plus administrative fees and 
Contingency Reserve Fund assessments; and be it further resolved 
 


Section 1.  that the City of Pinole has fully complied with any and all applicable 
provisions of Government Code 7507 in electing the benefits set forth above.  


 
Section 2.  that the participation of the employees and annuitants of the City of 


Pinole shall be subject to determination of its status as an “agency or instrumentality of 
the state or political subdivision of a State” that is eligible to participate in a governmental 
plan within the meaning of Section 414(d) of the Internal Revenue Code, upon 
publication of final Regulations pursuant to such Section.  If it is determined that the City 
of Pinole would not qualify as an agency or instrumentality of the state or political 
subdivision of a State under such final Regulations, CalPERS may be obligated, and 
reserves the right to terminate the health coverage of all participants of the employer. 


 
Section 3.  that the executive body appoint and direct, and it does hereby appoint 


and direct, the City Manager of the City of Pinole, to file with the Board a verified copy of this 
resolution, and to perform on behalf of the City Council all functions required of it under the 
Act. 


 
 


 
 111 of 182







ATTACHMENT F 
 


 
PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 


Pinole on this 19th day of October 2021 by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  COUNCILMEMBERS: 
NOES:  COUNCILMEMBERS:  
ABSENT:   COUNCILMEMBERS:  
ABSTAIN:       COUNCILMEMBERS: 


 
I hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was introduced, passed and adopted on adopted on 
this 19th day of October, 2021. 
 
 
___________________________ 
Heather Iopu, CMC 
City Clerk 
 
 
 


 


112 of 182







   
 CITY COUNCIL  8F 
 REPORT  
    


 
 
 


DATE: OCTOBER 19, 2021 
 
TO: MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS  
 
FROM: HEATHER IOPU, CITY CLERK  
 
SUBJECT: AMENDMENT TO THE CITY OF PINOLE CONFLICT OF INTEREST 


CODE  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends that the City Council review and adopt a resolution approving 
amendments to the designated positions and disclosure categories in the appendix of the 
City of Pinole Conflict of Interest (COI) Code. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The Political Reform Act requires every local government agency to review its Conflict of 
Interest Code and designated positions and reporting categories, every two years to 
determine if it is accurate, or alternatively, if the Code requires amendments.  As the Code 
reviewing body for multi-governmental agencies, the California Fair Political Practices 
Commission (FPPC) must be given notice of any amendments to the City’s Conflict of 
Interest Code. The Conflict of Interest Code defines which positions must disclose 
economic interests related to their job. 
 
 
DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS   
 
Staff is advising the Council, as the Code reviewing body, that at this time amendments 
are necessary to reflect (1) the addition of job classifications and (2) the deletion of a 
classification that was eliminated by the Council since the last amendment which was 
conducted at the usual two-year interval in September, 2020 (See Attachment B).    
 
Any position that has authority to negotiate decisions, provide advice or make 
recommendations to the Council or City boards should be listed as a designated Code 
filer along with the determined level of disclosure. The disclosure categories were 
rewritten and adopted on November 4, 2010, under Resolution 2010-95, and require no 
further update.  
 
Staff has conducted a comprehensive review, with participation from the City Attorney’s 
office, and proposes the following amendments which are consistent with the 


113 of 182







City Council Report – 8F 2 
October 19. 2021 


organizational changes that were approved with the adoption of the Pinole FY 2021-2022 
Budget.  
 
Addition of four job classifications:  
  
These positions have authority to negotiate on behalf of the agency, and advise on 
agency decisions, make recommendations and attempt to influence decisions by the 
Council. They prepare and present reports and analysis that require exercising judgment. 
 


• Human Resources Director 
• Assistant to City Manager 
• Public Works Director 
• Community Development Director 


 
Deletion of one job classification:  
 
This position is not authorized or funded and should be removed from the list. 
 


• Community Development Director/City Engineer 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
There is no fiscal impact associated with this recommended action.   
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
A Resolution  
B. Staff Report Reflecting Last COI Update - September 2020 
 
 


114 of 182







ATTACHMENT A 
RESOLUTION NO. 2021-XX 


          
RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PINOLE, COUNTY OF 


CONTRA COSTA, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, AMENDING THE CITY OF PINOLE’S 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE 


 
 WHEREAS, the Political Reform Act of 1972 (G.C. Section 81000, et seq.) 
requires every local government agency to adopt and promulgate a Conflict of Interest 
Code; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Pinole has incorporated by reference three State 
regulations pursuant to Code of Regulations Section 18730, and amendments to the 
Regulations duly adopted by the Fair Political Practices Commission, and the “Appendix 
of Designated Positions and Disclosure Categories for Each Position,” setting forth by 
title those officers, employees and consultants holding designated positions in the City, 
whose positions have been determined that the persons holding these positions make 
or participate in the making of decisions which may foreseeably have a material effect 
on financial interests; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Code may be amended by the Fair Political Practices 
Commission to conform to amendments of the Political Reform Act; and any changes 
are adopted by reference; and  
   
 WHEREAS, the City must review their Appendix (Exhibit A) to the Conflict of 
Interest Code for the City of Pinole biennially and it was last amended on September 
15, 2020, pursuant to the requirements of Government Code Section 87300 et seq.; and  
 
 WHEREAS, since the last amendment approved in September 2020, there have 
been organizational changes approved by the City Council with the adoption of the FY 
2021-2022 Operating Budget that have added and deleted positions deemed required 
for inclusion in the COI Appendix as Designated Positions; and 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Pinole does hereby resolve, 
as follows: 
 
 Section 1.  The Appendix to the Conflict of Interest Code for the City of Pinole 
(attached) is hereby amended to read in the manner as set forth and attached hereto and 
by this reference, incorporated herein. 


 
Section 2.   Following adoption of the Code, any newly designated officials, 


employees, and consultants shall comply with the Conflict of Interest Code for the City 
of Pinole within 30 days. 


 
Section 3.  The Form 700 (Statement of Economic Interests) are filed and 


maintained in the Office of the City Clerk and retained pursuant to Government Code 
Section 81008 and 81009. 
 
 
 
 
 115 of 182







Pinole City Council 
Resolution 2021- 
Page 2 


 
 


  
 PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 
Pinole held on the 19th  day of October 2021, by the following vote: 
 
AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS:  
NOES: COUNCILMEMBERS:   
ABSENT: COUNCILMEMBERS:  
ABSTAIN: COUNCILMEMBERS:  
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was introduced, passed and adopted on 
adopted on this 19th day of October 2021. 
 
 
__________________________ 
Heather Iopu, CMC 
City Clerk 


116 of 182







Exhibit A to Resolution 2021-XX 
 


APPENDIX to the CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE 
DESIGNATED POSITIONS 


AND 
DISCLOSURE CATEGORIES 


 
Pursuant to the Conflict of Interest Code of the City of Pinole, the following positions are 
designated positions as defined in City of Pinole Conflict of Interest Code and have 
been determined that these persons make or participate in the making of decisions 
which may foreseeably have a material effect on economic interests. Each must report 
their interests according to their assigned disclosure categories1. 


 


Department 
Administration 


Designated Position 


Assistant City Manager 


Category 


1, 5, 6 
 


City Clerk 3, 5, 6


 
 
 
 
Public Works 


Assistant to City Manager 
 
Human Resources Director  
  
 Public Works Director   


  Public Works Manager 
 


Treatment Plant Manager                       
 


Transportation  &  Pedestrian  Safety 
(TAPS) Committee 
 


   Senior Project Manager  
 


  3, 5 
 


3, 5 
 
1, 5, 6 


 
1, 5, 6 


    
   3, 5 


 
   1, 3  
 
  
  1, 5, 6 


 
 
Community Development   Development Services Director/City Engineer 1, 5, 6 


                                              Community Development Director  1, 5. 6 
 


Planning Manager 1, 5, 6 
 
                  Code Enforcement Officer     2, 4, 6 


 
   Building Inspector      2, 4, 6 
 
   Sr. Building Inspector                                  2, 4, 6  


 
 


1 In addition to the listed positions designated by the City, the following positions are subject to the disclosure 
requirements established by Government Code Section 87200: Planning Commission, City Manager, City Attorney, 
and City Treasurer. 


117 of 182







Fire Fire Chief 
Fire Battalion Chief 


1, 5, 6 
1, 5, 6 


 


Recreation Community Services Commission 
Recreation Manager 
Senior Center Coordinator 


1, 5, 6 
1, 5, 6 
4 


                                             Tiny Tots Program Coordinator                4   
                                              Youth Center Coordinator 4 


Police Police Chief 
Police Lieutenant 


1, 5, 6 
1, 5, 6 


Finance Finance Director 1, 5, 6 
 
 


City Attorney Assistant City Attorney 1, 5, 6 
 Assistant General Counsel 1, 5, 6 


Consultants* 1-5 or as appropriate* 
 


For purposes of this code, a consultant is defined pursuant to Title 2 Cal. Admin 
Code Section 18730(2) 


 
(A) Makes a governmental decision whether to: 


(i) Approve a rate, rule, or regulation; 


(ii) Adopt or enforce a law; 


(iii) Issue, deny, suspend, or revoke any permit, license, 
application, certificate, approval, order, or similar 
authorization or entitlement; 
(iv) Authorize the agency to enter into, modify, or renew a 
contract provided it is the type of contract that requires 
agency approval; 
(v) Grant agency approval to a contract that requires 
agency approval and to which the agency is a party, or to the 
specifications for such a contract; 
(vi) Grant agency approval to a plan, design, report, 
study, or similar item; or 
(vii) Adopt, or grant agency approval of, policies, 
standards, or guidelines for the agency, or for any 
subdivision thereof. 


118 of 182







*Consultants are also defined for reporting purposes as persons who prepare a product, 
perform services of a general nature on an on-going basis and participate by direct advice 
to the decision makers, influence or participate in governmental decisions, or who act in a 
staff capacity (performing all the same duties for the City that would otherwise be 
performed by an individual holding a designated position in the City’s Conflict of Interest 
Code). With respect to consultants, the City Attorney (or designee) may determine 
in writing that a particular consultant has been retained to perform a range of 
duties that is sufficiently limited in scope so as to not require full disclosure, or 
no disclosure. Such written determination shall be based on the consultant’s 
description of work, as defined in the Contract Scope of Services. Such written 
determination shall be noted in the consultant contract, including a recitation to the 
extent of disclosure requirements and signed by the City Attorney (or designee). Any 
determination is a public record and shall be retained for public inspection. 


119 of 182







 


DISCLOSURE CATEGORIES 
 


DISCLOSURE CATEGORY 1 
 


All interests in real property located within City of Pinole, or within two miles of the 
boundaries of Pinole or within two miles of any land used or owned by the Agency; and 
investments and business positions in business entities and income; including loans, gifts, 
and travel payments from all sources. 


 
DISCLOSURE CATEGORY 2 


 


All interests in real property located within City of Pinole, or within two miles of the 
boundaries of Pinole or within two miles of any land used or owned by the agency. 


 
DISCLOSURE CATEGORY 3 


 


All investments and business positions in business entities and all sources, including loans, 
gifts, and travel payments, from sources that provide services, supplies, materials, 
machinery, or equipment of the type utilized by the agency. 


 
DISCLOSURE CATEGORY 4 


 


All investments and business positions in business entities and all sources of income, 
including loans, gifts, and travel payments, from sources that provide services, supplies, 
materials, machinery, or equipment of the type utilized by the designated position’s division 
or department. 


 
DISCLOSURE CATEGORY 5 


 


All investments and business positions in business entities and sources of income, 
including loans, gifts, and travel payments from sources of the type to request a permit, license 
of any type, or entitlement to use agency properties or facilities, included but not limited to: 


• Business licenses 
• Utility permit, building or inspection permits, solicitor’s, massage operator permits 
• Land use entitlements 
• Grant funding 
• Facilities use permits 


DISCLOSURE CATEGORY 6 


All investments and business positions in business entities, and  income,  including loans, gifts, 
and travel payments from sources that filed a claim against the agency during the previous 
two years, or has a claim pending. 


 


120 of 182







CITY COUNCIL 7D 
REPORT  
 
 


DATE: September 15, 2020 


TO: MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 


FROM: HEATHER IOPU, CITY CLERK  


SUBJECT: AMENDMENT TO THE CITY OF PINOLE CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
CODE 


RECOMMENDATION 


Staff recommends that the City Council review, discuss and adopt a resolution approving 
amendments to the designated positions and disclosure categories in the appendix of the 
City of Pinole Conflict of Interest (COI) Code. 


BACKGROUND 


The Political Reform Act requires every local government agency to review its Conflict of 
Interest Code and designated positions and reporting categories, every two years to 
determine if it is accurate, or alternatively, if the Code requires amendments. As the Code 
reviewing body for multi-governmental agencies, the California Fair Political Practices 
Commission (FPPC) must be given notice of any amendments to the City’s Conflict of 
Interest Code. The Conflict of Interest Code defines which positions must disclose 
economic interests related to their job. 


DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS  


Staff is advising the Council, as the Code reviewing body, that at this time amendments 
are necessary to reflect (1) the addition of job classifications and (2) the deletion of 
classifications that were eliminated by the Council since the last amendment. Any position 
that has authority to negotiate decisions, provide advice or make recommendations to the 
Council or City boards should be listed as a designated Code filer along with the 
determined level of disclosure. The disclosure categories were rewritten and adopted on 
November 4, 2010, under Resolution 2010-95, and require no further update.  


Staff has conducted a comprehensive review, with participation from the City Attorney’s 
office, and proposes the following amendments which are consistent with the 
organizational changes. If amendments are necessary they must be adopted within 90 
days.  


ATTACHMENT B


121 of 182







City Council Report – 7D 2 
September 15, 2020 


Addition of four job classifications: 


These positions have authority to negotiate on behalf of the agency, and advise on 
agency decisions, make recommendations and attempt to influence decisions by the 
Council. They prepare and present reports and analysis that require exercising judgment. 


• Building Inspector
• Senior Building Inspector
• Code Enforcement Officer
• Tiny Tots Program Coordinator


Deletion of four job classifications:  


These positions are not authorized or funded and should be removed from the list. 


• Information Services Administrator
• Human Resources Director
• Code Enforcement Officer/Building Inspector
• Associate Planner


FISCAL IMPACT 


There is no fiscal impact associated with this recommended action.  


ATTACHMENTS: 


A. Resolution 
B. 2020 Local Agency Biennial Notice 


122 of 182







ATTACHMENT A 


RESOLUTION NO. 2020-XX 
          


RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PINOLE, COUNTY OF 
CONTRA COSTA, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, AMENDING THE CITY OF PINOLE’S 


CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE 
 
 WHEREAS, the Political Reform Act of 1972 (G.C. Section 81000, et seq.) 
requires every local government agency to adopt and promulgate a Conflict of Interest 
Code; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Pinole has incorporated by reference three State 
regulations pursuant to Code of Regulations Section 18730, and amendments to the 
Regulations duly adopted by the Fair Political Practices Commission, and the “Appendix 
of Designated Positions and Disclosure Categories for Each Position,” setting forth by 
title those officers, employees and consultants holding designated positions in the City, 
whose positions have been determined that the persons holding these positions make 
or participate in the making of decisions which may foreseeably have a material effect 
on financial interests; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Code may be amended by the Fair Political Practices 
Commission to conform to amendments of the Political Reform Act; and any changes 
are adopted by reference; and  
   
 WHEREAS, the City must review their Appendix (Exhibit A) to the Conflict of 
Interest Code for the City of Pinole biennially and it was last amended on July 3, 2018, 
pursuant to the requirements of Government Code Section 87300 et seq.; and  
 
 WHEREAS, biennial notice was provided to the Council on September 15, 2020 
and the City Clerk recommended to Council that the Code be reviewed to determine 
whether certain positions should be added, deleted or modified, which constitute 
substantive amendments to the Code; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Pinole does hereby resolve, 
as follows: 
 
 Section 1.  The Appendix to the Conflict of Interest Code for the City of Pinole 
(attached) is hereby amended to read in the manner as set forth and attached hereto and 
by this reference, incorporated herein. 


 
Section 2.   Following adoption of the Code, any newly designated officials, 


employees, and consultants shall comply with the Conflict of Interest Code for the City 
of Pinole within 30 days. 


 
Section 3.  The Form 700 (Statement of Economic Interests) are filed and 


maintained in the Office of the City Clerk and retained pursuant to Government Code 
Section 81008 and 81009. 
 
 
 
 
 123 of 182







 
 


 PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 
Pinole held on the 15th  day of September 2020, by the following vote: 
 
AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS:  
NOES: COUNCILMEMBERS:   
ABSENT: COUNCILMEMBERS:  
ABSTAIN: COUNCILMEMBERS:  
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was introduced, passed and adopted on 
adopted on this 15th day of September 2020. 
 
 
__________________________ 
Heather Iopu, CMC 
City Clerk 


124 of 182







 
 


Exhibit A to Resolution 2018-57 
 


APPENDIX to the CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE 
 DESIGNATED POSITIONS  


AND 
DISCLOSURE CATEGORIES  


 
Pursuant to the Conflict of Interest Code of the City of Pinole, the following positions are 
designated positions as defined in City of Pinole Conflict of Interest Code and have been 
determined that these persons make or participate in the making of decisions which may 
foreseeably have a material effect on economic interests.  Each must report their interests 
according to their assigned disclosure categories1.   
 
Department   Designated Position    Category 
 
Administration  Assistant City Manager    1, 5, 6  
    Assistant to City Manager    3, 5, 6  
    City Clerk      3, 5, 6  


                Information Services Administrator       4    
    Human Resources Director   3,5 


 
    Successor Agency to the Former   1-5 
    Pinole Redevelopment Agency  
 
    Oversight Board     1-5 
 
 
Public Works   Public Works Director Manager   1, 5, 6  
    Assistant City Engineer    1, 5, 6  
    Associate Civil Engineer    1, 5, 6  
    Public Works Superintendent   3, 5  
    Treatment Plant Manager    3, 5  
    Transportation & Pedestrian Safety (TAPS)  1, 3 
    Committee        
 
Community Development Development Services Director/City Engineer 1, 5, 6 
    Community Development Director    
    Senior Project Manager    1, 5, 6  
    Planning Manager     1, 5, 6  
    Associate Planner     1, 5, 6  
    Building Official     2, 4, 6  
    Code Enforcement Officer/Building Inspector 2, 4, 6  
           


 
1 In addition to the listed positions designated by the City, the following positions are subject to the disclosure 
requirements established by Government Code Section 87200:  Planning Commission, City Manager, City Attorney, 
and City Treasurer. 
 


125 of 182







 
 


Fire    Fire Chief     1, 5, 6  
    Fire Battalion Chief     1, 5, 6 
 
Recreation   Community Services Commission  1, 5, 6  
    Recreation Manager   1, 5, 6 
    Recreation Director    1, 5, 6  
    Senior Center Coordinator   4  
    Youth Center Coordinator   4 
     
Police    Police Chief     1, 5, 6  
    Police Lieutenant    1, 5, 6 
    Police Commander    1, 5, 6  
 
Finance   Finance Officer Director   1, 5, 6  


     
     
City Attorney   Assistant City Attorney   1, 5, 6  
    Assistant General Counsel   1, 5, 6  
 
Consultants*        1-5 or as appropriate* 
 
For purposes of this code, a consultant is defined pursuant to Title 2 Cal. Admin 
Code Section 18730(2)  


(A) Makes a governmental decision whether to:  


(i) Approve a rate, rule, or regulation;  


(ii) Adopt or enforce a law;  


(iii) Issue, deny, suspend, or revoke any permit, license, 
application, certificate, approval, order, or similar 
authorization or entitlement;  
(iv) Authorize the agency to enter into, modify, or renew a 
contract provided it is the type of contract that requires 
agency approval;  
(v) Grant agency approval to a contract that requires 
agency approval and to which the agency is a party, or to the 
specifications for such a contract;  
(vi) Grant agency approval to a plan, design, report, 
study, or similar item; or 
(vii) Adopt, or grant agency approval of, policies, 
standards, or guidelines for the agency, or for any 
subdivision thereof. 


 
 


126 of 182







 
 


*Consultants are also defined for reporting purposes as persons who prepare a product, 
perform services of a general nature on an on-going basis and participate by direct advice 
to the decision makers, influence or participate in governmental decisions, or who act in a 
staff capacity (performing all the same duties for the City that would otherwise be performed 
by an individual holding a designated position in the City’s Conflict of Interest Code).  With 
respect to consultants, the City Attorney (or designee) may determine in writing that 
a particular consultant has been retained to perform a range of duties that is 
sufficiently limited in scope so as to not require full disclosure, or no disclosure.  
Such written determination shall be based on the consultant’s description of work, 
as defined in the Contract Scope of Services.  Such written determination shall be 
noted in the consultant contract, including a recitation to the extent of disclosure 
requirements and signed by the City Attorney (or designee). Any determination is a 
public record and shall be retained for public inspection.  


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 


127 of 182







 
 


 
 


DISCLOSURE CATEGORIES 
 
DISCLOSURE CATEGORY 1 


All interests in real property located within City of Pinole, or within two miles of the 
boundaries of Pinole or within two miles of any land used or owned by the Agency; and 
investments and business positions in business entities and income; including loans, gifts, 
and travel payments from all sources. 
 
DISCLOSURE CATEGORY 2 


All interests in real property located within City of Pinole, or within two miles of the 
boundaries of Pinole or within two miles of any land used or owned by the agency. 
 
DISCLOSURE CATEGORY 3 


All investments and business positions in business entities and all sources, including 
loans, gifts, and travel payments, from sources that provide services, supplies, materials, 
machinery, or equipment of the type utilized by the agency. 
 
DISCLOSURE CATEGORY 4 


All investments and business positions in business entities and all sources of income, 
including loans, gifts, and travel payments, from sources that provide services, supplies, 
materials, machinery, or equipment of the type utilized by the designated position’s 
division or department. 
 
DISCLOSURE CATEGORY 5 


All investments and business positions in business entities and sources of income, 
including loans, gifts, and travel payments from sources of the type to request a permit, 
license of any type, or entitlement to use agency properties or facilities, included but not 
limited to: 


• Business licenses 
• Utility permit, building or inspection permits, solicitor’s, massage operator permits  
• Land use entitlements 
• Grant funding 
• Facilities use permits 


 
DISCLOSURE CATEGORY 6 


All investments and business positions in business entities, and income, including loans, 
gifts, and travel payments from sources that filed a claim against the agency during the 
previous two years, or has a claim pending. 
 
 


128 of 182







Exhibit A to Resolution 2020-_   
 


APPENDIX to the CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE 
DESIGNATED POSITIONS 


AND 
DISCLOSURE CATEGORIES 


 
Pursuant to the Conflict of Interest Code of the City of Pinole, the following positions are 
designated positions as defined in City of Pinole Conflict of Interest Code and have 
been determined that these persons make or participate in the making of decisions 
which may foreseeably have a material effect on economic interests. Each must report 
their interests according to their assigned disclosure categories1. 


 


Department 
Administration 


Designated Position 


Assistant City Manager 


Category 


1, 5, 6 
 


City Clerk 3, 5, 6 
 


Information Services Administrator  4 
 
 
 
 
Public Works 


 
Human Resources Director   


 


Public Works Manager 
 


Treatment Plant Manager 
 


Transportation  &  Pedestrian  Safety 
(TAPS) Committee 


 
3, 5  


 
 


1, 5, 6 
 
3, 5 


 
1, 3 


 
Community Development   Development Services Director/City Engineer 1, 5, 6 


 
Senior Project Manager 1, 5, 6 


 
Planning Manager 1, 5, 6 


Associate Planner 1, 5, 6 


   Building Official       2, 4, 6 
 
                  Code Enforcement Officer     2, 4, 6 


 
   Building Inspector      2, 4, 6 
 
   Sr. Building Inspector                                  2, 4, 6  


 
 
 


 


1 In addition to the listed positions designated by the City, the following positions are subject to the disclosure 
requirements established by Government Code Section 87200: Planning Commission, City Manager, City Attorney, 
and City Treasurer. 129 of 182







Fire Fire Chief 
Fire Battalion Chief 


1, 5, 6 
1, 5, 6 


 


Recreation Community Services Commission 
Recreation Manager 
Senior Center Coordinator 


1, 5, 6 
1, 5, 6 
4 


                                             Tiny Tots Program Coordinator                4   
                                              Youth Center Coordinator 4 


Police Police Chief 
Police Lieutenant 


1, 5, 6 
1, 5, 6 


Finance Finance Director 1, 5, 6 
 
 


City Attorney Assistant City Attorney 1, 5, 6 
 Assistant General Counsel 1, 5, 6 


Consultants* 1-5 or as appropriate* 
 


For purposes of this code, a consultant is defined pursuant to Title 2 Cal. Admin 
Code Section 18730(2) 


 
(A) Makes a governmental decision whether to: 


(i) Approve a rate, rule, or regulation; 


(ii) Adopt or enforce a law; 


(iii) Issue, deny, suspend, or revoke any permit, license, 
application, certificate, approval, order, or similar 
authorization or entitlement; 
(iv) Authorize the agency to enter into, modify, or renew a 
contract provided it is the type of contract that requires 
agency approval; 
(v) Grant agency approval to a contract that requires 
agency approval and to which the agency is a party, or to the 
specifications for such a contract; 
(vi) Grant agency approval to a plan, design, report, 
study, or similar item; or 
(vii) Adopt, or grant agency approval of, policies, 
standards, or guidelines for the agency, or for any 
subdivision thereof. 


130 of 182







*Consultants are also defined for reporting purposes as persons who prepare a product, 
perform services of a general nature on an on-going basis and participate by direct advice 
to the decision makers, influence or participate in governmental decisions, or who act in a 
staff capacity (performing all the same duties for the City that would otherwise be 
performed by an individual holding a designated position in the City’s Conflict of Interest 
Code). With respect to consultants, the City Attorney (or designee) may determine 
in writing that a particular consultant has been retained to perform a range of 
duties that is sufficiently limited in scope so as to not require full disclosure, or 
no disclosure. Such written determination shall be based on the consultant’s 
description of work, as defined in the Contract Scope of Services. Such written 
determination shall be noted in the consultant contract, including a recitation to the 
extent of disclosure requirements and signed by the City Attorney (or designee). Any 
determination is a public record and shall be retained for public inspection. 


131 of 182







 


DISCLOSURE CATEGORIES 
 


DISCLOSURE CATEGORY 1 
 


All interests in real property located within City of Pinole, or within two miles of the 
boundaries of Pinole or within two miles of any land used or owned by the Agency; and 
investments and business positions in business entities and income; including loans, gifts, 
and travel payments from all sources. 


 
DISCLOSURE CATEGORY 2 


 


All interests in real property located within City of Pinole, or within two miles of the 
boundaries of Pinole or within two miles of any land used or owned by the agency. 


 
DISCLOSURE CATEGORY 3 


 


All investments and business positions in business entities and all sources, including loans, 
gifts, and travel payments, from sources that provide services, supplies, materials, 
machinery, or equipment of the type utilized by the agency. 


 
DISCLOSURE CATEGORY 4 


 


All investments and business positions in business entities and all sources of income, 
including loans, gifts, and travel payments, from sources that provide services, supplies, 
materials, machinery, or equipment of the type utilized by the designated position’s division 
or department. 


 
DISCLOSURE CATEGORY 5 


 


All investments and business positions in business entities and sources of income, 
including loans, gifts, and travel payments from sources of the type to request a permit, license 
of any type, or entitlement to use agency properties or facilities, included but not limited to: 


• Business licenses 
• Utility permit, building or inspection permits, solicitor’s, massage operator permits 
• Land use entitlements 
• Grant funding 
• Facilities use permits 


DISCLOSURE CATEGORY 6 


All investments and business positions in business entities, and  income,  including loans, gifts, 
and travel payments from sources that filed a claim against the agency during the previous 
two years, or has a claim pending. 


 


132 of 182







   


         


__________________________________________ _________________________ 


2020 Local Agency Biennial Notice 


Name of Agency: 


Mailing Address: 


Contact Person: Phone No. 


Email: Alternate Email: 


Accurate disclosure is essential to monitor whether officials have conflicts of interest and to 
help ensure public trust in government. The biennial review examines current programs to 
ensure that the agency’s code includes disclosure by those agency officials who make or 
participate in making governmental decisions. 
This agency has reviewed its conflict of interest code and has determined that (check one BOX): 


❑ An amendment is required. The following amendments are necessary: 
(Check all that apply.) 


 Include new positions 
 Revise disclosure categories 
 Revise the titles of existing positions 
 Delete titles of positions that have been abolished and/or positions that no longer make or 


participate in making governmental decisions 
 Other (describe) 


❑ The code is currently under review by the code reviewing body. 


❑ No amendment is required. (If your code is over five years old, amendments may be 
necessary.) 


Verification (to be completed if no amendment is required) 


This agency’s code accurately designates all positions that make or participate in the making of governmental 
decisions. The disclosure assigned to those positions accurately requires that all investments, business 
positions, interests in real property, and sources of income that may foreseeably be affected materially by the 
decisions made by those holding designated positions are reported. The code includes all other provisions 
required by Government Code Section 87302. 


Signature of Chief Executive Officer Date 


All agencies must complete and return this notice regardless of how recently your code was approved or 
amended. Please return this notice no later than October 1, 2020, or by the date specified by your agency, if 
earlier, to: 


(PLACE RETURN ADDRESS OF CODE REVIEWING BODY HERE) 


PLEASE DO NOT RETURN THIS FORM TO THE FPPC. 


www.fppc.ca.gov 
FPPC Advice: advice@fppc.ca.gov (866.275.3772) 


Page 1 of 1 133 of 182



http://www.fppc.ca.gov/

mailto:advice@fppc.ca.gov





   


  CITY COUNCIL  
  REPORT 9A 


 
 
DATE: OCTOBER 19, 2021 
 
TO:  HONORABLE MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 
 
FROM: ERIC CASHER, CITY ATTORNEY 
 
SUBJECT: ORDINANCE ADDING CHAPTER 8.10, ORGANICS REDUCTIONS 


AND RECYCLING ORDINANCE, TO THE PINOLE MUNICIPAL CODE 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends that the City Council introduce and waive the first reading of an 
Ordinance to add Chapter 8.10, Organics Reductions and Recycling Ordinance, to 
the Pinole Municipal Code. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The Short-Lived Climate Pollutants Act of 2016 (“SB 1383”) establishes methane 
reduction targets as part of a larger statewide strategy to combat climate change 
and reduce greenhouse gas (“GHG”) emissions. To achieve this goal, SB 1383 
establishes a statewide target of a 75% reduction in disposal of organic waste in 
landfills, coupled with a 20% increase in edible food recovery by 2025. SB 1383 
establishes the California Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery 
(“CalRecycle”) as the regulatory authority to achieve the organic waste disposal 
reduction targets. CalRecycle has adopted regulations implementing SB 1383 (the 
“SB 1383 Regulations”). 
 
The SB 1383 Regulations require local jurisdictions that provide solid waste 
collection to, by January 1, 2022, adopt an ordinance or other enforceable 
mechanism to implement relevant provisions of the SB 1383 Regulations. These 
Regulations impose significant new requirements on local jurisdictions to achieve the 
state goals, including new local waste reduction policies and programs, procurement 
of recycled content paper and recovered organics, outreach and education, 
monitoring and record keeping, and enforcement. Failure by local jurisdictions to 
undertake their SB 1383 responsibilities could result in significant fines imposed by 
CalRecycle. 
 
The proposed Ordinance would satisfy the City’s obligation to adopt an ordinance to 
implement SB 1383 by January 1, 2022. The proposed Ordinance is closely based 
on a model ordinance prepared by CalRecycle. 
  
 
 


134 of 182







City Council Report  
October 19, 2021                                                                                                                                  2 


DISCUSSION 
 
The proposed Ordinance would add Chapter 8.10 to the Pinole Municipal Code. The 
Ordinance establishes requirements for seven (7) different types of entities: Single-
family Generators, Commercial Generators & Multi-family Generators, Edible Food 
Generators, Food Recovery Organizations and Services, Regulated Haulers, and 
Facility Operators and Self-haulers. In addition, the Ordinance includes provisions 
regarding inspections, investigations, waivers, and enforcement of the requirements 
contained therein. 
 
Requirements for Generators 
 
Generators are required to source-separate and place materials (landfill/garbage, 
recycling, and organics/compost) in designated containers and not contaminate 
materials placed in the containers. Commercial and multi-family generators must 
provide containers for organics/compost and recycling in all areas (excluding 
restrooms) where disposal containers for trash are provided. Generators that 
generate minimal amounts of organics/compost or don’t have the space to place 
organics containers may be granted waivers for these requirements. Generators that 
are not subscribed to the City’s franchised collection service and instead self-haul to 
an approved disposal site must comply with separate requirements. 
 
Edible Food Recovery 
 
Commercial Edible Food Generators must comply with certain requirements to 
ensure that edible food that would otherwise be disposed of is safely recovered to 
the maximum extent possible. Specifically, Commercial Edible Food Generators 
must recover surplus edible food and have a contract in place with a food recovery 
organization or service to accept the surplus edible food. There are additional 
requirements to ensure that edible food is prepared, packaged, labeled, handled, 
stored, distributed, and transported safely, and that appropriate records are kept. 
This requirement goes into effect on January 1, 2022, for Tier One Commercial 
Edible Food Generators (grocery stores and supermarkets) and January 1, 2024, for 
Tier Two Commercial Edible Food Generators (large restaurants and other large 
food providers). Food recovery organizations, such as food banks, must keep 
records and report annually to their jurisdictions the amount of food collected. 
 
Requirements for Solid Waste Haulers and Facility Operators 
 
The Ordinance establishes a number of requirements for the City’s solid waste 
hauler. Most significantly, the hauler must transport source separated recyclable 
materials and source separated organics/compost materials only to facilities that can 
properly recover these materials. Additionally, the hauler must assist in the 
dissemination of education materials to residential and commercial customers, as 
well as properly train employees. Haulers must also conduct or comply with 
contamination minimization efforts and inform generators when contamination is 


135 of 182







City Council Report  
October 19, 2021                                                                                                                                  3 


observed. The City currently has an exclusive franchise agreement with Republic 
Services for the collection of trash, recyclables, and organic waste. 
 
Monitoring and Enforcement 
 
The SB 1383 Regulations require the City to enforce all of the requirements of the 
proposed Ordinance. In order to minimize enforcement efforts, there will be ongoing 
education and outreach to all businesses and residents to provide information on 
collection services participation requirements, contamination standards, and overall 
SB 1383 compliance. Enforcement for commercial business generators, franchised 
haulers, and self-haulers will begin on January 1, 2022. Enforcement for all other 
entities will not begin until January 1, 2024. The City is required to engage in certain 
monitoring activities to ensure that violations of the Ordinance are identified, and 
corrective action is taken. 
 
Procurement 
 
The SB 1383 Regulations require the City to procure recycled organic products 
equivalent to 0.08 tons per resident to stimulate demand for the anticipated increase 
in recycled organic products that will be generated due to the SB 1383 Regulations. 
For Pinole, this equates to using and/or purchasing for deployment elsewhere 
approximately 1,600 tons of recycled organic products per year. Examples of 
recycled organic products include compost, mulch, renewable natural gas, or 
electricity from biomass.  Renewable natural gas production in California is very 
limited, and most of the gas/electricity produced is already used or sold.  Therefore, 
it is anticipated that the City will need to meet the bulk of its procurement mandate 
through compost and mulch purchases, the volume of which will far exceed the 
City’s typical annual need. This problem is being faced by most jurisdictions. The 
City is currently working on creative ideas to meet its procurement requirements 
under SB 1383. 
 
SB 1383 also requires the procurement of recycled content paper. The recycled 
content paper rules mandate that jurisdictions must require all businesses from 
which it purchases paper products to certify in writing a minimum 30% of post-
consumer material in its paper products sold or offered to the jurisdiction. Most 
paper and janitorial supplies purchased by the City meet the 30% post-consumer 
requirement.  Staff will prepare an update to the City’s procurement policy for 
Council’s approval at a subsequent meeting and implement the required policy and 
procedures among all City departments to ensure compliance with this mandate. 
 
Implementation 
 
Although state law requires the City to adopt the proposed Ordinance, the City is 
authorized to assign many of its responsibilities under the Ordinance to other entities 
to perform. The City is currently in ongoing discussions with Republic Services and 
RecycleMore regarding implementation of the SB 1383 Regulations to determine 
what responsibilities each entity will perform. Pinole must maintain the 


136 of 182







City Council Report  
October 19, 2021                                                                                                                                  4 


implementation records and report annually to CalRecycle. If necessary, the City can 
amend Chapter 8.10 in the future to reflect the realities of implementation. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
There will be a fiscal impact from adopting the proposed Ordinance and complying 
the SB 1383 Regulations. However, the exact amount of that impact is unknown and 
will depend on what responsibilities under the Ordinance are carried out by the City, 
Republic Services, and RecycleMore. It is likely that some of these costs will be paid 
for by an increase in solid waste collection rates. An increase in the maximum 
permitted solid waste collection rates will require the approval of the City Council. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
A. Ordinance to add Chapter 8.10, Organics Reductions and Recycling 


Ordinance, to the Pinole Municipal Code 
 


3889723.2  


137 of 182







ATTACHMENT A 


 
 


CITY COUNCIL ORDINANCE NO. ______ 
 


AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF  
PINOLE ADDING CHAPTER 8.10, “ORGANICS REDUCTION AND RECYCLING”, 


TO THE PINOLE MUNICIPAL CODE TO REDUCE THE AMOUNT OF ORGANIC AND 
RECYCLABLE MATERIALS DEPOSITED IN LANDFILLS 


 
 WHEREAS, with certain state laws require cities, counties, and special districts 
providing solid waste collection services to adopt ordinances and take other measures to 
reduce the amount of organic and recyclable materials deposited in landfills from 
commercial and residential generators, more specifically the Short-Lived Climate 
Pollutants Organic Waste Reduction regulations adopted pursuant to Senate Bill 1383 
(Statutes of 2016) set forth in the California Code of Regulations (the “SB 1383 
Regulations”); and 


 
 WHEREAS, the SB 1383 Regulations require cities, counties, and special districts 
providing solid waste collection services to, by January 1, 2022, adopt and enforce an 
ordinance or other enforceable mechanism applicable to residents and businesses 
generating or processing solid waste to implement relevant provisions of the SB 1383 
Regulations; and 


 
WHEREAS, the purpose of this Ordinance is to comply with the requirements of 


the SB 1383 Regulations; and 
 


 WHEREAS, the City Council desires to adopt this Ordinance in order to reduce the 
amount of organic and recyclable materials deposited into landfills.   
 
 THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PINOLE DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1.  Recitals.   
 
The above recitals are true and correct and made a part of this Ordinance. 
 
SECTION 2.  Municipal Code Amendment.  
 
The City Council hereby amends the Municipal Code to include Chapter 8.10, Organics 
Reduction and Recycling, to read as contained in Exhibit A, attached hereto and 
incorporated herein.  
 
SECTION 3.  Enforcement Agency Authorization  
 
The City Council may, by resolution, authorize and designate other entities to carry out 
responsibilities under Chapter 8.10, to the extent allowed by the SB 1383 Regulations 
and applicable law, and no amendment of Chapter 8.10 shall be required. 
 
SECTION 4.  CEQA.   


138 of 182







2 
 


 
This Ordinance is adopted pursuant to CalRecycle’s SB 1383 Regulations. The SB 
1383 Regulations were the subject of a program environmental impact report (EIR) 
prepared by CalRecycle, and except for provisions which maintain the already 
established requirements of the Waste Management Authority’s Ordinance Requiring 
Actions to Reduce Landfilling of Recyclable and Organic Solid Wastes from Businesses, 
Multifamily Residences, and Self-Haulers (Ordinance 2012-1; also known as the 
Mandatory Recycling Ordinance ) which currently apply in the City, the activities to be 
carried out under this Ordinance are entirely within the scope of the SB 1383 
Regulations and that EIR. No mitigation measures identified in the EIR are applicable to 
the City’s enactment of this Ordinance. Moreover, none of the conditions requiring a 
subsequent or supplemental EIR, as described in Public Resources Code Section 
21166 and California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines Sections 15162 and 
15163, have occurred. The EIR therefore adequately analyzes any potential 
environmental effects of the Ordinance and no additional environmental review is 
required. On a separate and independent basis, the Ordinance is exempt from CEQA 
pursuant to Section 15308, Class 8 of the CEQA Guidelines of as an action that will not 
have a significant impact on the environment and as an action taken by a regulatory 
agency for the protection of the environment, specifically, for the protection of the 
climate. There are no unusual circumstances that would cause this Ordinance to have a 
significant effect on the environment.  
 
Section 5. Severability. 
 
If any provision of this Ordinance or the application thereof to any person or 
circumstance is held invalid, the remainder of this Ordinance, including the application 
of such part or provision to other persons or circumstances shall not be affected thereby 
and shall continue in full force and effect. To this end, provisions of this Ordinance are 
severable. The City Council of the City of Pinole hereby declares that it would have 
passed each section, subsection, subdivision, paragraph, sentence, clause, or phrase 
hereof irrespective of the fact that any one or more sections, subsections, subdivisions, 
paragraphs, sentences, clauses, or phrases be held unconstitutional, invalid, or 
unenforceable. 
 
Section 6. Effective Date. 
 
In accordance with California Government Code Section 36937, this Ordinance shall 
take effect and be in force on the thirty-first day after adoption. 
 
Section 7. Publication. 
 
Within fifteen (15) days after the passage of this Ordinance the City Clerk shall cause 
this Ordinance or a summary thereof to be published or to be posted in at least three 
public places in the City of Pinole in accordance with the requirements of California 
Government Code Section 36933. 
 


139 of 182







3 
 


PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Pinole on this 2nd day of 
November, 2021, by the following vote: 
AYES:   
 
NOES: 
 
ABSTAIN: 
 
ABSENT:  
 
 
 
      _____________________________ 


Norma Martínez-Rubin, Mayor  
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________________ 
Heather Iopu, City Clerk 
 
 
3889112.1  


140 of 182







1 


 


EXHIBIT A 
CHAPTER 8.10 


ORGANICS REDUCTIONS AND RECYCLING ORDINANCE 
 
8.10.010  Purpose and Title  
8.10.020  Definitions   
8.10.030  Requirements for Single-Family Generators  
8.10.040  Requirements for Commercial Businesses   
8.10.050  Waivers for Generators   
8.10.060  Requirements for Commercial Edible Food Generators   
8.10.070  Requirements for Food Recovery Organizations and Services    
8.10.080  Requirement for Haulers and Facility Operators   
8.10.090  Self-Hauler Requirements   
8.10.100  Compliance with CalGreen Recycling Requirements  
8.10.110 Model Water Efficient Landscaping Ordinance    
8.10.120 Procurement Requirements    
8.10.130 Inspections and Investigations     
8.10.140 Enforcement    
 
8.10.010 Purpose and Title  
 
The City finds and declares: 
 


(a) This chapter shall be entitled “Organics Reduction and Recycling Ordinance.” 
 
(b) The purpose of this Ordinance is to reduce the amount of organic and recyclable materials 


deposited in landfills from commercial and residential generators in accordance with applicable 
law, including SB 1383, the Short-lived Climate Pollutant Reduction Act of 2016, and the 
regulations adopted to implement such laws.  


 
(c) The City Council may, by resolution, authorize and designate other entities to carry out 


responsibilities under Chapter 8.10, to the extent allowed by applicable law, and no amendment 
of Chapter 8.10 shall be required. 
 
8.10.020  Definitions   
 
The following definitions govern the use of terms in this Ordinance: 


(a) “Blue Container” has the same meaning as in 14 CCR Section 18982.2(a)(5) and shall be 
used for the purpose of storage and collection of Source Separated Recyclable Materials or 
Source Separated Blue Container Organic Waste. A Blue Container is commonly known 
as a Recycling Container.  


(b) “CalRecycle” means California's Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery, 
which is the Department designated with responsibility for developing, implementing, and 
enforcing SB 1383 Regulations on jurisdictions (and others).  


141 of 182







2 


 


(c) “California Code of Regulations” or “CCR” means the State of California Code of 
Regulations. CCR references in this ordinance are preceded with a number that refers to 
the relevant Title of the CCR (e.g., “14 CCR” refers to Title 14 of CCR). 


(d) “City” means the City of Pinole.  


(e) “Commercial Business” or “Commercial” means a firm, partnership, proprietorship, joint-
stock company, corporation, or association, whether for-profit or nonprofit, strip mall, 
industrial facility, or a multifamily residential dwelling, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR 
Section 18982(a)(6). A Multi-Family Residential Dwelling that consists of fewer than five 
(5) units is not a Commercial Business for purposes of implementing this ordinance.   


(f) “Commercial Edible Food Generator” includes a Tier One or a Tier Two Commercial 
Edible Food Generator as defined in this ordinance or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR 
Section 18982(a)(73) and (a)(74). For the purposes of this definition, Food Recovery 
Organizations and Food Recovery Services are not Commercial Edible Food Generators 
pursuant to 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(7). 


(g) “Community Composting” means any activity that composts green material, agricultural 
material, food material, and vegetative food material, alone or in combination, and the total 
amount of feedstock and Compost on-site at any one time does not exceed 100 cubic yards 
and 750 square feet, as specified in 14 CCR Section 17855(a)(4); or, as otherwise defined 
by 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(8). 


(h) “Compliance Review” means a review of records by a Jurisdiction to determine 
compliance with this ordinance. 


(i) “Compost” has the same meaning as in 14 CCR Section 17896.2(a)(4), which stated, as of 
the effective date of this ordinance, that “Compost” means the product resulting from the 
controlled biological decomposition of organic Solid Wastes that are Source Separated 
from the municipal Solid Waste stream, or which are separated at a centralized facility. 


(j) “Compostable Plastics” or “Compostable Plastic” means plastic materials that meet the 
ASTM D6400 standard for compostability, or as otherwise described in 14 CCR Section 
18984.1(a)(1)(A) or 18984.2(a)(1)(C).   


(k) “Container Contamination” or “Contaminated Container” means a container, regardless of 
color, that contains Prohibited Container Contaminants, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR 
Section 18982(a)(55).  


(l) “C&D” means construction and demolition debris. 


(m) “Designee” means an entity that the City contracts with or otherwise arranges to carry out 
any of the City’s responsibilities of this ordinance as authorized in 14 CCR Section 
18981.2. A Designee may be a government entity, a hauler, a private entity, or a 
combination of those entities. 


142 of 182







3 


 


(n) “Edible Food” means food intended for human consumption, or as otherwise defined in 14 
CCR Section 18982(a)(18). For the purposes of this ordinance or as otherwise defined in 
14 CCR Section 18982(a)(18), “Edible Food” is not Solid Waste if it is recovered and not 
discarded. Nothing in this ordinance or in 14 CCR, Division 7, Chapter 12 requires or 
authorizes the Recovery of Edible Food that does not meet the food safety requirements of 
the California Retail Food Code. 


(o) “Enforcement Action" means an action of the Jurisdiction to address non-compliance with 
this ordinance including, but not limited to, issuing administrative citations, fines, 
penalties, or using other remedies. 


(p) “Excluded Waste” means hazardous substance, hazardous waste, infectious waste, 
designated waste, volatile, corrosive, medical waste, infectious, regulated radioactive 
waste, and toxic substances or material that facility operator(s), which receive materials 
from the Jurisdiction and its generators, reasonably believe(s) would, as a result of or upon 
acceptance, transfer, processing, or disposal, be a violation of local, State, or Federal law, 
regulation, or ordinance, including: land use restrictions or conditions, waste that cannot 
be disposed of in Class III landfills or accepted at the facility by permit conditions, waste 
that in jurisdictions, or its Designee’s reasonable opinion would present a significant risk 
to human health or the environment, cause a nuisance or otherwise create or expose 
Jurisdiction, or its Designee, to potential liability; but not including de minimis volumes or 
concentrations of waste of a type and amount normally found in Single-Family or Multi-
Family Solid Waste after implementation of programs for the safe collection, processing, 
recycling, treatment, and disposal of batteries and paint in compliance with Sections 41500 
and 41802 of the California Public Resources Code. Excluded Waste does not include used 
motor oil and filters, household batteries, universal wastes, and/or latex paint when such 
materials are defined as allowable materials for collection through the City’s collection 
programs and the generator or customer has properly placed the materials for collection 
pursuant to instructions provided by the City or the Designee for collection services 


(q) “Food Distributor” means a company that distributes food to entities including, but not 
limited to, Supermarkets and Grocery Stores, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 
18982(a)(22). 


(r) “Food Facility” has the same meaning as in Section 113789 of the Health and Safety Code. 


(s) “Food Recovery” means actions to collect and distribute food for human consumption that 
otherwise would be disposed, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(24). 


(t) “Food Recovery Organization” means an entity that engages in the collection or receipt of 
Edible Food from Commercial Edible Food Generators and distributes that Edible Food to 
the public for Food Recovery either directly or through other entities or as otherwise 
defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(25), including, but not limited to: 


(1) A food bank as defined in Section 113783 of the Health and Safety Code; 


143 of 182







4 


 


(2) A nonprofit charitable organization as defined in Section 113841 of the Health and 
Safety code; and, 


(3) A nonprofit charitable temporary food facility as defined in Section 113842 of the 
Health and Safety Code. 


A Food Recovery Organization is not a Commercial Edible Food Generator for the 
purposes of this ordinance and implementation of 14 CCR, Division 7, Chapter 12 
pursuant to 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(7).  


If the definition in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(25) for Food Recovery Organization differs 
from this definition, the definition in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(25) shall apply to this 
ordinance. 


(u) “Food Recovery Service” means a person or entity that collects and transports Edible Food 
from a Commercial Edible Food Generator to a Food Recovery Organization or other 
entities for Food Recovery, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(26). A 
Food Recovery Service is not a Commercial Edible Food Generator for the purposes of 
this ordinance and implementation of 14 CCR, Division 7, Chapter 12 pursuant to 14 CCR 
Section 18982(a)(7). 


(v) “Food Scraps” means all food such as, but not limited to, fruits, vegetables, meat, poultry, 
seafood, shellfish, bones, rice, beans, pasta, bread, cheese, and eggshells. Food Scraps 
excludes fats, oils, and grease when such materials are Source Separated from other Food 
Scraps.  


(w) “Food Service Provider” means an entity primarily engaged in providing food services to 
institutional, governmental, Commercial, or industrial locations of others based on 
contractual arrangements with these types of organizations, or as otherwise defined in 14 
CCR Section 18982(a)(27). 


(x) “Food-Soiled Paper” is compostable paper material that has come in contact with food or 
liquid, such as, but not limited to, compostable paper plates, paper coffee cups, napkins, 
pizza boxes, and milk cartons.  


(y) “Food Waste” means Food Scraps, Food-Soiled Paper, and Compostable Plastics in 
combination of separately.  


(z) “Gray Container” has the same meaning as in 14 CCR Section 18982.2(a)(28) and shall be 
used for the purpose of storage and collection of Mixed Waste. A Gray Container is 
commonly known as a Landfill Container or Trash.   


(aa) “Gray Container Waste” means Solid Waste that is collected in a Gray Container that is 
part of a three-container Organic Waste collection service that prohibits the placement of 
Organic Waste in the Gray Container as specified in 14 CCR Sections 18984.1(a) and (b), 
or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 17402(a)(6.5).  


144 of 182







5 


 


(bb) “Green Container” has the same meaning as in 14 CCR Section 18982.2(a)(29) and shall 
be used for the purpose of storage and collection of Source Separated Green Container 
Organic Waste. A Green Container is commonly known as a Compost Container.  


(cc) “Grocery Store” means a store primarily engaged in the retail sale of canned food; dry 
goods; fresh fruits and vegetables; fresh meats, fish, and poultry; and any area that is not 
separately owned within the store where the food is prepared and served, including a 
bakery, deli, and meat and seafood departments, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 
18982(a)(30). 


(dd) “Hauler Route” means the designated itinerary or sequence of stops for each segment of 
the Jurisdiction’s collection service area, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 
18982(a)(31.5).  


(ee) “High Diversion Organic Waste Processing Facility” means a facility that is in compliance 
with the reporting requirements of 14 CCR Section 18815.5(d) and meets or exceeds an 
annual average Mixed Waste organic content Recovery rate of 50 percent between January 
1, 2022 and December 31, 2024, and 75 percent after January 1, 2025, as calculated 
pursuant to 14 CCR Section 18815.5(e) for Organic Waste received from the “Mixed waste 
organic collection stream” as defined in 14 CCR Section 17402(a)(11.5); or, as otherwise 
defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(33).  


(ff) “Inspection” means a site visit where a Jurisdiction reviews records, containers, and an 
entity’s collection, handling, recycling, or landfill disposal of Organic Waste or Edible 
Food handling to determine if the entity is complying with requirements set forth in this 
ordinance, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(35). 


(gg) “Enforcement Official” means the city manager, or his or her designee, or an authorized 
Designee.  


(ii) “Large Event” means an event, including, but not limited to, a sporting event or a flea 
market, that charges an admission price, or is operated by a local agency, and serves an 
average of more than 2,000 individuals per day of operation of the event, at a location that 
includes, but is not limited to, a public, nonprofit, or privately owned park, parking lot, golf 
course, street system, or other open space when being used for an event. If the definition 
in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(38) differs from this definition, the definition in 14 CCR 
Section 18982(a)(38) shall apply to this ordinance. 


(jj) “Large Venue” means a permanent venue facility that annually seats or serves an average 
of more than 2,000 individuals within the grounds of the facility per day of operation of 
the venue facility. For purposes of this ordinance and implementation of 14 CCR, Division 
7, Chapter 12, a venue facility includes, but is not limited to, a public, nonprofit, or 
privately owned or operated stadium, amphitheater, arena, hall, amusement park, 
conference or civic center, zoo, aquarium, airport, racetrack, horse track, performing arts 
center, fairground, museum, theater, or other public attraction facility. For purposes of this 
ordinance and implementation of 14 CCR, Division 7, Chapter 12, a site under common 


145 of 182







6 


 


ownership or control that includes more than one Large Venue that is contiguous with other 
Large Venues in the site, is a single Large Venue. If the definition in 14 CCR Section 
18982(a)(39) differs from this definition, the definition in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(39) 
shall apply to this ordinance. 


(kk) “Local Education Agency” means a school district, charter school, or county office of 
education that is not subject to the control of city or county regulations related to Solid 
Waste, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(40). 


(ll) “Mixed Waste Organic Collection Stream” or “Mixed Waste” means Organic Waste 
collected in a container that is required by 14 CCR Sections 18984.1, 18984.2 or 18984.3 
to be taken to a High Diversion Organic Waste Processing Facility or as otherwise defined 
in 14 CCR Section 17402(a)(11.5). 


(mm) “Multi-Family Residential Dwelling” or “Multi-Family” means of, from, or pertaining to 
residential premises with five (5) or more dwelling units. Multi-Family premises do not 
include hotels, motels, or other transient occupancy facilities, which are considered 
Commercial Businesses.  


(oo) “Non-Compostable Paper” includes but is not limited to paper that is coated in a plastic 
material that will not breakdown in the composting process, or as otherwise defined in 14 
CCR Section 18982(a)(41).  


(qq) “Non-Organic Recyclables” means non-putrescible and non-hazardous recyclable wastes 
including but not limited to bottles, cans, metals, plastics and glass, or as otherwise defined 
in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(43).  


(rr)  “Notice of Violation (NOV)” means a notice that a violation has occurred that includes a 
compliance date to avoid an action to seek penalties, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR 
Section 18982(a)(45) or further explained in 14 CCR Section 18995.4.  


(ss)  “Organic Waste” means Solid Wastes containing material originated from living organisms 
and their metabolic waste products, including but not limited to food, green material, 
landscape and pruning waste, organic textiles and carpets, lumber, wood, Paper Products, 
Printing and Writing Paper, manure, biosolids, digestate, and sludges or as otherwise 
defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(46). Biosolids and digestate are as defined by 14 CCR 
Section 18982(a). 


(tt)  “Organic Waste Generator” means a person or entity that is responsible for the initial 
creation of Organic Waste, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(48). 


(uu)  “Paper Products” include, but are not limited to, paper janitorial supplies, cartons, 
wrapping, packaging, file folders, hanging files, corrugated boxes, tissue, and toweling, or 
as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(51). 


(vv)  “Printing and Writing Papers” include, but are not limited to, copy, xerographic, 
watermark, cotton fiber, offset, forms, computer printout paper, white wove envelopes, 


146 of 182







7 


 


manila envelopes, book paper, note pads, writing tablets, newsprint, and other uncoated 
writing papers, posters, index cards, calendars, brochures, reports, magazines, and 
publications, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(54). 


(ww)  “Prohibited Container Contaminants” includes means the following: (i) discarded materials 
placed in the Blue Container that are not identified as acceptable Source Separated 
Recyclable Materials for the Jurisdiction’s Blue Container; (ii) discarded materials placed 
in the Green Container that are not identified as acceptable Source Separated Green 
Container Organic Waste for the Jurisdiction’s Green Container; (iii) discarded materials 
placed in the Gray Container that are acceptable Source Separated Recyclable Materials 
and/or Source Separated Green Container Organic Wastes to be placed in Jurisdiction’s 
Green Container and/or Blue Container; and, (iv) Excluded Waste placed in any container.  


(xx) “Recovered Organic Waste Products” means products made from California, landfill-
diverted recovered Organic Waste processed in a permitted or otherwise authorized 
facility, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(60). 


(yy)  “Recovery” means any activity or process described in 14 CCR Section 18983.1(b), or as 
otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(49). 


(zz)  “Recycled-Content Paper” means Paper Products and Printing and Writing Paper that 
consists of at least 30 percent, by fiber weight, postconsumer fiber, or as otherwise defined 
in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(61). 


(aaa) “Regional Agency” means regional agency as defined in Public Resources Code Section 
40181. 


(bbb)  “Regional or County Agency Enforcement Official” means a regional or county agency 
enforcement official, designated by the Jurisdiction with responsibility for enforcing the 
ordinance in conjunction or consultation with Jurisdiction Enforcement Official.  


(ccc) “Remote Monitoring” means the use of the internet of things (IoT) and/or wireless 
electronic devices to visualize the contents of Blue Containers, Green Containers, and Gray 
Containers for purposes of identifying the quantity of materials in containers (level of fill) 
and/or presence of Prohibited Container Contaminants. 


(ddd) “Renewable Gas” means gas derived from Organic Waste that has been diverted from a 
California landfill and processed at an in-vessel digestion facility that is permitted or 
otherwise authorized by 14 CCR to recycle Organic Waste, or as otherwise defined in 14 
CCR Section 18982(a)(62). 


(eee)  “Restaurant” means an establishment primarily engaged in the retail sale of food and drinks 
for on-premises or immediate consumption, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 
18982(a)(64). 


(fff)  “Route Review” means a visual Inspection of containers along a Hauler Route for the 
purpose of determining Container Contamination, and may include mechanical Inspection 


147 of 182







8 


 


methods such as the use of cameras, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 
18982(a)(65). 


(ggg) “SB 1383” means Senate Bill 1383 of 2016 approved by the Governor on September 19, 
2016, which added Sections 39730.5, 39730.6, 39730.7, and 39730.8 to the Health and 
Safety Code, and added Chapter 13.1 (commencing with Section 42652) to Part 3 of 
Division 30 of the Public Resources Code, establishing methane emissions reduction 
targets in a Statewide effort to reduce emissions of short-lived climate pollutants as 
amended, supplemented, superseded, and replaced from time to time.  


(hhh) “SB 1383 Regulations” or “SB 1383 Regulatory” means or refers to, for the purposes of 
this ordinance, the Short-Lived Climate Pollutants: Organic Waste Reduction regulations 
developed by CalRecycle and adopted in 2020 that created 14 CCR, Division 7, Chapter 
12 and amended portions of regulations of 14 CCR and 27 CCR.  


(iii)  “Self-Hauler” means a person, who hauls Solid Waste, Organic Waste or recyclable 
material he or she has generated to another person. Self-hauler also includes a person who 
back-hauls waste, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(66). Back-haul 
means generating and transporting Organic Waste to a destination owned and operated by 
the generator using the generator’s own employees and equipment, or as otherwise defined 
in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(66)(A). 


(jjj)  “Single-Family” means of, from, or pertaining to any residential premises with fewer than 
five (5) units.  


(kkk)  “Solid Waste” has the same meaning as defined in State Public Resources Code Section 
40191, which defines Solid Waste as all putrescible and nonputrescible solid, semisolid, 
and liquid wastes, including garbage, trash, refuse, paper, rubbish, ashes, industrial wastes, 
demolition and construction wastes, abandoned vehicles and parts thereof, discarded home 
and industrial appliances, dewatered, treated, or chemically fixed sewage sludge which is 
not hazardous waste, manure, vegetable or animal solid and semi-solid wastes, and other 
discarded solid and semisolid wastes, with the exception that Solid Waste does not include 
any of the following wastes: 


(1) Hazardous waste, as defined in the State Public Resources Code Section 40141. 


(2) Radioactive waste regulated pursuant to the State Radiation Control Law (Chapter 
8 (commencing with Section 114960) of Part 9 of Division 104 of the State Health 
and Safety Code). 


(3) Medical waste regulated pursuant to the State Medical Waste Management Act 
(Part 14 (commencing with Section 117600) of Division 104 of the State Health 
and Safety Code). Untreated medical waste shall not be disposed of in a Solid Waste 
landfill, as defined in State Public Resources Code Section 40195.1. Medical waste 
that has been treated and deemed to be Solid Waste shall be regulated pursuant to 
Division 30 of the State Public Resources Code.  


148 of 182







9 


 


(lll) “Source Separated” means materials, including commingled recyclable materials, that have 
been separated or kept separate from the Solid Waste stream, at the point of generation, for 
the purpose of additional sorting or processing those materials for recycling or reuse in 
order to return them to the economic mainstream in the form of raw material for new, 
reused, or reconstituted products, which meet the quality standards necessary to be used in 
the marketplace, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 17402.5(b)(4). For the 
purposes of the ordinance, Source Separated shall include separation of materials by the 
generator, property owner, property owner’s employee, property manager, or property 
manager’s employee into different containers for the purpose of collection such that Source 
Separated materials are separated from Mixed Waste or other Solid Waste for the purposes 
of collection and processing.  


(mmm)“Source Separated Blue Container Organic Waste” means Source Separated Organic 
Wastes that can be placed in a Blue Container that is limited to the collection of those 
Organic Wastes and Non-Organic Recyclables as defined in Section 18982(a)(43), or as 
otherwise defined by Section 17402(a)(18.7). 


(nnn) “Source Separated Green Container Organic Waste” means Source Separated Organic 
Waste that can be placed in a Green Container that is specifically intended for the separate 
collection of Organic Waste by the generator, excluding Source Separated Blue Container 
Organic Waste, carpets, Non-Compostable Paper, and textiles.  


(ooo) “Source Separated Recyclable Materials” means Source Separated Non-Organic 
Recyclables and Source Separated Blue Container Organic Waste.  


(ppp) “State” means the State of California.  


(qqq) “Supermarket” means a full-line, self-service retail store with gross annual sales of two 
million dollars ($2,000,000), or more, and which sells a line of dry grocery, canned goods, 
or nonfood items and some perishable items, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 
18982(a)(71). 


(rrr) “Tier One Commercial Edible Food Generator” means a Commercial Edible Food 
Generator that is one of the following: 


(1) Supermarket. 


(2) Grocery Store with a total facility size equal to or greater than 10,000 square feet. 


(3) Food Service Provider. 


(4) Food Distributor. 


(5) Wholesale Food Vendor. 


149 of 182







10 


 


If the definition in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(73) of Tier One Commercial Edible Food 
Generator differs from this definition, the definition in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(73) shall 
apply to this ordinance. 


(sss) “Tier Two Commercial Edible Food Generator” means a Commercial Edible Food 
Generator that is one of the following: 


(1) Restaurant with 250 or more seats, or a total facility size equal to or greater than 
5,000 square feet. 


(2) Hotel with an on-site Food Facility and 200 or more rooms. 


(3) Health facility with an on-site Food Facility and 100 or more beds. 


(4) Large Venue. 


(5) Large Event. 


(6) A State agency with a cafeteria with 250 or more seats or total cafeteria facility size 
equal to or greater than 5,000 square feet. 


(7) A Local Education Agency facility with an on-site Food Facility. 


If the definition in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(74) of Tier Two Commercial Edible Food 
Generator differs from this definition, the definition in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(74) shall 
apply to this ordinance. 


(ttt) “Uncontainerized Green Waste and Yard Waste Collection Service” or “Uncontainerized 
Service” means a collection service that collects green waste and yard waste that is placed 
in a pile or bagged for collection on the street in front of a generator’s house or place of 
business for collection and transport to a facility that recovers Source Separated Organic 
Waste, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 189852(a)(75).   


(uuu) “Wholesale Food Vendor” means a business or establishment engaged in the merchant 
wholesale distribution of food, where food (including fruits and vegetables) is received, 
shipped, stored, prepared for distribution to a retailer, warehouse, distributor, or other 
destination, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 189852(a)(76). 


 
8.10.030  Requirements for Single-Family Generators  
 
Except Single-Family generators that meet the Self-Hauler requirements in Section 8.10.090 of 
this Ordinance, Single-Family Organic Waste Generators shall comply with the following 
requirements:   
 
(a) Shall subscribe to Jurisdiction’s Organic Waste collection services for all Organic Waste 
generated as described below in Subsection (b). Jurisdiction shall have the right to review the 
number and size of a generator’s containers to evaluate adequacy of capacity provided for each 


150 of 182







11 


 


type of collection service for proper separation of materials and containment of materials; and, 
Single-Family generators shall adjust its service level for its collection services as requested by 
the Jurisdiction. Generators may additionally manage their Organic Waste by preventing or 
reducing their Organic Waste, managing Organic Waste on site, and/or using a Community 
Composting site pursuant to 14 CCR Section 18984.9(c).  
 
(b) Shall participate in the Jurisdiction’s Organic Waste collection service(s) by placing 


designated materials in designated containers as described below, and shall not place 
Prohibited Container Contaminants in collection containers. Generator shall place Source 
Separated Green Container Organic Waste, including Food Waste, in the Green Container; 
Source Separated Recyclable Materials in the Blue Container; and Gray Container Waste 
in the Gray Container.  Generators shall not place materials designated for the Gray 
Container into the Green Container or Blue Container. 


 
8.10.040 Requirements for Commercial Businesses   


Generators that are Commercial Businesses, including Multi-Family Residential Dwellings, shall:  


(a) Subscribe to Jurisdiction’s collection services and comply with requirements of those 
services as described below in subsection (b), except Commercial Businesses that meet the 
Self-Hauler requirements in Section 8.10.090 of this Ordinance. Jurisdiction shall have the 
right to review the number and size of a generator’s containers and frequency of collection 
to evaluate adequacy of capacity provided for each type of collection service for proper 
separation of materials and containment of materials; and, Commercial Businesses shall 
adjust their service level for their collection services as requested by the Jurisdiction.  


(b) Except Commercial Businesses that meet the Self-Hauler requirements in Section 8.10.090  
of this Ordinance, participate in the Jurisdiction’s Organic Waste collection service(s) by 
placing designated materials in designated containers as described below. Generator shall 
place Source Separated Green Container Organic Waste, including Food Waste, in the 
Green Container; Source Separated Recyclable Materials in the Blue Container; and Gray 
Container Waste in the Gray Container. Generator shall not place materials designated for 
the Gray Container into the Green Container or Blue Container. 


(c) Supply and allow access to adequate number, size and location of collection containers 
with sufficient labels or colors (conforming with subsection (d)(1) and (d)(2) below) for 
employees, contractors, tenants, and customers, consistent with Jurisdiction’s Blue 
Container, Green Container, and Gray Container collection service or, if self-hauling, per 
the Commercial Businesses’ instructions to support its compliance with its self-haul 
program, in accordance with Section 8.10.090.   


(d) Excluding Multi-Family Residential Dwellings, provide containers for the collection of 
Source Separated Green Container Organic Waste and Source Separated Recyclable 
Materials in all indoor and outdoor areas where disposal containers are provided for 
customers, for materials generated by that business. Such containers do not need to be 
provided in restrooms. If a Commercial Business does not generate any of the materials 


151 of 182







12 


 


that would be collected in one type of container, then the business does not have to provide 
that particular container in all areas where disposal containers are provided for customers. 
Pursuant to 14 CCR Section 18984.9(b), the containers provided by the business shall have 
either:  


(1) A body or lid that conforms with the container colors provided through the 
collection service provided by Jurisdiction, with either lids conforming to the color 
requirements or bodies conforming to the color requirements or both lids and bodies 
conforming to color requirements. A Commercial Business is not required to 
replace functional containers, including containers purchased prior to January 1, 
2022, that do not comply with the requirements of the subsection prior to the end 
of the useful life of those containers, or prior to January 1, 2036, whichever comes 
first.  


(2) Container labels that include language or graphic images, or both, indicating the 
primary material accepted and the primary materials prohibited in that container, or 
containers with imprinted text or graphic images that indicate the primary materials 
accepted and primary materials prohibited in the container. Pursuant 14 CCR 
Section 18984.8, the container labeling requirements are required on new 
containers commencing January 1, 2022. 


(e) Multi-Family Residential Dwellings are not required to comply with container placement 
requirements or labeling requirement in subsection (d) pursuant to 14 CCR Section 
18984.9(b).   


(f) To the extent practical through education, training, Inspection, and/or other measures, 
excluding Multi-Family Residential Dwellings, prohibit employees from placing materials 
in a container not designated for those materials per the Jurisdiction’s Blue Container, 
Green Container, and Gray Container collection service or, if self-hauling, per the 
Commercial Businesses’ instructions to support its compliance with its self-haul program, 
in accordance with Section 8.10.090.   


(g) Excluding Multi-Family Residential Dwellings, periodically inspect Blue Containers, 
Green Containers, and Gray Containers for contamination and inform employees if 
containers are contaminated and of the requirements to keep contaminants out of those 
containers pursuant to 14 CCR Section 18984.9(b)(3).  


(h) Annually provide information to employees, contractors, tenants, and customers about 
Organic Waste Recovery requirements and about proper sorting of Source Separated Green 
Container Organic Waste and Souce Separated Recyclable Materials.  


(i) Provide education information before or within fourteen (14) days of occupation of the 
premises to new tenants that describes requirements to keep Souce Separated Green 
Container Organic Waste and Source Separated Recyclable Materials separate from Gray 
Container Waste (when applicable) and the location of containers and the rules governing 
their use at each property.  


152 of 182







13 


 


(j) Provide or arrange access for Jurisdiction or its agent to their properties during all 
Inspections conducted in accordance with this ordinance to confirm compliance with the 
requirements of this ordinance. 


(k) Accommodate and cooperate with any Remote Monitoring program established by a the 
City or its Designee for Inspection of the types of materials placed in containers for 
Prohibited Container Contaminants to evaluate generator’s compliance with this ordinance.  


(l) At Commercial Business’s option and subject to any approval required from the 
Jurisdiction, implement a Remote Monitoring program for Inspection of the contents of its 
Blue Container, Green Containers, and Gray Containers for the purpose of monitoring the 
contents of containers to determine appropriate levels of service and to identify Prohibited 
Container Contaminants. Generators may install Remote Monitoring devices on or in the 
Blue Container, Green Containers, and Gray Containers subject to written notification to 
or approval by the Jurisdiction or its Designee.  


(m) If a Commercial Business wants to self haul, meet the Self-Hauler requirements in Section 
8.10.090 of this ordinance.  


(n) Nothing in this Section prohibits a generator from preventing or reducing waste generation, 
managing Organic Waste on site, or using a Community Composting site pursuant to 14 
CCR Section 18984.9(c). 


(o) Commercial Businesses that are Tier One or Tier Two Commercial Edible Food Generators 
shall comply with Food Recovery requirements, pursuant to Section 8.10.060. 


 
8.10.050 Waivers for Generators   
 
(a) De Minimis Waivers. A Jurisdiction may waive a Commercial Business’ obligation 


(including Multi-Family Residential Dwellings) to comply with some or all of the Organic 
Waste requirements of this ordinance if the Commercial Business provides documentation 
that the business generates below a certain amount of Organic Waste material as described 
in subsection (a)(2) below. Commercial Businesses requesting a de minimis waiver shall: 


 
(1) Submit an application specifying the services that they are requesting a waiver from 


and provide documentation as noted in subsection (a)(2) below.  
 
(2) Provide documentation that either: 
 


(A) The Commercial Business’ total Solid Waste collection service is two cubic 
yards or more per week and Organic Waste subject to collection in a Blue 
Container or Green Container comprises less than 20 gallons per week per 
applicable container of the business’ total waste; or, 


(B) The Commercial Business’ total Solid Waste collection service is less than 
two cubic yards per week and Organic Waste subject to collection in a Blue 


153 of 182







14 


 


Container or Green Container comprises less than 10 gallons per week per 
applicable container of the business’ total waste. 


(C) For the purposes of subsections (A) and (B) above, total Solid Waste shall 
be the sum of weekly Gray Container Waste, Blue Container Waste, and 
Green Container Waste measured in cubic yards. 


 
(3) Notify Jurisdiction if circumstances change such that Commercial Business’s 


Organic Waste exceeds threshold required for waiver, in which case waiver will be 
rescinded. 


 
(4) If the waiver is granted, provide written verification of continued eligibility for de 


minimis waiver to City every 5 years. 
 


(b) Physical Space Waivers Jurisdiction may waive a Commercial Business’ or property 
owner’s obligations (including Multi-Family Residential Dwellings) to comply with some 
or all of the recyclable materials and/or Organic Waste collection service requirements if 
the Jurisdiction has evidence from its own staff, a hauler, licensed architect, or licensed 
engineer demonstrating that the premises lacks adequate space for the collection containers 
required for compliance with the Organic Waste collection requirements of this ordinance. 
A Commercial Business or property owner may request a physical space waiver through 
the following process:  
 
(1) Submit an application form specifying the type(s) of collection services for which 


they are requesting a compliance waiver. 
(2) Provide documentation that the premises lacks adequate space for Blue Containers 


and/or Green Containers including documentation from its hauler, licensed 
architect, licensed engineer, or other person authorized by the City. 


(3) If the waiver is granted, provide written verification to the City of continued 
eligibility for a physical space waiver every five years.  


(c) Collection Frequency Waiver. Jurisdiction, at its discretion and in accordance with 14 CCR 
Section 18984.11(a)(3), may allow the owner or tenant of any residence, premises, business 
establishment or industry that subscribes to the Jurisdiction’s three-container Organic 
Waste collection service to arrange for the collection of their Blue Container, Gray 
Container, or both once every fourteen days, rather than once per week.  


 
(d) The City Manager, or his or her designee, shall be responsible for the review and approval 


of waivers pursuant to this Section. The City Manager may adopt guidelines for the review 
and approval or such waivers. 


 
8.10.060 Requirements for Commercial Edible Food Generators    


(a) Tier One Commercial Edible Food Generators must comply with the requirements of this 
Section commencing January 1, 2022, and Tier Two Commercial Edible Food Generators 
must comply commencing January 1, 2024, pursuant to 14 CCR Section 18991.3.  


154 of 182







15 


 


(b) Large Venue or Large Event operators not providing food services, but allowing for food 
to be provided by others, shall require Food Facilities operating at the Large Venue or 
Large Event to comply with the requirements of this Section, commencing January 1, 2024. 


(c) Commercial Edible Food Generators shall comply with the following requirements:  


(1) Arrange to recover the maximum amount of Edible Food that would otherwise be 
disposed. 


(2) Contract with, or enter into a written agreement with Food Recovery Organizations 
or Food Recovery Services for: (i) the collection of Edible Food for Food Recovery; 
or, (ii) acceptance of the Edible Food that the Commercial Edible Food Generator 
self-hauls to the Food Recovery Organization for Food Recovery.  


(3) Shall not intentionally spoil Edible Food that is capable of being recovered by a 
Food Recovery Organization or a Food Recovery Service. 


(4) Allow Jurisdiction’s designated enforcement entity or designated third party 
enforcement entity to access the premises and review records pursuant to 14 CCR 
Section 18991.4.  


(5) Keep records that include the following information, or as otherwise specified in 
14 CCR Section 18991.4: 


(A) A list of each Food Recovery Service or organization that collects or 
receives its Edible Food pursuant to a contract or written agreement 
established under 14 CCR Section 18991.3(b). 


(B) A copy of all contracts or written agreements established under 14 CCR 
Section 18991.3(b). 


(C) A record of the following information for each of those Food Recovery 
Services or Food Recovery Organizations: 


(i) The name, address and contact information of the Food Recovery 
Service or Food Recovery Organization. 


(ii) The types of food that will be collected by or self-hauled to the Food 
Recovery Service or Food Recovery Organization. 


(iii) The established frequency that food will be collected or self-hauled. 


(iv) The quantity of food, measured in pounds recovered per month, 
collected or self-hauled to a Food Recovery Service or Food 
Recovery Organization for Food Recovery.  


155 of 182







16 


 


(6) Tier One Commercial Edible Food Generators and Tier Two Commercial Edible 
Food Generators shall provide, upon request, a Food Recovery report to the City 
that includes the information in Section (c)(5). Entities shall provide the requested 
information within 60 days of the request.  


(d) Nothing in this ordinance shall be construed to limit or conflict with the protections 
provided by the California Good Samaritan Food Donation Act of 2017, the Federal Good 
Samaritan Act, or share table and school food donation guidance pursuant to Senate Bill 
557 of 2017 (approved by the Governor of the State of California on September 25, 2017, 
which added Article 13 [commencing with Section 49580] to Chapter 9 of Part 27 of 
Division 4 of Title 2 of the Education Code, and to amend Section 114079 of the Health 
and Safety Code, relating to food safety, as amended, supplemented, superseded and 
replaced from time to time). 


(e) Nothing in this Ordinance prohibits a Commercial Edible Food Generator from donating 
Edible Food directly to end recipients for consumption, pursuant to Health and Safety Code 
Section 114432(a). 


 
8.10.060 Requirements for Food Recovery Organizations and Services   
 
(a) Food Recovery Services collecting or receiving Edible Food directly from Commercial 


Edible Food Generators, via a contract or written agreement established under 14 CCR 
Section 18991.3(b), shall maintain the following records, or as otherwise specified by 14 
CCR Section 18991.5(a)(1): 
(1) The name, address, and contact information for each Commercial Edible Food 


Generator from which the service collects Edible Food. 


(2) The quantity in pounds of Edible Food collected from each Commercial Edible 
Food Generator per month. 


(3) The quantity in pounds of Edible Food transported to each Food Recovery 
Organization per month. 


(4) The name, address, and contact information for each Food Recovery Organization 
that the Food Recovery Service transports Edible Food to for Food Recovery. 


(b) Food Recovery Organizations collecting or receiving Edible Food directly from 
Commercial Edible Food Generators, via a contract or written agreement established under 
14 CCR Section 18991.3(b), shall maintain the following records, or as otherwise specified 
by 14 CCR Section 18991.5(a)(2): 


(1) The name, address, and contact information for each Commercial Edible Food 
Generator from which the organization receives Edible Food. 


(2) The quantity in pounds of Edible Food received from each Commercial Edible 
Food Generator per month. 


156 of 182







17 


 


(3) The name, address, and contact information for each Food Recovery Service that 
the organization receives Edible Food from for Food Recovery. 


(c) (Food Recovery Organizations and Food Recovery Services shall inform generators about 
California and Federal Good Samaritan Food Donation Act protection in written 
communications, such as in their contract or agreement established under 14 CCR Section 
18991.3(b).  


(d) Food Recovery Organizations and Food Recovery Services that have their primary address 
physically located in the Jurisdiction and contract with or have written agreements with 
one or more Commercial Edible Food Generators pursuant to 14 CCR Section 18991.3(b) 
shall report to the Jurisdiction it is located in the total pounds of Edible Food recovered in 
the previous calendar year from the Tier One and Tier Two Commercial Edible Food 
Generators they have established a contract or written agreement with pursuant to 14 CCR 
Section 18991.3(b) no later than March 31, 2023, and no later than every March 31 
thereafter, submit a report covering the period of January 1 to December 31 of the previous 
calendar year.  


(e) Food Recovery Capacity Planning. In order to support Edible Food Recovery capacity 
planning assessments or other studies, Food Recovery Services and Food Recovery 
Organizations operating in the Jurisdiction shall provide, upon request, information and 
consultation to the Jurisdiction regarding existing, or proposed new or expanded, Food 
Recovery capacity that could be accessed by the Jurisdiction and its Commercial Edible 
Food Generators. A Food Recovery Service or Food Recovery Organization contacted by 
the Jurisdiction shall respond to such request for information within 60 days, unless a 
shorter timeframe is otherwise specified by the Jurisdiction. 


 
8.10.080 Requirement for Haulers and Facility Operators   
 
(a) Requirements for Haulers  


(1) Franchised haulers providing residential, Commercial, or industrial Organic Waste 
collection services to generators within the Jurisdiction’s boundaries shall meet the 
following requirements and standards as a condition of approval of a contract, 
agreement, or other authorization with the Jurisdiction to collect Organic Waste: 


(A) Through written notice to the Jurisdiction annually on or before March 31, 
identify the facilities to which they will transport Organic Waste including 
facilities for Source Separated Recyclable Materials, Source Separated 
Green Container Organic Waste, and Mixed Waste.  


(B) Transport Source Separated Recyclable Materials, Source Separated Green 
Container Organic Waste, and Mixed Waste to a facility, operation, activity, 
or property that recovers Organic Waste as defined in 14 CCR, Division 7, 
Chapter 12, Article 2.  


157 of 182







18 


 


(C) Obtain approval from the Jurisdiction to haul Organic Waste, unless it is 
transporting Source Separated Organic Waste to a Community Composting 
site or lawfully transporting C&D in a manner that complies with 14 CCR 
Section 18989.1, this ordinance, and all other applicable laws, regulations 
and rules. 


(2) Within the boundaries of the City, a franchised hauler collecting Organic Waste 
shall:  


(A)  Up to four times per year, provide reports to the City on Commercial 
Business account information and service levels in a form to be specified 
by the City.  


(B) Assist in the dissemination of SB 1383 educational materials to Single-
Family and Commercial Business accounts. 


(C) At least annually and during new staff on-boarding, train franchised 
haulers’s customer service representatives and account managers/recycling 
coordinators serving Organic Waste Generators in the City on the generator 
requirements set forth in this Ordinance, SB 1383 Regulations as they may 
be revised from time to time, and on resources available to assist in 
compliance. Trainings may be in a virtual or in-person format.  


(D) Where a franchised hauler provides Landfill Container collection service, 
notify Single-Family and Commercial Business accounts that (i) they must 
also be subscribed to collection services to comply with this Ordinance, 
except if an applicable waiver has been granted for the account, or if an 
applicable waiver application has been submitted and is under review for 
the account and (ii) that the franchised hauler will inform the City if the 
account fails to subscribe to a required collection service offered by the 
franchised hauler.  


(F) Conduct or comply with Container Contamination minimization efforts 
such as Route Reviews or waste evaluations. Inform generators when 
Container Contamination is observed by the franchised hauler.  


(G) If requested by the City, assist generators with verification of physical space 
constraints when generator submits an application for a physical space 
waiver.  


(H) Provide Commercial Business accounts with interactive  assistance such as 
employee trainings, in a virtual or in-person format, when Recycling 
Container collection service or Composting Container collection service is 
added, or upon request.  


(b) Requirements for Facility Operators and Community Composting Operations 


158 of 182







19 


 


(1) Owners of facilities, operations, and activities that recover Organic Waste, 
including, but not limited to, Compost facilities, in-vessel digestion facilities, and 
publicly-owned treatment works shall, upon Jurisdiction request, provide 
information regarding available and potential new or expanded capacity at their 
facilities, operations, and activities, including information about throughput and 
permitted capacity necessary for planning purposes. Entities contacted by the 
Jurisdiction shall respond within 60 days.  


(2) Community Composting operators, upon Jurisdiction request, shall provide 
information to the Jurisdiction to support Organic Waste capacity planning, 
including, but not limited to, an estimate of the amount of Organic Waste 
anticipated to be handled at the Community Composting operation. Entities 
contacted by the Jurisdiction shall respond within 60 days. 


 
8.10.090 Self-Hauler Requirements   
 
(a) Self-Haulers shall source separate all recyclable materials and Organic Waste (materials 


that Jurisdiction otherwise requires generators to separate for collection in the 
Jurisdiction’s organics and recycling collection program) generated on-site from Solid 
Waste in a manner consistent with 14 CCR Sections 18984.1 and 18984.2, or shall haul 
Organic Waste to a High Diversion Organic Waste Processing Facility as specified in 14 
CCR Section 18984.3. 


(b) Self-Haulers shall haul their Source Separated Recyclable Materials to a facility that 
recovers those materials; and haul their Source Separated Green Container Organic Waste 
to a Solid Waste facility, operation, activity, or property that processes or recovers Source 
Separated Organic Waste. Alternatively, Self-Haulers may haul Organic Waste to a High 
Diversion Organic Waste Processing Facility. 


(c) Self-Haulers that are Commercial Businesses (including Multi-Family Residential 
Dwellings) shall keep a record of the amount of Organic Waste delivered to each Solid 
Waste facility, operation, activity, or property that processes or recovers Organic Waste; 
this record shall be subject to Inspection by the Jurisdiction. The records shall include the 
following information: 


(1) Delivery receipts and weight tickets from the entity accepting the waste. 


(2) The amount of material in cubic yards or tons transported by the generator to each 
entity. 


(3) If the material is transported to an entity that does not have scales on-site, or 
employs scales incapable of weighing the Self-Hauler’s vehicle in a manner that 
allows it to determine the weight of materials received, the Self-Hauler is not 
required to record the weight of material but shall keep a record of the entities that 
received the Organic Waste.  


159 of 182







20 


 


(d) Self-Haulers that are Commercial Businesses (including Multi-Family Self-Haulers) shall 
provide information collected in Section 8.10.090(c) to Jurisdiction if requested.   


(e) A residential Organic Waste Generator that self hauls Organic Waste is not required to 
record or report information in Section 8.10.090(c) and (d).  


 
8.10.100  Compliance with CalGreen Recycling Requirements  
   
Persons applying for a permit from the Jurisdiction for new construction and building additions 
and alternations shall comply with all required components of the California Green Building 
Standards Code, 24 CCR, Part 11, known as CALGreen, which have been adopted by the City 
pursuant to Chapter 15.08 of this Code. 
 
8.10.110 Model Water Efficient Landscaping Ordinance    
 
All landscape projects in the City shall comply with Chapter 15.54, Water Efficient Landscaping, 
of this Code as applicable. Chapter 15.54 codifies the Model Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance 
(MWELO), 23 CCR, Division 2, Chapter 2.7.  
 
8.10.120 Procurement Requirements    
 
(a) All vendors providing Paper Products and Printing and Writing Paper shall: 


(1) If fitness and quality are equal, provide Recycled-Content Paper Products and 
Recycled-Content Printing and Writing Paper that consists of at least 30 percent, 
by fiber weight, postconsumer fiber instead of non-recycled products whenever 
recycled Paper Products and Printing and Writing Paper are available at the same 
or lesser total cost than non-recycled items.  


(2) Provide Paper Products and Printing and Writing Paper that meet Federal Trade 
Commission recyclability standard as defined in 16 Code of Federal Regulations 
(CFR) Section 260.12. 


(b) Mulch Standards. Any mulch sold or otherwise provided to City in connection with 
City’s compliance with the State of California’s Recovered Organic Waste Product Procurement 
Target requirements set forth in section 18993.1 of Title 14 of the California Code of 
Regulations shall: 


 
(1) Meet or exceed the physical contamination, maximum metal concentration, and 


pathogen density standards for land application specified in subsections 
17852(a)(24.5)(A)1. through 3 of Title 14 of the California Code of Regulations; 
and 


(2) Be produced at one of more of the following: 


160 of 182







21 


 


(A) A compostable material handling operation or facility as defined in section 
17852(a)(12) of Title 14 of the California Code of Regulations, other than 
a chipping and grinding operation or facility as defined in Section 
17852(a)(10) of Title 14 of the California Code of Regulations, that is 
permitted or authorized under this division; or 


(B) A transfer/processing facility or transfer/processing operation as defined in 
Sections 17402(a)(30) and (31) of Title 14 of the California Code of 
Regulations, respectively, that is permitted or authorized under this 
division; or 


(C) A solid waste landfill as defined in Public Resources Code Section 40195.1 that is 
permitted under Division 2 of Title 27 of the California Code of Regulations. 


8.10.130 Inspections and Investigations     
 
(a) Jurisdiction representatives and/or its designated entity, including Designees are authorized 


to conduct Inspections and investigations, at random or otherwise, of any collection 
container, collection vehicle loads, or transfer, processing, or disposal facility for materials 
collected from generators, or Source Separated materials to confirm compliance with this 
ordinance by Organic Waste Generators, Commercial Businesses (including Multi-Family 
Residential Dwellings), property owners, Commercial Edible Food Generators, haulers, 
Self-Haulers, Food Recovery Services, and Food Recovery Organizations, subject to 
applicable laws. This Section does not allow Jurisdiction to enter the interior of a private 
residential property for Inspection. For the purposes of inspecting Commercial Business 
containers for compliance with this ordinance, Jurisdiction may conduct container 
Inspections for Prohibited Container Contaminants using Remote Monitoring, and 
Commercial Businesses shall accommodate and cooperate with the Remote Monitoring 
pursuant to this ordinance.  


(b) A person or entity subject to the requirements of this Ordinance shall provide or arrange 
for access during all Inspections (with the exception of residential property interiors) and 
shall cooperate with the Jurisdiction’s employee or its designated entity/Designee during 
such Inspections and investigations.  Such Inspections and investigations may include 
confirmation of proper placement of materials in containers, Edible Food Recovery 
activities, records, or any other requirement of this ordinance described herein.  Failure to 
provide or arrange for: (i) access to an entity’s premises; (ii) installation and operation of 
Remote Monitoring equipment (optional); or (ii) access to records for any Inspection or 
investigation is a violation of this ordinance and may result in penalties described.   


(c) Any records obtained by a Jurisdiction during its Inspections, Remote Monitoring, and 
other reviews shall be subject to the requirements and applicable disclosure exemptions of 
the Public Records Act as set forth in Government Code Section 6250 et seq.  


161 of 182







22 


 


(d) Jurisdiction representatives, its designated entity, and/or Designee are authorized to 
conduct any Inspections, Remote Monitoring, or other investigations as reasonably 
necessary to further the goals of this ordinance, subject to applicable laws.   


(e) Jurisdiction shall receive written complaints from persons regarding an entity that may be 
potentially non-compliant with SB 1383 Regulations, including receipt of anonymous 
complaints.  
 


8.10.140 Enforcement    
 
(a) Violation of any provision of this ordinance shall constitute grounds for issuance of a 


Notice of Violation and assessment of a fine by the Enforcement Official. Enforcement 
Actions under this ordinance are issuance of an administrative citation and assessment of 
a fine. The Jurisdiction’s procedures on imposition of administrative fines are hereby 
incorporated in their entirety, as modified from time to time, and shall govern the 
imposition, enforcement, collection, and review of administrative citations issued to 
enforce this ordinance and any rule or regulation adopted pursuant to this ordinance, except 
as otherwise indicated in this ordinance.   


 
(b) Other remedies allowed by law may be used, including civil action or prosecution as 


misdemeanor or infraction. Jurisdiction may pursue civil actions in the California courts to 
seek recovery of unpaid administrative citations.  Jurisdiction may choose to delay court 
action until such time as a sufficiently large number of violations, or cumulative size of 
violations exist such that court action is a reasonable use of Jurisdiction staff and resources.  


(c) Except as otherwise specified herein, the procedures for issuance of the Notice of Violation 
and the assessment of fine shall be those procedures set forth in Chapter 8.25.  


(d) Process for Enforcement 


(1) The City and/or its Designee will monitor compliance with the ordinance randomly 
and through Compliance Reviews, Route Reviews, investigation of complaints, and 
an Inspection program (that may include Remote Monitoring).   


(2) Jurisdiction may issue an official notification to notify regulated entities of its 
obligations under the ordinance.  


(4) Jurisdiction shall issue a Notice of Violation requiring compliance within 60 days 
of issuance of the notice.    


(5) Absent compliance by the respondent within the deadline set forth in the Notice of 
Violation, Jurisdiction shall commence an action to impose  penalties, via an 
administrative citation and fine, pursuant to the City’s standard procedures.  


(e) Penalty Amounts for Types of Violations 


The penalty levels are as follows:  


162 of 182







23 


 


(1) For a first violation, the amount of the penalty shall be $50 to $100 per violation.  


(2) For a second violation, the amount of the penalty shall be $100 to $200 per 
violation. 


(3) For a third or subsequent violation, the amount of the penalty shall be $250 to $500 
per violation.  


(f) Compliance Deadline Extension Considerations 


The Jurisdiction may extend the compliance deadlines set forth in a Notice of Violation 
issued in accordance with this ordinance if it finds that there are extenuating circumstances 
beyond the control of the respondent that make compliance within the deadlines 
impracticable, including the following: 


(1) Acts of God such as earthquakes, wildfires, flooding, and other emergencies or 
natural disasters; 


(2) Delays in obtaining discretionary permits or other government agency approvals; 
or, 


(3) Deficiencies in Organic Waste recycling infrastructure or Edible Food Recovery 
capacity and the Jurisdiction is under a corrective action plan with CalRecycle 
pursuant to 14 CCR Section 18996.2 due to those deficiencies. 


(h) Appeals Process 


Persons receiving an administrative citation containing a penalty for an uncorrected 
violation may request a hearing to appeal the citation.  A hearing will be held only if it is 
requested within the time prescribed and consistent with Jurisdiction’s procedures in the 
Jurisdiction’s codes for appeals of administrative citations. Evidence may be presented at 
the hearing. The Jurisdiction will appoint a hearing officer who shall conduct the hearing 
and issue a final written order.  
  


(i) Education Period for Non-Compliance  


Beginning January 1, 2022 and through December 31, 2023, Jurisdiction will conduct 
Inspections, Remote Monitoring, Route Reviews or waste evaluations, and Compliance 
Reviews, depending upon the type of regulated entity, to determine compliance, and if 
Jurisdiction determines that Organic Waste Generator, Self-Hauler, hauler, Tier One 
Commercial Edible Food Generator, Food Recovery Organization, Food Recovery 
Service, or other entity is not in compliance, it shall provide educational materials to the 
entity describing its obligations under this ordinance and a notice that compliance is 
required starting on January 1, 2022, and that violations may be subject to administrative 
civil penalties starting on January 1, 2024. 
 


(j) Civil Penalties for Non-Compliance 


163 of 182







24 


 


Beginning January 1, 2024, if the Jurisdiction determines that an Organic Waste 
Generator, Self-Hauler, hauler, Tier One or Tier Two Commercial Edible Food 
Generator, Food Recovery Organization, Food Recovery Service, or other entity is not in 
compliance with this ordinance, it shall document the noncompliance or violation, issue a  
Notice of Violation, and take Enforcement Action pursuant to this ordinance, as needed.   


 
(k) Delegation 


 
The City Council may, by resolution, authorize and designate other entities to carry out 
responsibilities under this Chapter, to the extent allowed by applicable law, and no 
amendment of this Chapter shall be required.  
 


3888262.1  


164 of 182







  
 


   
 


 CITY COUNCIL 
 REPORT 10A 
  


 
 
DATE:   OCTOBER 19, 2021 
 
TO:    MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 
 
FROM: ANDREW MURRAY, CITY MANAGER 
  
SUBJECT: RESOLUTION DECLARING A CLIMATE EMERGENCY AND 


DIRECTING STAFF TO TAKE CERTAIN ACTIONS 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a resolution declaring a climate emergency 
and directing staff to complete a greenhouse gas (GHG) inventory and a Climate Action 
Plan (CAP) and present a mid-year budget adjustment to fund these actions. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
At its meeting of September 7, 2021, the City Council received a presentation on City 
activities related to climate change. As noted at that meeting, the State of California has 
set statewide GHG emission reduction goals to mitigate negative impacts of climate 
change. 
 
The California Air Resources Board (CARB) is the State agency responsible for achieving 
these goals, and has implemented a number of statewide programs. However, State-level 
programs alone are not projected to be sufficient to meet all of the State reduction targets. 
The State is hoping and expecting that other organizations, including cities and counties, 
will take their own, additional steps to reduce GHG emissions. 
 
Cities primarily use a CAP or a Climate Change Element of their General Plan to identify 
local GHG sources and identify specific emission-reduction programs and activities. 
CAPs usually contain more detailed implementation steps than do Climate Change 
Elements. 
 
The City’s recent discussion of climate change was prompted in part by the Contra Costa 
County Board of Supervisors’ adoption of a resolution in September 2020 (attached) that 
declared a climate emergency and committed the County to taking a number of actions 
to address climate change. 
 
At the meeting on September 7, 2021, the City Council directed staff to do the following: 
 


165 of 182







City Council Report 
October 19, 2021  2 


• Assess and report out on the status of completion of the General Plan 
Sustainability Element’s goals, policies, and actions; and 


• Prepare a resolution for the City Council’s consideration declaring a climate 
emergency and directing staff to complete a greenhouse gas (GHG) inventory and 
a Climate Action Plan (CAP) and present a mid-year budget adjustment to fund 
these actions. 


 
REVIEW & ANALYSIS 
 
City staff is in the process of assessing the status of completion of the Sustainability 
Element’s goals, policies, and actions. When this assessment is complete, staff will report 
out. 
 
Regarding a City of Pinole resolution, in addition to the Board of Supervisors’ resolution 
mentioned above, the Contra Costa County Climate Leaders (4CL), a regional 
environmental organization, has also created a model resolution regarding climate 
change that it requests that cities adopt, attached. 
 
Based on various models, staff has prepared the attached resolution, for Council’s 
consideration, declaring a climate emergency. The resolution directs staff to complete a 
GHG emission inventory and CAP. 
 
If Council adopts this resolution, staff will present a budget adjustment to fund the GHG 
inventory and CAP, when staff presents other mid-year budget adjustments. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
There is no direct fiscal impact from adopting the proposed resolution.  
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
Attachment A Contra Costa County Board of Supervisors Resolution No. 2020/256 
Attachment B Contra Costa County Climate Leaders (4CL) Template/Model Climate 


Emergency Resolution 
Attachment C City of Pinole Resolution Declaring a Climate Emergency 
 
 
 


166 of 182







THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF CONTRA COSTA COUNTY, CALIFORNIA 
and for Special Districts, Agencies and Authorities Governed by the Board 


Adopted this Resolution on 09/22/2020 by the following vote: 


AYE: 


John Gioia 
Candace Andersen 


LJ Diane Burgis 
Karen Mitchoff 
Federal D. Glover 


NO: [ZJ 
ABSENT: [ZJ 
ABSTAIN:~ 


RECUSE: [LJ 
Resolution No. 2020/256 


ENDORSING THE DECLARATION OF A CLIMATE EMERGENCY IN CONTRA COSTA COUNTY THAT DEMANDS 
ACCELERATED ACTIONS ON THE CLIMATE CRISIS AND CALLS ON LOCAL AND REGIONAL PARTNERS TO 
JOIN TOGETHER TO ADDRESS CLIMATE CHANGE 


RESOLVED, by the Board of Supervisors of the County of Contra Costa, State of California, that: 


WHEREAS, according to the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change (IPCC), increasing emissions of greenhouse gases 
(GHG) will cause global temperatures to rise 1.5 degrees Celsius by as early as 2030; and 


WHEREAS, on June 24, 2019, more than 70 health organizations including the American Medical Association and the 
American Public Health Association declared climate change to be a health emergency and issued a call to action for 
government, business, and civil society leaders to recognize climate change as a health emergency; and 


D.2 


WHEREAS, California's Governor Gavin Newsom in Executive Order N-19-19 has committed state agencies to immediate and 
bold actions that reduce greenhouse gas emissions, curb the impacts from climate change, and develop a Climate Investment 
Framework; and 


WHEREAS, the State of California since 2005 has established the following climate goals and targets: 


• 80% reduction in greenhouse gases below 1990 levels by 2050 (Executive Order S-03-05, 2005) 
• 1990 greenhouse gas emission levels by 2020 (AB 32, 2006) 
e40% reduction in greenhouse gases below 1990 levels by 2030 (SB 32, 2016) 
eNet carbon neutrality by 2045 (Executive Order B-55-18, 2018) 
eProvide 100% of the State's electricity from clean energy sources by 2045 (SB 100, 2018); and 


WHEREAS, the State of California has recognized the need for careful study and planning to decrease demand and supply of 
fossil fuels, while managing the decline in a way that is economically responsible and sustainable; and 


WHEREAS, for Contra Costa County, rising global temperatures will cause sea levels to rise (up to six feet or more by year 
2100 under certain scenarios), contribute to increasingly extreme weather, including intense rainfall, storms, and heat events, and 
heightened risk of wildfires; and 


WHEREAS, the consequences of climate change pose risks to life, safety and critical infrastructure in Contra Costa County and 
throughout the world, and threaten physical, social, and economic well-being; and 


WHEREAS, climate change impacts in Contra Costa County will be most acutely felt by children, seniors, low income 
populations, communities of color, and residents with unstable economic or housing situations; and 


WHEREAS, the Vulnerability Assessment developed for the Envision Contra Costa 2040 General Plan indicates that the most 
vulnerable County residents, including households in poverty, low-income households, and persons experiencing homelessness, 
are more likely to be severely impacted by a changing climate, including flooding, wildfires, extreme heat, and poor air quality; 
and 


ATTACHMENT A


167 of 182







WHEREAS, the Vulnerability Assessment also indicates that there is severe vulnerability in the County's agriculture sector, 
industrial and manufacturing centers, including oil refineries, rangelands, and the Delta due to climate impacts, as well as 
infrastructure including major roads and highways, flood control, parks and open space, railroads and BART, and wastewater 
treatment plants and infrastructure; and 


WHEREAS, fossil fuels are recognized as a primary contributor to the rapidly changing climate; and 


WHEREAS, seven of the ten largest industrial pollution sources in the San Francisco Bay Area are located in Contra Costa 
County; and 


WHEREAS, twenty-five census tracts in Contra Costa County are recognized by the State of California as being in the top 
twenty-five percent of"disadvantaged communities" or "communities of concern" that are disproportionately burdened by 
sources of pollution; and 


WHEREAS, rates of asthma, obesity, and breast, colorectal, lung, and prostate cancer are higher in Contra Costa County than in 
the rest of California, and in some cases, the nation, particularly in census tracts that are located near large industrial facilities; and 


WHEREAS, the world is facing an unprecedented crisis with the COVID-19 pandemic, which has swept across the world 
causing global human tragedy and an historical economic setback, forcing a rebuild of our economy and a need to introduce the 
necessary recovery plans to restore sustainable progress and prosperity to the citizens of Contra Costa; and 


WHEREAS, long-term exposure to air pollution increases vulnerability to experiencing the most severe COVID-19 outcomes, 
further burdening the disproportionately affected communities that traditionally carry the brunt of the negative impacts of climate 
change, particularly in census tracts recognized as disadvantaged communities; and · 


WHEREAS, the Bay Area Air Quality Management District on June 17, 2020, adopted a Resolution Condemning Racism and 
Injustice and Affirming Commitment to Diversity, Equity, Access and Inclusion, which among other things notes that "studies 
have shown that racial discrimination takes a tremendous toll on the physical and mental health of Black people in the U.S. 
Racial discrimination is now recognized as a public health crisis," "These higher death rates are not a random coincidence; but, 
instead, is the result of systemic racism and a consequential lack of social, economic and political opportunities," and "community 
proximity to sources of air pollution is one of these systemic issues," and resolves "We affirm our commitment to fighting for 
racial justice and changing the systems that continue to perpetuate racial disparities, especially as they contribute to 
disproportionate exposure to hazardous air pollution. We vow to use our voice and resources as an ally to the Black community to 
affect the meaningful and measurable changes that are so urgently needed in the Bay Area;" and 


WHEREAS, the COVID-19 crisis could in.ark a turning point in progress on climate change and there will be a need for a 
resilient recovery after the pandemic, and Contra Costa County's capacity to act depends largely on our ability to work together 
in solidarity to build the bridge between fighting COVID-19, biodiversity loss, and climate change; and 


WHEREAS, the County has taken a number of actions to address climate change, some of which include: adopting and 
implementing the 2015 Climate Action Plan; selecting MCE as the electricity provider for unincorporated Contra Costa County, 
in large part because of the higher clean energy content MCE offers; investing in clean energy, efficient building technologies, 
and alternative fuels for County operations; providing opportunities to generate more clean energy in Contra Costa County; 
developing an electric vehicle readiness blueprint; providing energy efficiency programs to County residents; increasing 
composting and recycling in County facilities; and 


WHEREAS, the County is in the process of updating its General Plan, Climate Action Plan, and zoning codes, which provide an 
opportunity to follow the State's guidance outlined in the California Air Resources Board 2017 Climate Change Scoping Plan by 
taking action to strengthen policies for the unincorporated County and County operations to better reflect state policies on land 
use, transportation, energy, natural and working lands, agriculture, conservation, waste management, short-lived climate 
pollutants, and the built environment; and 


WHEREAS, the Climate Action Plan includes goals and specific actions the County will take to address the climate emergency, 
including future policy direction; and 


WHEREAS, County residents in 2019 and 2020 community meetings related to the ongoing update of the County's Climate 
Action Plan and General Plan have expressed interest in having better access to locally grown fresh food; and 


WHEREAS, behavioral changes are important in achieving climate goals and creating communities that are safer and healthier; 
and 


WHEREAS, the current pace of climate actions may still fall short of reducing the projected harm to people and places and 


168 of 182







accelerated actions need to be taken to reduce our GHG emissions and implement solutions to prepare and protect our 
communities; and 


WHEREAS, by declaring a climate emergency, Contra Costa County will join the over 1,000 national, international and local 
jurisdictions, including many in the Bay Area, that have made similar declarations that commit to reducing GHG emissions and 
planning for climate change. 


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Supervisors of the County of Contra Costa declares a climate 
emergency that threatens the long-term economic and social well-being, health, safety, and security of the County, and that urgent 
action by all levels of government is needed to immediately address this climate emergency. 


BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that Contra Costa County supports the State of California's recent goals to reduce greenhouse 
gases by 40% below 1990 levels by 2030 (SB 32, 2016); achieve net carbon neutrality by 2045 (Executive Order B-55-18, 
2018); and provide 100% of the State's electricity from clean energy sources by 2045 (SB 100, 2018); and intends to take actions 
to help achieve these goals. 


BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that Contra Costa County establish an interdepartmental task force of all Department heads, or 
their senior deputies, that will focus on urgently implementing the County's Climate Action Plan - as currently adopted and as it 
may be amended by the Board - and identifying additional actions, policies, and programs the County can undertake to reduce 
and adapt to the impacts of a changing climate. This task force should report to the Board of Supervisors through the County 
Sustamability Commission and the Board's Sustainability Committee on a semi-annual basis starting in March 2021. Reports to 
the Board of Supervisors shall be discussion items for the Board. 


BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of Supervisors and the County Sustainability Commission seek input from the 
community (with a special focus on highly impacted Environmental Justice communities), workers (especially impacted 
workers), and business/industry to help the County anticipate and plan for an economy that is less dependent on fossil fuels, 
helps plan for a "Just Transition" away from a fossil-fuel dependent economy, and considers how the County's recovery from 
the COVID-19 pandemic can incorporate the County's climate goals. As the State of California adopts policies and goals for 
reducing pollution and addressing climate change, the County will develop strategies to improve the health, safety, infrastructure, 
job opportunities and revenue opportunities during the shift to a zero emission economy. The County will provide special 
attention to helping develop new opportunities for frontline and impacted communities that realize economic, health and other 
benefits. The Commission will include this topic in its ongoing advice to the Board of Supervisors. 


BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that Contra Costa County should develop policies to require all new construction to be fully 
electric through the adoption of reach building codes. 


BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that Contra Costa County will prioritize the implementation of its Climate Action Plan in order 
to achieve greenhouse gas reductions as soon as possible and will consider equity and social justice issues in the implementation 
of the plan. 


BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that health, socio-economic, and racial equity considerations should be included in 
policymaking and climate solutions at all levels and across all sectors as the consequences of climate change have significant 
impacts on all County residents, especially the young, the elderly, low-income or communities of color, and other vulnerable 
populations. 


BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the General Plan and Climate Action Plan as updated should include land use policies and 
actions that will facilitate greater availability of fresh food to County residents by creating more opportunities for community 
gardens, urban gardens, farmers markets, and related policies and programs. 


BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of Supervisors of Contra Costa County calls for all Contra Costa cities and 
agencies, as well as regional agencies, to also approve a Climate Emergency Declaration to create a unified Countywide voice 
around climate change and strengthen the call for state and federal actions and funds to address the economic, social, public 
health, and national security threats posed by the climate crisis. 


Contact: Jody London, Sustainability Coordinator, 
925-67 4-7871 


I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors on 
the date shown. 


ATTESTED: September 22, 2020 


169 of 182







ATTACHMENT B 
 


TEMPLATE/MODEL CLIMATE EMERGENCY RESOLUTION 
(long version, with citations embedded) 


 
This Model Resolution is based on a close reading of Climate Emergency Resolutions recently passed by 
jurisdictions in Northern California and can be modified to reflect local requirements and conditions. 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE [XX CITY COUNCIL/XX BOARD OF SUPERVISORS]  
DECLARING A CLIMATE EMERGENCY  


AND AN IMMEDIATE MOBILIZATION EFFORT  
TO RESTORE CLIMATE STABILITY 


 
WHEREAS, the effects of global climate disruption are experienced at regional and local levels, 
as droughts, catastrophic fires, and rising sea levels threaten our communities, our economy, 
and future generations; and 


WHEREAS, [City/County], along with other communities across California, already experiences 
the impacts of more extreme weather events, including higher temperatures, the threat of 
increased frequency and magnitude of wildfires and associated air pollution, health outcomes, 
utility and transportation service interruptions, flooding, economic disruption, property loss 
and dislocation, housing shortages, school closures, drought and water shortages, 
compromised agricultural production, food insecurity, and increased demand on public sector 
resources and emergency response capacity; and 


WHEREAS, for the last 650,000 years, planetary levels of carbon dioxide (CO2), a potent and 
long-lived inert greenhouse gas, fluctuated between 180 and 290 parts per million (PPM), but 
never exceeded 300 PPM1 because natural systems maintained equilibrium over hundreds of 
thousands of years; and  


WHEREAS, a stable climate over the last 12,000 years encouraged the development of 
agriculture and human civilization, and that stability is now threatened as a result of human 
activity, in particular the increased use of fossil fuels burned for energy and industrial 
production, and deforestation for increased agricultural production over the last 150 years, 
leading to unsustainable levels of certain greenhouse gases in the Earth’s atmosphere2; and 


WHEREAS, the dramatic increase in the use of fossil fuels since the Industrial Revolution began  
in the 1800s has resulted in a 40% increase in heat-trapping greenhouse gases in the Earth’s 
atmosphere, particularly carbon dioxide (CO2) and methane (CH4), as well as the gases 
associated with refrigeration, causing an unsustainable imbalance in natural systems3; and  


WHEREAS, global atmospheric concentrations of CO2 have increased from 280 PPM in 1870 to 
410 PPM in 2020, and are rising at a rate of 2 to 3 parts per million (PPM) annually, which has 
direct correlation to global warming and climate disruption in the 21st century4; and 


 
1 NASA, Luthi, D., et al., 2008; Etheridge, D.M., et al., 2010; NOAA Mauna Loa CO2 record. 
2 NASA, Sohn, Emily, Vital Signs of the Planet, “Climate Change and the Rise and Fall of Civilizations”, 1.20.14. 
3 NASA, Bates, Sophie, Earth Science News Team, “Direct Observations Confirm That Humans Area Throwing 
Earth’s Energy Budget off Balance”, March 25, 2021 
4 https://www.climate.gov/news-features/understanding-climate/climate-change-atmospheric-carbon-dioxide 


170 of 182







WHEREAS, global annual average concentrations of CO2 have risen at a pace that has 
accelerated over the last 40 years, from ~339 PPM in 1980 to 410 PPM in 2019, an increase of 
more than 20%, and that increase in CO2 correlates to an ~84% of the increase in the heat-
trapping capacity of the atmosphere over the past decade5; and 


WHEREAS, the natural systems and cycles that remained stable over millennia are now 
overburdened by excess greenhouse gas emissions, resulting in a global average temperature 
increase of 1.1°C (1.98°F) above pre-industrial levels6 and, according to the latest projections, is 
trending to reach a 1.5°C (2.7°F) by 20267; and  


WHEREAS, more than a million species may be at risk of future extinction due to climate 
change, and global warming is projected to cause the extinction of over one-third of the Earth’s 
animal and plant species by 2050 if current greenhouse gas emissions trajectories continue — a 
catastrophic loss that would irreversibly reduce biodiversity and alter both ecosystems and 
human societies across the globe8; and 


WHEREAS, to stabilize global temperatures, atmospheric levels of CO2 must be reduced to no 
more than 350 PPM by 2030 if, according to former National Aeronautics and Space 
Administration climatologist Dr. James Hansen, “humanity wishes to preserve a planet similar 
to that on which civilizations developed and to which life on Earth is adapted” and, ideally, 
should be restored to early industrial levels of approximately 300 PPM by mid-century; and 


WHEREAS, the 2015 Paris Agreement, signed by all the nations of the world, has a stated 
objective of “…keeping a global temperature rise this century well below 2° Celsius [3.6°F] above 
pre-industrial levels and to pursue efforts to limit the temperature increase even further to 1.5° 


Celsius [2.7°F]”; and 


WHEREAS, in October, 2018, the United Nations Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change 
(IPCC), the largest collaborative and consensus-based effort among the world’s scientific 
community, issued “Special Report on Global Warming of 1.5 Degrees Celsius”9, which noted 
that our “carbon budget” is equal to 10 years of greenhouse gas emissions, and conservatively 
estimated that global net greenhouse gas emissions must fall by at least 45% below 2010 levels 
no later than 2030, and reach ‘net zero’ emissions no later than 2050 in order to stay below a 
1.5℃ (2.7°F) increase in global temperatures and avoid long-lasting and/or catastrophic and 
irreversible climate impacts; and 


 
5 National Oceanic and Atmospheric Agency, “Atmospheric Carbon Dioxide”, https://www.globalchange.gov 
6 Hanson, James, et al., Global Temperature in 2017 (January 18, 2018) 
7 See, Inter Alia, Henley and King “Trajectories Toward the 1.5°C Paris Target: Modulations by the Interdecadal 
Pacific Oscillation” (2017), Geophys. Res. Lett., 44, 4256-4262, doi  
8 Center for Biological Diversity, “Global Warming and Endangered Species Initiative”; and February 20, 2020, 
Roman-Palacios, Cristian and John Wiens, “Recent Responses to Climate Change Reveal the Drivers of Species 
Extinction and Survival”, National Academy of Sciences of the United States 
9 IPCC, 2018: Summary for Policymakers. In: Global Warming of 1.5°C. An IPCC Special Report on the impacts of 
global warming of 1.5°C above pre-industrial levels and related global greenhouse gas emission pathways, in the 
context of strengthening the global response to the threat of climate change, sustainable development, and efforts 
to eradicate poverty [Masson-Delmotte, V., P. Zhai, H.-O. Pörtner, D. Roberts, J. Skea, P.R. Shukla, A. Pirani, W. 
Moufouma-Okia, C. Péan, R. Pidcock, S. Connors, J.B.R. Matthews, Y. Chen, X. Zhou, M.I. Gomis, E. Lonnoy, T. 
Maycock, M. Tignor, and T. Waterfield (eds.)]. World Meteorological Organization, Geneva, Switzerland, 32 pp. 


171 of 182







WHEREAS, the National Climate and Health Assessment of the United States Global Climate 
Change Research Program10 identified climate change as a significant threat to the health of the 
people of the United States: increased temperature-related deaths and illness, air quality 
impacts, extreme weather events, vector-borne diseases, waterborne illness, food safety, 
nutrition, mental health and well-being concerns; and  


WHEREAS, in 2018, the State of California’s “4th Climate Change Assessment”11 noted that the 
2012-2016 drought led to the greatest moisture deficit in the last 1,200 years and the lowest 
snowpack levels in 500 years, and warned that extreme weather and climate-related events are 
worsening, predicting increased drought cycles and heat waves, resulting in a three-fold 
increase in intensity and magnitude of wildfires, diminished water supply and snow pack, 
increased flooding, impacts to agriculture, as well as substantial harm to human health, and 
negative impacts to the economy; and 


WHEREAS, a study conducted by UC Berkeley found that California can expect to lose 1 percent 
of its annual economic output for every 1.0°C (1.8°F) increase in average temperature, which 
translates to an annual loss of $26 billion to the state’s gross domestic product12; and 


WHEREAS, the 2017 state report, “Rising Seas in California”13, conservatively estimated 1.0 - 
3.4 feet of sea level rise in the San Francisco Bay by 2100, with the potential of up to 10 feet of 
sea level rise in the San Francisco Bay by 2100, a scenario consistent with rapid Antarctic ice 
sheet mass loss that would be catastrophic to the communities, businesses, and economy of 
the Bay Area, every other coastal community, and the State of California; and 


WHEREAS, to reach zero greenhouse gas emissions goals across all sectors, and rapidly 
drawdown or remove “legacy” greenhouse gases from the atmosphere, requires the adoption 
of 21st century climate solutions at every level of government, and across all sectors of 
business, industry, and community in order to reverse global warming and restore a safe and 
stable climate; and 


WHEREAS, climate change has significant impacts on all community members, but 
disproportionately impacts those who are most vulnerable: the young, the disabled, the elderly, 
low-income, and disadvantaged communities, and therefore health, socio-economic, and racial 
equity must be included in policy considerations and the implementation of climate solutions at 
all levels and across all sectors; and 


WHEREAS, the [City/County] has previously enacted proactive climate measures, including: 
 


• Adoption of the following climate-related resolutions: 


 
10 USGCRP, 2016: The Impacts of Climate Change on Human Health in the United States: A Scientific Assessment. 
Crimmins, A., J. Balbus, J.L. Gamble, C.B. Beard, J.E. Bell, D. Dodgen, R.J. Eisen, N. Fann, M.D. Hawkins, S.C. Herring, 
L. Jantarasami, D.M. Mills, S. Saha, M.C. Sarofim, J. Trtanj, and L. Ziska, Eds. U.S. Global Change Research Program, 
Washington, DC, 312 pp. http://dx.doi.org/10.7930/J0R49NQX  
11 Ackerly, David, Andrew Jones, Mark Stacey, Bruce Riordan. (University of California, Berkeley). 2018. “San 
Francisco Bay Area Summary Report”. California’s Fourth Climate Change Assessment. Publication number: CCCA4-
SUM-2018-005 
12 “Estimating Economic Damage from Climate Change in the United States”, Science Magazine, June 30, 2017 
13 Griggs, G, Árvai, J, Cayan, D, DeConto, R, Fox, J, Fricker, HA, Kopp, RE, Tebaldi, C, Whiteman, EA (California Ocean 
Protection Council Science Advisory Team Working Group). Rising Seas in California: An Update on Sea-Level Rise 
Science. California Ocean Science Trust, April 2017.  


172 of 182







o List 
 


• Implemented the following climate-related programs and policies: 
o List  


WHEREAS, while [City/County] supports the State of California's measures to reduce 
greenhouse gas emissions14, there is consensus among climate scientists that the State’s 
emission reduction goals and timeline targets are woefully inadequate given data that indicates 
rapidly accelerating global warming beyond earlier predictive modeling, requiring that more 
aggressive efforts must be initiated at the local and regional levels to avoid the worst 
consequences of a warming planet; and  


WHEREAS, [City/County] recognizes and acknowledges that the impacts of climate change pose 
an existential threat to our city/county and the region, now and increasingly in the future, as 
well as the state, our nation, and all life on the planet. 


 


NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, [City/County] declares a climate emergency and joins the 
climate mobilization effort to stabilize the earth’s atmosphere, slow and halt global 
temperature increases, and reverse global warming, to ensure a just transition and a 
sustainable, resilient, and healthy future for generations to come; and 


BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, [City/County] adopts this Climate Emergency Resolution as a 
declaration of our commitment to reducing greenhouse gas emissions at speed and scale, 
setting reduction targets and implementation strategies in accordance with the most recent 
science and data available, and revising those targets to reflect changing climate scenarios and 
potential impacts to our community; and 


BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, [City/County] will hereby prioritize climate policies supported by 
commensurate budgets, and the acceleration of measures to achieve net zero emissions by 
2030, based on valid data, current research, and best practices; and 


BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that [City/County] will prioritize the implementation of its Climate 
Action Plan (CAP) to achieve significant greenhouse gas reduction targets, will use the CAP as a 
lens in considering and adopting policies, will review and report annually on implementation 
progress, and will include equity and social justice outcomes in climate policies; and 


BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, [City/County] will pass ordinances to halt the development of all 
new fossil fuel infrastructure, rapidly phase out all fossil fuels and the technologies which rely 
upon them, adopt zero emission vehicle infrastructure measures and low-carbon building 
codes, support regenerative agriculture and measures to draw down carbon from the 
atmosphere, and incentivize and support economic and educational workforce transitions; and  


BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, [City/County] commits to a collaborative approach that includes 
neighboring and regional communities and jurisdictions, businesses, community members, and 
organizations, and further recognizes that partnerships which are diverse, inclusive, and 


 
14 SB 32, 2016: reduce GhG emissions by 40% below 1990 levels by 2030; Executive Order B-55-18, 2018: achieve 
net carbon neutrality by 2045; SB 100, 2018: 100% of the State's electricity from clean energy sources by 2045. 


173 of 182







promote equity are essential to support environmental, economic, and racial justice, and will 
work with all partners to ensure that efforts respect all community members; and 


BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, [City/County] commits to educating residents and businesses about 
the collective impact of using a collaborative approach to implement solutions, to catalyze a 
just transition and urgent climate mobilization effort at the local, regional, and state levels; and  


BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that [City/County] shall establish an interdepartmental task force of 
all Department heads, or their senior deputies, that will focus on urgently implementing the 
County’s Climate Action Plan – as currently adopted and as it may be amended by 
[City/County]. This task force shall report to the [City/County] on a semi-annual basis starting in 
[Month/Year] with a written report that shall identify additional actions, policies, and programs 
the [City/County] can undertake to reduce and adapt to the impacts of a changing climate and 
to meet the Climate Action Goals.   
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that [City/County] shall require every staff report include a section 
similar to "Fiscal Impact" titled "Carbon/Climate Impact". A Carbon/Climate Impact statement is 
an estimate prepared by [City/County] that predicts how the approval of a decision will affect 
(or not affect) the [City/County] greenhouse gas emissions. Like a fiscal Impact statement, staff 
shall assess and address how the decision before the elected body, will increase or decrease 
greenhouse gas emissions and include any mitigation in place or to be put in place to ensure  
they are mitigated to ensure minimal impact.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, [City/County] directs all departments, staff, and commissions to 
identify and prioritize climate solutions, and commits to climate emergency mobilization 
practices that may include, but are not be limited to, strategies, measures, and policies that: 


ENERGY & the BUILT ENVIRONMENT 
o Incentivize and support zero net energy and energy efficiency in retrofits and new 


construction 
o Incentivize and support energy innovations, such as solar+battery storage, microgrids, 


virtual energy and community solar programs, etc. 
o Require replacement of “aged-out” appliances with all-electric models 
o Require 100% Renewable Energy for both municipal and community electricity service 
o Adopt “green” building codes, including low-carbon concrete, “solar and EV ready” 


wiring, etc.  
o Eliminate fluorocarbon gases used in refrigeration and air conditioning 
o Eliminate the use of fossil fuels in the built environment  
o Develop policies to require all new construction and remodels to ban natural gas and be 


fully electric; adopt building codes that reach beyond the minimum California State 
standards 


o Reduce the use of carbon-intensive materials and fossil-fuel based products in 
construction and manufacturing, including roofing, roads, and cement 


o Reduce the use of carbon-intensive practices in industry and manufacturing 


TRANSPORTATION 
o Incentivize and support adoption of zero net energy transportation 


174 of 182







o Walkable and bikable “complete streets” 
o Zero emission vehicles 
o Expand zero emission vehicle charging, especially at multi-family unit sites 
o Public transportation 
o Alternative commute programs 


o Incentivize zero emission vehicle charging during daylight hours 
o Incentivize and support policies that allow property owners to upgrade electrical panels 


to support the transition to on-site vehicle charging 
o Require and incentivize “solar and EV ready” charging infrastructure on all new and 


remodeled construction 
o Eliminate the use of fossil fuels in both public and private transportation 
o Purchase ZE heavy-equipment and buses (which can be used as back-up energy during 


emergencies) 


COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT, SUPPORT, AND RESILIENCE 
o Prioritize communication and engagement with residents, businesses, and workers 
o Prioritize and support the creation of jobs and training for careers that support 


economic transitions and contribute to a carbon-neutral economy 
o Prioritize underserved, marginalized, low-income, and frontline community members 
o Prioritize community energy resilience and health through building decarbonization 
o Support sustainable and affordable housing opportunities 
o Improve disaster and emergency preparedness and response 
o Assess and adapt social services and safety-net programs to ensure access to food, , 


clean water, housing, and mental health services before, during, and after emergency 
events 


 
FOOD, AGRICULTURE, AND ZERO WASTE 


o Identify and advance farming and ranching practices that reduce greenhouse gas 
emissions, enhance soil quality conserve water, increase groundwater retention, and 
sequester carbon 


o Expand and support preservation of agriculture lands and open space 
o Enhance biodiversity and restore ecosystem function 
o Require water conservation methodologies and practices, including low-water use 


landscaping, storm water catchments and cisterns 
o Support green infrastructure and restorative ecology, including trees, green roofing 
o Support the elimination of food waste  
o Conserve natural and manufactured resources  


 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, [City/County] shall formally endorse legislation proposed at the 
State level consistent with our legislative priorities, and shall support regional and national 
legislation that reduces the extraction and processing of fossil fuels, lowers greenhouse gas 
emissions at speed and scale, improves the energy grid infrastructure, supports energy equity, 
advances climate solution innovations, and creates economic stability for current industries and 
their employees and the workforce of the future; and 
 


175 of 182







BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, [City/County] will advocate for a nationwide climate emergency 
mobilization effort that engages local, regional, state, and national efforts at all levels of 
government and society, to rapidly catalyze efforts to reverse global warming and the resulting 
ecological crisis; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, [City/County] calls on the elected leaders at local and regional levels 
through California, the State of California, both houses of the Congress of the United States, the 
President of the United States, and all governments and peoples worldwide to declare a climate 
emergency, commit to sustained effort commensurate with the crisis, and initiate real actions 
that can, collectively and on a global scale, reverse global warming and provide maximum 
protection for all people and species of the world. 
 


 


 
 


 


176 of 182







ATTACHMENT C 


RESOLUTION NO. 2021-___ 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PINOLE, COUNTY OF 
CONTRA COSTA, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, DECLARING A CLIMATE EMERGENCY 


AND DIRECTING STAFF TO TAKE CERTAIN ACTIONS 
 


 
WHEREAS, according to the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change (IPCC), 


increasing emissions of greenhouse gases (GHG) will cause global temperatures to rise 
1.5 degrees Celsius by as early as 2030; and 


 
WHEREAS, on June 24, 2019, more than 70 health organizations including the 


American Medical Association and the American Public Health Association declared 
climate change to be a health emergency and issued a call to action for government, 
business, and civil society leaders to recognize climate change as a health emergency; 
and 
 


WHEREAS, according to IPCC, strong and sustained reductions in emissions of 
carbon dioxide (CO2) and other greenhouse gases would limit climate change; and 


 
WHEREAS, the State of California has set statewide GHG emission-reduction 


goals to mitigate negative impacts of climate change and has implemented a number of 
statewide programs; and 


 
WHEREAS, State-level programs alone are not projected to be sufficient to meet 


all of the State reduction targets, and the State is hoping and expecting that other 
organizations, including cities and counties, will take their own, additional steps to reduce 
GHG emissions; and 


 
WHEREAS, cities primarily use a Climate Action Plan (CAP) or a Climate Change 


Element of their General Plan to identify local GHG sources and identify specific 
emission-reduction programs; and 


 
WHEREAS, the State of California has recognized the need for careful study and 


planning to decrease demand and supply of fossil fuels, while managing the decline in a 
way that is economically responsible and sustainable; and 


 
WHEREAS, for Contra Costa County, rising global temperatures will cause sea 


levels to rise (up to six feet or more by year 2100 under certain scenarios), contribute to 
increasingly extreme weather, including intense rainfall, storms, and heat events, and 
heightened risk of wildfires; and 


 
WHEREAS, the consequences of climate change pose risks to life, safety and 


critical infrastructure in Contra Costa County and throughout the world, and threaten 
physical, social, and economic well-being; and 


 


177 of 182







Pinole City Council 
Resolution No. 2021-__ 
Page 2 
 


WHEREAS, climate change impacts in Contra Costa County will be most acutely 
felt by children, seniors, low-income populations, communities of color, and residents with 
unstable economic or housing situations; and 


 
WHEREAS, the Vulnerability Assessment developed for the Envision Contra 


Costa 2040 General Plan indicates that the most vulnerable County residents, including 
households in poverty, low-income households, and persons experiencing 
homelessness, are more likely to be severely impacted by a changing climate, including 
flooding, wildfires, extreme heat, and poor air quality; and 


 
WHEREAS, the world is facing an unprecedented crisis with the COVID-19 


pandemic, which has swept across the world causing global human tragedy and an 
historical economic setback, forcing a rebuild of our economy and a need to introduce the 
necessary recovery plans to restore sustainable progress and prosperity to the citizens 
of Contra Costa; and 


 
WHEREAS, long-term exposure to air pollution increases vulnerability to 


experiencing the most severe COVID-19 outcomes, further burdening the 
disproportionately affected communities that traditionally carry the brunt of the negative 
impacts of climate change, particularly in census tracts recognized as disadvantaged 
communities; and 


 
WHEREAS, the Bay Area Air Quality Management District on June 17, 2020, 


adopted a Resolution Condemning Racism and Injustice and Affirming Commitment to 
Diversity, Equity, Access and Inclusion, which among other things notes that "studies 
have shown that racial discrimination takes a tremendous toll on the physical and mental 
health of Black people in the U.S. Racial discrimination is now recognized as a public 
health crisis," "These higher death rates are not a random coincidence; but, instead, is 
the result of systemic racism and a consequential lack of social, economic and political 
opportunities," and "community proximity to sources of air pollution is one of these 
systemic issues," and resolves "We affirm our commitment to fighting for racial justice 
and changing the systems that continue to perpetuate racial disparities, especially as they 
contribute to disproportionate exposure to hazardous air pollution. We vow to use our 
voice and resources as an ally to the Black community to affect the meaningful and 
measurable changes that are so urgently needed in the Bay Area;" and 


 
WHEREAS, the City has taken some actions to address climate change, some of 


which include adopting and implementing the General Plan Sustainability Element; 
selecting MCE as the default electricity provider for residents and businesses; investing 
in energy conservation for City operations; and 


 
WHEREAS, by declaring a climate emergency, Pinole will join many local 


jurisdictions, including many in the Bay Area, that have made similar declarations that 
commit to taking action to reduce GHG emissions and plan for climate change. 
 


178 of 182







Pinole City Council 
Resolution No. 2021-__ 
Page 3 
 


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Pinole 
does hereby declare a climate emergency; and 


 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Council supports the State of 


California’s GHG emission-reduction goals to reduce GHG emissions to 40 percent below 
1990 levels by 2030 as established by Senate Bill 32, and strive to achieve carbon 
neutrality by 2045 as established by Executive Order B-55-18; and 


 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Council directs staff to complete a 


GHG emissions inventory and prepare a CAP that includes GHG emission reduction 
goals that align with the State’s GHG emission reduction goals of SB 32 and Executive 
Order B-55-18 for City Council’s consideration; and 


 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Council directs staff to present a mid-


year budget adjustment to fund completion of the GHG inventory and CAP; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that health, socio-economic, and racial equity 


considerations should be included in policymaking and climate solutions at all levels and 
across all sectors as the consequences of climate change have significant impacts on all 
City residents, especially the young, the elderly, low-income or communities of color, and 
other vulnerable populations. 


 
PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Pinole City Council held on 


the 19th day of October 2021 by the following vote: 
 


AYES:  COUNCILMEMBERS:  
  
NOES:  COUNCILMEMBERS:  
  
ABSENT: COUNCILMEMBERS:  
  
ABSTAIN: COUNCILMEMBERS:  


 
I hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was introduced, passed and adopted this 19th day of 
October, 2021 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Heather Iopu, CMC 
City Clerk 


179 of 182







  
 


   
 


 CITY COUNCIL 
 REPORT 11A 
  


 
 
DATE:   OCTOBER 19, 2021 
 
TO:    MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 
 
FROM: ANDREW MURRAY, CITY MANAGER 
  
SUBJECT: POSSIBLE DUTIES, POWERS, AND MEMBERSHIP OF A CITY 


TECHNOLOGY AND COMMUNICATION SUBCOMMITTEE 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends that the City Council receive information from City staff on possible 
duties, powers, and membership of a City technology and communication subcommittee 
and provide direction as appropriate. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
At its meeting on April 20, 2021, the City Council approved a future City Council agenda 
item on the possible duties, powers, and membership of a City technology and 
communication subcommittee. 
 
The Council has established a number of subcommittees over time, which are composed 
of a subset of the Council and sometimes other elected or appointed officials. The 
purpose of a subcommittee is to enable two Council Members, which is less than a 
quorum of the full City Council, to consider a City policy or operational issue/matter at a 
greater level of detail than is feasible for a regular Council meeting, at which there are 
usually numerous substantial agenda items. Subcommittees can either be established as 
a “standing committee,” meaning that they are formed for the purpose of addressing a 
continuing issue/matter or have a meeting schedule fixed by formal action of the Council, 
or an “ad-hoc committee,” meaning that they are formed for a limited-term issue or matter. 
The City currently has the following subcommittees: Finance Subcommittee, Historic 
Preservation Subcommittee, Pinole Hercules Wastewater Subcommittee, Municipal 
Code Update Ad-Hoc Subcommittee, Honoring/Plaques Naming Ad-Hoc Subcommittee, 
Planning Commission Interview Ad-Hoc Subcommittee, and Community Services 
Commission/TAPS Committee Interview Ad-Hoc Subcommittee. The power/authority of 
City subcommittees is usually simply to make recommendations to the full Council on 
potential Council action. 
 
The City Council may establish a new subcommittee via Council resolution or by minute 
order. 
 


180 of 182







City Council Report 
October 19, 2021  2 


REVIEW & ANALYSIS 
 
The City Council has identified both technology and communication as important issues 
for the City. The City of Pinole Strategic Plan 2020 – 2025, adopted in February 2020, 
includes a “strategy” (special project) to develop a strategic communication plan and 
another strategy to develop a comprehensive information technology plan. City staff is 
currently working with consultants on the creation of both, which are expected to be 
completed by the end of fiscal year (FY) 2021/22. 
 
Some cities have Council subcommittees that focus on technology and/or 
communication, and a number of cities have resident commissions that focus on 
technology and/or communication. Pasadena has an Economic Development & 
Technology Committee composed of council members that reviews matters related to 
economic development, entrepreneurial activities of the city, and technology and 
telecommunication proposals for city operations. Calabasas has a Communications and 
Technology Commission composed of residents that advises the city council on matters 
related to the city's cable television franchises, video services, telecommunications 
issues, and communication technology. San Ramon has an Innovation and Technology 
Advisory Committee composed of residents that advises the city council on policies and 
practices related to innovation and technology that could enhance services to the public 
and increase efficiencies. Palos Verdes Estates has a Technology Advisory Committee 
composed of residents that advises the city council on methods and systems of electronic 
communications for enhancing open discussion, resident engagement, and resident 
services. 
 
As noted, the Pinole City Council has already identified both technology and 
communication as important issues for the City, and staff is in the process of developing 
plans for how to expand/improve both. The City has had limited technology and 
communication efforts in the past due primarily to limited staff and resources dedicated 
to these areas. The City’s deployment of technology has been a shared responsibility 
between City departments and the City’s contract information technology vendor. City 
departments have each individually been responsible for communicating on issues in their 
purview. Under the organizational structure being implemented as part of the FY 2021/22 
budget, the City Manager department is responsible for coordination of technology and 
communication across all City departments. 
 
The forthcoming technology and communication plans will thoroughly address those 
aspects of City operation and will be seminal documents. The full Council will have an 
opportunity to review and provide input on draft versions of both of those documents 
before they are finalized. In addition, City staff’s entire bandwidth to address technology 
and communication issues is currently completely occupied by routine technology and 
communication activities, already-planned improvements to technology and 
communication, and the development of the forthcoming technology and communication 
plans. As such, unless directed otherwise, staff does not have the bandwidth to undertake 
any additional efforts on technology and communication until after the plans are complete. 
 


181 of 182







City Council Report 
October 19, 2021  3 


If the City Council would like to establish a technology and communication subcommittee 
now, it might be appropriate to have it structured as an ad-hoc subcommittee with a 
specific focus on providing guidance to staff on the development of the forthcoming 
Communication and Engagement Plan and the Information Technology Plan. 
Alternatively, the City Council could establish a standing or ad-hoc technology and 
communication subcommittee at some point in the future, once the forthcoming plans 
have been adopted and implemented, and the City is looking for additional new efforts 
and opportunities in technology and communication. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
There is no fiscal impact from receiving information on this issue. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
None 


182 of 182





		2021-10-19 Current Agenda Final

		8A

		8A-1

		8A-2

		8B

		8C

		SR - Continued Emergency 10.19.21

		Reso Local Emergency 10.19.21



		8D

		SR - AB 361 Reso

		Reso - AB 361 Remote Mtgs 10.19.21



		8E

		Recommendation

		ATT A - 2022 fixed medical rates - Mgnt EE.pdf

		RESOLUTION NO. 2021-



		ATT B - 2022 fixed medical rates - Unrepresented.pdf

		RESOLUTION NO. 2021-



		ATT C- 2022 fixed medical rates - Elected.pdf

		RESOLUTION NO. 2021-



		ATT D - 2022 fixed medical rates - AFSCME.pdf

		RESOLUTION NO. 2021-



		ATT E - 2022 fixed medical rates - Local 1.pdf

		RESOLUTION NO. 2021-



		ATT F - 2022 fixed medical rates - IAFF.pdf

		RESOLUTION NO. 2021-





		8F revised

		2021 SR Revised COI Update Final

		FROM: HEATHER IOPU, CITY CLERK

		ATTACHMENTS:

		A Resolution

		B. Staff Report Reflecting Last COI Update - September 2020





		2021 Conflict of Interest Reso 

		take 5 COI Update 2021

		APPENDIX to the CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE DESIGNATED POSITIONS

		Department

		Designated Position

		Category



		APPENDIX to the CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE DESIGNATED POSITIONS

		Department

		Designated Position

		Category



		APPENDIX to the CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE DESIGNATED POSITIONS

		Department

		Designated Position

		Category



		APPENDIX to the CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE DESIGNATED POSITIONS

		Department

		Designated Position

		Category





		ATT B  091520 SR

		2020 SR Bienneal Review Conflict of Interest Final

		FROM: HEATHER IOPU, CITY CLERK

		ATTACHMENTS:

		A. Resolution

		B. 2020 Local Agency Biennial Notice





		2020 Conflict of Interest Reso Final

		Committee

		DISCLOSURE CATEGORIES

		DISCLOSURE CATEGORY 1

		DISCLOSURE CATEGORY 2





		COI Update 2020

		APPENDIX to the CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE DESIGNATED POSITIONS

		Department

		Designated Position

		Category

		DISCLOSURE CATEGORIES





		Local_Agency_Biennial_Notice





		9A

		SR - SB 1383 Ord 10.19.21 V2

		ATT A SB 1383 Ordinance 10.19.21

		Exhibit A Text 10.19.21



		10A

		SR Climate Emergency - FINAL

		DATE:   OCTOBER 19, 2021

		TO:    MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS

		FROM: ANDREW MURRAY, CITY MANAGER

		SUBJECT: RESOLUTION DECLARING A CLIMATE EMERGENCY AND DIRECTING STAFF TO TAKE CERTAIN ACTIONS

		Recommendation



		BACKGROUND

		FISCAL IMPACT





		ATT A

		ATT B

		A RESOLUTION OF THE [XX CITY COUNCIL/XX BOARD OF SUPERVISORS]

		DECLARING A CLIMATE EMERGENCY

		AND AN IMMEDIATE MOBILIZATION EFFORT

		TO RESTORE CLIMATE STABILITY



		Att C



		11A

		DATE:   OCTOBER 19, 2021

		TO:    MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS

		FROM: ANDREW MURRAY, CITY MANAGER

		SUBJECT: Possible Duties, Powers, and Membership of a City Technology and Communication Subcommittee

		Recommendation



		BACKGROUND

		FISCAL IMPACT















City Council Report 



October 19, 2021

3





DATE:
OCTOBER 19, 2021


TO:
MAYOR AND COUNCILMEMBERS 



FROM:
HECTOR DE LA ROSA, ASSISTANT CITY MANAGER


SUBJECT:
FIXING THE EMPLOYER’S CONTRIBUTION AT AN EQUAL AMOUNT FOR EMPLOYEES AND ANNUITANTS UNDER THE PUBLIC EMPLOYEES’ MEDICAL AND HOSPITAL CARE ACT WITH RESPECT TO ELECTED OFFICIALS, MANAGEMENT, UNREPRESENTED/CONFIDENTIAL EMPLOYEES, AFSCME, PEU LOCAL 1, AND IAFF





Recommendation


Staff recommended that the City Council adopt resolutions:


A. Fixing the Employer’s Contribution at an equal amount for Employees and Annuitants under the Public Employees’ Medical and Hospital Care Act with respect to Management Employees; and


B. Fixing the Employer’s Contribution at an equal amount for Employees and Annuitants under the Public Employees’ Medical and Hospital Care Act with respect to Unrepresented /Confidential Employees; and


C. Fixing the Employer’s Contribution at an equal amount for Employees and Annuitants under the Public Employees’ Medical and Hospital Care Act with respect to Elected Officials; and


D. Fixing the Employer’s Contribution at an equal amount for Employees and Annuitants under the Public Employees’ Medical and Hospital Care Act with respect to AFSCME, Local 512 Employees; and


E. Fixing the Employer’s Contribution at an equal amount for Employees and Annuitants under the Public Employees’ Medical and Hospital Care Act with respect to PEU Local 1 Employees; and


F. Fixing the Employer’s Contribution at an equal amount for Employees and Annuitants under the Public Employees’ Medical and Hospital Care Act with respect to IAFF Employees.



BACKGROUND



Through an agreement with California Public Employees Retirement System (CalPERS), the City Council elected to cover employees under the Public Employees’ Medical and Hospital Care Act (PEMHCA). PEMHCA governs the CalPERS Health Program which enables contracting agencies, such as the City of Pinole, to provide a health benefit program to active and retired employees. Contracting agencies are required to provide an employer health contribution toward the cost of the monthly premium for all eligible employees and annuitants. Local agencies can contribute amounts in excess of the minimum contribution. 


Per the CalPERS agreement, the City designated seven groups, which would be eligible to participate in the CalPERS Health plans.  The groups are PEU Local 1, AFSCME, PPEA, IAFF, Management, Unrepresented/Confidential, and Elected. 


Through negotiated Memorandum of Understandings (MOUs) between the city and the represented groups, the City has agreed to pay for a portion of the monthly medical premiums for active and retired employees and dependents. 



REVIEW AND ANALYSIS



The City has recently concluded negotiations of successor MOUs with AFSCME, Local 1, and IAFF.  Per the negotiated MOU’s and the Management Compensation Plan, effective January 1, 2022, the City agreed to pay up to the 2021 Kaiser medical monthly premiums for active and retired members in, or who were previously in, the Local 1, AFSCME, IAFF, Management, and Unrepresented/Confidential groups, based on enrollment status. Historically, the Elected group (e.g., City Council), has received the same benefit as the Management group. 


The attached resolutions reflect the new contribution amount which the Council agreed to pay towards the active and retired employees’ medical payment.  A resolution is not included for the PPEA group as that group previously negotiated a separate contribution rate.


Below are the 2021 CalPERS Kaiser medical premiums for each level of benefit. The rates reflect an 5.87% increase compared to the 2020 premiums.  



One Party Coverage: 

$   813.64







Two Party Coverage: 

$1,627.28

  




Family Coverage:


$2,115.46


Per CalPERS regulations, any time an employer changes to the medical premiums paid by the City on behalf of an employee group, the amount to be paid must be reflected through a Resolution approved by the Council. Any contribution changes will take effect on January 1st of each year.  



All resolutions must be forwarded to the CalPERS office, no later than 60 days prior to implementation of the City’s contribution, for official notification and processing.  


FISCAL IMPACT



Effective January 1, 2022, the City’s monthly health care premium cost for current active employees total $140,877, which represents an increase of $7,870 from the 2021 monthly health care premiums.  The City’s net monthly health care premium cost for current active employees effective January 1, 2022, is $129,946, which represents an increase of $5,878 from the City net monthly health care contribution in 2021 of $124,068.  



Active employees’ contribution towards health care coverage increased by $2,476 from last year.



In FY 2021-22, the City budgeted a total of $2,021,301 for payment of medical premiums for active employees, which is sufficient to cover the City’s Health insurance obligation. 


ATTACHMENTS:



A
Resolution for Management Employees 


B
Resolution for Unrepresented/Confidential Employees


C
Resolution for Elected Officials



D
Resolution for AFSCME Employees



E
Resolution for Local 1 Employees 


F
Resolution for IAFF Employees


		Name of Agency: 

		Mailing Address: 

		Contact Person: 

		Phone Number: 

		Email: 

		Alternate Email: 

		Amendment: Off

		Include new positions: Off

		Revise disclosure categories: Off

		Revise the titles of existing positions: Off

		Delete titles of positions that have been abolished and/or positions that no longer make or participate in making governmental decisions: Off

		Other: Off

		Other (described): 

		Date: 

		Return to Agenda: 






